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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBRE

Revenue and other gains/(losses) o2k R HAb U zs,(EE) 405.9 556.7 27.1)%
Gross profit ES 68.0 79.4 (14.5)%
Profit before income tax expense % P15 %5 3 2 i s A 33.7 55.8 (89.6)%

Profit attributable to the owners of ~ ANA T A AFE(EFE R T
the Company for the year 27.0 54.4 (50.3)%

Basic and diluted earnings per share & & E 7K [z #5% & Fl|
(HK cents) (L) 3.4 6.8 (50.3)%

Total assets BEHLE 317.7 396.2 (19.8)%
Total bank borrowings RITERERE - - 0%
Shareholders’ equity AR R 168.5 181.5 (7.2)%
Current ratio and quick ratio (times)  REhEL R KRB LR (£5) 2.0 1.5 33.3%
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
NEEH

BOARD OF DIRECTORS =8

Executive Directors HITESE

Mr. Neil David Howard (chairman and chief executive officer) Neil David Howard 5t 4 (/@ & 7T I AR %)
Mr. Steven Paul Smithers Steven Paul Smithers 9t &
Independent Non-Executive Directors BYKEBITES

Mr. Robert Peter Andrews Robert Peter Andrews 5t 4

Mr. David John Kennedy David John Kennedy %t 4

Mr. Martin Woods Martin Woods 7t 4=
COMPANY SECRETARY NEWME

Mr. Yun Wah Man AcG, ACS, MCG SOHEEE A ACG, ACS, MCG
AUDIT COMMITTEE BREES

Mr. David John Kennedy (chairman) David John Kennedy 5t 4 (£ /%)
Mr. Robert Peter Andrews Robert Peter Andrews 5t 4

Mr. Martin Woods Martin Woods 7t 4=
NOMINATION COMMITTEE REZE®

Mr. Neil David Howard (chairman) Neil David Howard 7t 4 (3 /&)
Mr. Steven Paul Smithers Steven Paul Smithers 9t &

Mr. David John Kennedy David John Kennedy %t 4

Mr. Robert Peter Andrews Robert Peter Andrews 5t 4

Mr. Martin Woods Martin Woods 7t 4=
REMUNERATION COMMITTEE FMEES

Mr. Robert Peter Andrews (chairman) Robert Peter Andrews %4 (/&)
Mr. David John Kennedy David John Kennedy %t &

Mr. Martin Woods Martin Woods 7t 4=

Mr. Neil David Howard Neil David Howard 4t 4

Mr. Steven Paul Smithers Steven Paul Smithers 9t 4
AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES REREK

Mr. Neil David Howard Neil David Howard 4t &

Mr. Steven Paul Smithers Steven Paul Smithers 9t 4
AUDITORS BB
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CORPORATE INFORMATION
REEH
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | am pleased to present the
audited financial results of IBI Group Holdings Limited together with
its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 March 2022.

GROUP PROFILE

IBI Group Holdings Limited is a publicly listed holding company on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. The Group focuses on
investments in the built environment.

The Group’s subsidiaries include a building contractor, a building
solutions provider and a strategic investment division.

Contracting

Through its subsidiaries IBI Limited, IBI Projects and IBI Macau, the
Group provides world class interior fitting out and building
refurbishment services in Hong Kong and Macau.

Whilst acting predominantly as a main contractor, the Group
secures and completes projects for clients across many industry
sectors, including but not limited to banking, legal, hospitality, a
racing and betting operator and property development.

The Group’s competitive strengths have contributed to its success
in contracting and distinguished it from our competitors. We believe
our competitive strengths lie in three key specific areas of the
business, namely,

1. an established reputation and proven track record;
2. implementation, management and execution expertise; and

3. commitment to the management of risk, cash flow and
financial security.

Building Solutions

Building Solutions Limited (‘BSL”), is a product and service supplier
with a focus on air quality, energy efficiency and modern
sustainable building materials.

BSL provides products and services that enhance the performance
and well-being of the built environment in order to provide modern,
healthy and high performing spaces for the occupants.

Under BSL, the Group aims to tap into the very latest technology
available worldwide and to deliver it to the Asia region.

10 IBI Group Holdings Limited
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERBE

Strategic Investments

The strategic investments division of the Group was established to
make efficient use of its available capital, to expand the Group’s
reach both geographically and, to enter new market sectors.

With a continuing focus on the “Built Environment”, the Group is
looking in detail at a wide range of investment opportunities from
property development to new start-ups in the field of building
technology and management.

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group recorded profit
attributable to the owners of the Company after tax of
approximately HK$27.0 million (2021: HK$54.4 million) from
revenue and other (losses)/gains totalling approximately HK$405.9
million (2021: HK$556.7 million).

1. Contracting

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group completed
11 projects and was awarded 14 projects, all of them were
fitting-out projects. The Group recorded segment profit from
contracting of approximately HK$40.2 million.

The Hong Kong component of the Group remained busy
during this financial period despite the continuing shadow
cast by the Covid-19 pandemic.

In general whilst there has been a healthy number of
tendering opportunities available to the Group, the size of
these projects have generally been smaller than normal and
the increased competitiveness of each tender has ultimately
impacted entry margin levels.

The Group did not have to make any reduction in its
workforce during the period however we are experiencing an
imbalance in the supply of construction professionals due to
the impact from people leaving the industry for migration or
other reasons and the lack of inflow of new people, primarily
due to the tough quarantine policies in place. As Hong Kong
returns to normality in 2022, we are hopeful that this
imbalance will slowly ease.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHRE
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Due to its heavy reliance on tourism and gaming, the Macau
market continues to be impacted negatively by the Covid-19
pandemic. Macau continues to maintain very strict quarantine
rules which not only eliminate tourism from outside of
mainland China but also prevent any unrestricted travel
between Macau and Hong Kong.

As there is currently no indication of any change in Macau’s
approach to Hong Kong and on the basis that there is
minimal construction work on-going in the territory, the Group
has reduced its operations to a minimum. We will continue to
review the options in Macau and will act swiftly to reignite our
business as soon as circumstances change.

Building Solutions

For the year ended 31 March 2022, BSL has registered a
segment loss of approximately HK$2.7 million.

BSL was established in April 2020 and the team has been
working diligently to develop the business and to secure
orders.

The second year of BSL’s operations have shown significant
penetration into the market place which is leading to
improved sales figures. In addition to the product ranges
previously secured, BSL have now secured distribution rights
to a cutting edge lighting product that not only reduces
energy consumption, but also can be retrofitted using existing
light fittings. This product range has been very well received
and this will be reflected in the sales figures for the coming
financial year.

BSL is now well placed to benefit from the current trends of
wellness and energy consumption reduction and we look
forward to reporting significantly improved financials as this
subsidiary moves out of its infancy and into its development
phase.

IBI Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021/2022
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
ERBE

3. Strategic Investments

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the strategic investments
division of the Group has registered a segment loss of
approximately HK$0.7 million.

The financial year was spent in part, divesting the Group of its
earlier stock investments which had generated phenomenal
returns in the previous reporting period. In addition, our
efforts were targeted towards property related investment
deals and these efforts have generated considerable early
success.

During the latter part of the period, the Group secured
development land in Hokkaido Japan located in close
proximity to a future station of the planned Shinkansen high
speed rail line. The Group is now working with local
development specialist in order to establish the most efficient
use of the land as well as the timing of the development.

Subsequent to the financial reporting period, the Group
acquired Adelaide Chambers, a building located in the heart
of Dublin, Ireland. Adelaide Chambers is a period building
with approximately 20,000 square foot of commercial office
space. The investment is a value-add proposition with
improvements to be made in both building upgrades and
lease improvements in order to increase the overall value of
the asset.

Moving forward, the Group will continue to look at potential
investment opportunities and we look forward to announcing
further successes.

MOVING FORWARD

Hong Kong has now lifted many of the restrictions put in place
during the pandemic and life is very quickly returning to normal.
Quarantine restrictions whilst greatly reduced, still remain in place
and it will be important to see these reduced further in order for
Hong Kong to regain its full international status. We are confident
that this will happen soon.

As the pressure from the pandemic recedes, the world is faced
with the challenge of high inflation. The Group will continue to
assess the impact of high inflation on each of our business sectors
and make sure that the businesses are well placed to battle this
storm.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
EEHRE

We are looking forward to an exciting year ahead and believe that
the business environment will move from strength to strength.
Allocation of capital continues to be the main focus of the Group
and we are confident that capital allocated for investment will be
fully vested within the 2023 financial year.

APPRECIATION

Our colleagues, clients, advisors and business partners have
endured a great deal over the past two years and we are grateful
for their continuing support and guidance. We look forward to
further collaboration in the future and to be part of Hong Kong'’s
continued growth story.

On behalf of the Board

Neil David Howard
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER W& DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue, gross profit and gross profit margin
Contracting

The Group is a building contractor focusing on providing renovation
services as a main contractor for property projects in the private
sector in Hong Kong and Macau. Our two main types of projects

are (i) fitting-out projects; and (i) A&A projects.

Revenue by geographical location of projects

Bt % B
i - ERIRERE

EE

AEBESFINEHBFRBHELAER - EEFE
KNORFPIRLE B Y I8 B ARFGER - BIPMMAREIR

BROKEER M) ASATER -

#IH B i % &7 B W 3t

Year ended 31 March
BE=A=1+—HLFE

2022 2021
=== —E—F
% of % of
HKS$’000 revenue HK$’ 000 revenue
(g S
FET Bo FABT Btk
Hong Kong a5 403,888 100.0% 510,709 100.0%
Macau SR PY - 0.0% 249 0.0%
Total #et 403,888 100.0% 510,958 100.0%
Revenue by type of projects IR BEE 7K
Year ended 31 March
BZ=A=+—RHLEE
2022 2021
=== —E—F
% of % of
HK$’000 revenue HK$’ 000 revenue
15 U 2 i Wz
TET Bo FAET Bt
Fitting-out projects HIE1EH 330,830 81.9% 486,324 95.2%
A&A projects ASATE H 73,058 18.1% 24,634 4.8%
Total et 403,888 100.0% 510,958 100.0%
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Revenue, gross profit and gross profit margin (Continued)

Contracting (Continued)

The Group’s revenue from contracting for the year ended 31 March
2022 was approximately HK$403.9 million, which represented a
decrease of approximately HK$107.1 million or approximately
21.0% over the last financial year. The decrease in the Group’s
contracting revenue was mainly due to the impact of the Covid-19
outbreak, the revenue contribution from Hong Kong decreased by
approximately HK$106.8 million or 20.9% over the last financial
year. No revenue was recorded from Macau for the year ended 31
March 2022.

The Group’s gross profit from contracting increased by
approximately HK$32.1 million or 91.0% from approximately
HK$35.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2021 to
approximately HK$67.4 million for the year ended 31 March 2022.
Accordingly, the Group’s gross profit margin from contracting for
the year ended 31 March 2022 increased to approximately 16.7%
from approximately 6.9% for the year ended 31 March 2021. The
increase in gross profit margin was mainly attributable to the
concluding of final account for a few large projects during the year.

Building Solutions

Our business segment, BSL reported revenue of approximately
HK$1.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2022 as compared to
approximately HK$0.3 million for the year ended 31 March 2021,
which represented an increase of approximately HK$1.4 million or
512.3%. Gross profit has also increased by approximately HK$0.6
million or 531.2% from approximately HK$0.1 million for the year
ended 31 March 2021 to approximately HK$0.7 million for the year
ended 31 March 2022. The gross profit margin from BSL for the
year ended 31 March 2022 was approximately 40.7% as compared
to approximately 39.6% for the year ended 31 March 2021. This
new business segment commenced its operations during the year
ended 31 March 2021 and began contributing towards the Group’s
revenue.

Strategic Investments

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group received
dividends from financial assets at FVTPL of approximately HK$1.9
million (2021: HK$1.9 million) and recognised net realised and
unrealised losses on financial assets at FVTPL of approximately
HK$1.6 million as compared to a net realised and unrealised gain
of approximately HK$43.6 million for the year ended 31 March
2021. The Group began to make investments in listed equity
securities during the initial stage of the Covid-19 outbreak and had
disposed most of them during the year. For details, please see
section headed “Significant investments held” in this report.

Bt %5 = ()
i - BRIRERE (E)

RE(H)

AEBEBE S —_F=A=+—HItFENEZk:
#)A403.9BE BT B E— A BFER L 4107.1
BEBILEA21.0% c NEBAERT THREEHNT
F|Covid-19Z BRI E - kBB B REERER E—E
BIRFER LD 4106.8 B & L520.9% « BFIREZE
—ECF=ZA=+— EtEFIEﬁHWAO

KREBWFAEENREE T -_—F=A=+—HILF
E#4)353B BB LEMANABSEBLH91.0% 2 &,
E—T::i_ﬁ —t+—HIEFELTA4EEBIT -

CAREENARENERRHE S —F=A=1—
Eii&%’me%i-miﬁiff::izﬁ =t+—H
IEFEX16.7% » EFIEEINEZ H N FATHREEKR
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IFFEMHOIEEBTEMNDN0.6E BEETH531.2%
BEHE T - _F-A=Z+—HIFENHNITEES
TLeBSLEHEZE " Z - —F=A=1+—HItFEMEN=X
BH40T7% MEBEE-_TZ-_—F=A=+—HIEEA
#4939.6% ° ZHEBOBREE T -_—F=ZA=+—
B IFFERIIAE &I 5 tA M AN B B BHNES -

RERE

BE—_S—-——#F=8 E—l——EItiFé* C REEBKRAF
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER W& DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Administrative and other operating expenses

The Group’s administrative and other operating expenses for the
year ended 31 March 2022 were approximately HK$34.1 million,
representing an increase of approximately HK$4.9 million or 16.8%
from approximately HK$29.2 million for the year ended 31 March
2021. The increase was mainly due to increase in staff costs.

Income tax expense

The Group’s operations are based in Hong Kong and Macau, and
are subject to (i) Hong Kong profits tax calculated at 8.25% for the
first HK$2 million and 16.5% on the remaining balance of estimated
assessable profits during the reporting period; and (ii) Macau
complementary tax calculated at 12.0% on the taxable profits over
the relevant tax threshold during the reporting period. For the year
ended 31 March 2022, the Group recorded income tax expense of
approximately HK$7.2 million (2021: HK$1.7 million) representing
an effective tax rate of approximately 21.5% (2021: 3.1%). The
increase in the Group’s effective tax rate during the year ended 31
March 2022 was mainly due to the one-off non-taxable income
recorded in the year ended 31 March 2021.

Profit for the year

The Group’s profit attributable to the owners of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2022 amounted to approximately
HK$27.0 million, representing a decrease of approximately
HK$27.4 million or 50.3% from approximately HK$54.4 million for
the year ended 31 March 2021. Such decrease was mainly
attributable to the one-off gain generated from our strategic
investments segment in the year ended 31 March 2021.

Bank borrowings

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group had no bank
borrowings. No financial instruments were used for hedging
purposes, nor were there any foreign currency net investments
hedged by current borrowings and/or other hedging instruments.

18 IBI Group Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEBNWR DN

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had current assets of
approximately HK$296.4 million (2021: HK$330.2 million) which
comprised cash and cash equivalents of approximately HK$141.6
million (2021: HK$87.1 million), mainly denominated in Hong Kong
dollars. As at 31 March 2022, the Group had non-current liabilities
of approximately HK$1.8 million (2021: HK$1.2 million), and its
current liabilities amounted to approximately HK$148.3 million
(2021: HK$213.8 million), consisting mainly of payables arising in
the normal course of business operation. Accordingly, the current
ratio, being the ratio of current assets to current liabilities, was
approximately 2.0 times as at 31 March 2022 (2021: 1.5 times).
The Group’s working capital requirements were mainly financed by
internal resources.

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio of the Group is defined as a percentage of total
debts at the end of the reporting period divided by total equity at
the end of the reporting period. As at 31 March 2022, the gearing
ratio of the Group was approximately 2.7% (2021: 2.3%). Total
debts include lease liabilities.

Treasury policies

The Group has adopted a prudent financial management approach
towards its treasury policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the period under review. The Group strives to
reduce exposure to credit risk by performing ongoing credit
assessments and evaluations of the financial status of its
customers. To manage liquidity risk, the Board closely monitors the
Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the liquidity structure of the
Group’s assets, liabilities and other commitments can meet its
funding requirements from time to time.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER W& DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Foreign exchange exposure

As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s exposure to currency risks is
mainly attributable to cash and cash equivalents and certain listed
equity investments included in financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss, which are denominated in Euro and British pound.
The Group was exposed to certain foreign currency exchange risks
but it does not anticipate future currency fluctuations to cause
material operational difficulties or liquidity problems.

Save as disclosed above, the Group’s monetary assets and
transactions are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars, it
did not have any significant exposure to risk resulting from changes
in foreign currency exchange rates during the year ended 31 March
2022.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group did not engage
in any derivatives activities and did not commit to any financial
instruments to hedge its exposure to foreign currency risk.

Capital structure

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange on the Listing Date. There has been no change in
the capital structure of the Company since the Listing Date and up
to the date of this report. The capital of the Company comprises
ordinary shares and capital reserves.

Capital commitments

As at 31 March 2022, the Group did not have any significant capital
commitments (2021 nil).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Share Option Scheme

The Company conditionally approved and adopted the Share
Option Scheme on 20 September 2016 by passing of a written
resolution of the then shareholders of the Company. The Share
Option Scheme became effective on the Listing Date and will
remain in force until the tenth anniversary of the Listing Date.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the
Company a flexible means of giving incentive to, rewarding,
remunerating, compensating and providing benefits to eligible
participants and for such other purposes as the Board approves
from time to time.

Since the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and up to the date
of this report, no option was granted, exercised, cancelled or
lapsed under the Share Option Scheme.

Significant investments held

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had listed equity investments
included in financial assets at FVTPL of approximately HK$16.1
million (as at 31 March 2021: HK$61.8 million).

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group received
dividends of approximately HK$1.9 million. The Group had also
disposed of approximately HK$44.2 million in listed equity securities
and recognised a net realised and unrealised loss on financial
assets at FVTPL of approximately HK$1.6 million. The listed equity
investments mainly comprised high quality blue chip banking
corporations and energy companies listed in Hong Kong, Australia
and the United Kingdom. The Group expects to benefit from the
receipt of dividends and capital gains in the long term. The Group
will continue to monitor and assess the performance of these
investments and make timely and appropriate investment
adjustments to enhance the returns on investment for the Group
and ultimately benefit the shareholders of the Company (the
“Shareholders”) as a whole.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEER W& DM

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Significant investments held (Continued)

As at 31 March 2022, the Group held 1,032,000 listed shares of
Barclays Plc, a company incorporated in England and Wales and
listed on the London Stock Exchange (stock exchange: BARC)
(“Barclays”), which represented approximately 0.006% of its
issued share capital with an acquisition cost of approximately
HK$10.9 million. The investment in Barclays was classified as
financial assets at FVTPL and had a fair value of approximately
HK$16.1 million which contributes to approximately 5.1% of the
Group’s total assets. The Group recognised an unrealised fair value
loss of approximately HK$4.8 million and received dividends of
approximately HK$0.6 million from Barclays during the year ended
31 March 2022. No acquisition or disposal of the investment in
Barclays was made during the year ended 31 March 2022.

Barclays’s businesses include consumer banking and payments
operations around the world, as well as a global corporate and
investment bank. The investment in Barclays still holds upside
potential and will be held for the foreseeable future.

As at 31 March 2022, the Group did not hold any other listed equity
investments that represented more than 5% of the total assets of

the Group.

Save as disclosed above, there was no other significant investment
held by the Group.

Future plans for material investments and capital assets

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group did not have other plans
for material investments and capital assets as at 31 March 2022.

Material acquisitions and disposals
During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group did not have any

material acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries, associates and
joint ventures.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWR DT

FINANCIAL REVIEW (CONTINUED)

Pledge of assets

As at 31 March 2022, pledged deposits in the sum of
approximately HK$14.9 million (2021: HK$14.4 million) were placed
with a bank or an insurer as securities for the performance bonds
issued by the bank and insurer to certain customers on their
projects. The pledged deposits will be released when the bank or
insurer is satisfied that no claims will arise from the projects under
the performance bonds.

Contingent liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31 March
2022 (2021 nil).

Information on employees

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had 98 employees (2021: 97),
including the executive Directors. Total staff costs (including
Directors’ emoluments) were approximately HK$68.5 million for the
year ended 31 March 2022, as compared with approximately
HK$66.7 million for the year ended 31 March 2021. Remuneration
is determined with reference to market norms and individual
employee’s performance, qualification and experience.

On top of basic salaries, bonuses may be paid by reference to the
Group’s performance as well as individual’s performance. Other
staff benefits include contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund
scheme in Hong Kong and various welfare plans including the
provision of pension funds, medical insurance, unemployment
insurance and other relevant insurance for employees of the Group.

The salaries and benefits of the Group’s employees are kept at a
competitive level and employees are rewarded on a performance-
related basis within the general framework of the Group’s salary
and bonus system, which is reviewed by management annually.
The Group also operates the Share Option Scheme, pursuant to
which options to subscribe for shares of the Company may be
granted to the Directors and employees of the Group.

The Group encourages self-development of its employees and
provides on-the-job training where appropriate.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEN W R DT

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 March 2022, neither the Company nor
any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company confirms that, other than the deviation from code
provision A.2.1, the Company has complied with all the Code
Provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31
March 2022.

Our Company complies with all the Code Provisions with the
exception for Code Provision A.2.1, which requires the roles of
chairman and chief executive be different individuals. Under Code
Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual. Mr. Neil David Howard holds
both positions. Mr. Howard has been primarily responsible for
overseeing our Group’s general management and business
development and for formulating business strategies and policies
for our business management and operations since he joined our
Group in 2006. Taking into account the continuation of
management and the implementation of our business strategies,
our Directors (including our independent non-executive Directors)
consider it is most suitable for Mr. Howard to hold both the
positions of chief executive officer and the chairman of our Board
and the present arrangements are beneficial to and in the interests
of the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. Our Company
will continue to review and consider splitting the roles of chairman
of the Board and chief executive officer of our Company at a time
when it is appropriate and suitable by taking into account the
circumstances of our Group as a whole.
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BIOGRAPHIES OF THE DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EENEAREEEGE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors
Mr. Neil David Howard

Mr. Howard, aged 51, was appointed as a Director on 13 April
2016 and redesignated as an executive Director, the chairman of
our Board and chief executive officer on 11 June 2016. Mr. Howard
is a director of each of our subsidiaries. He is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee and a member of the Remuneration
Committee. He is responsible for corporate strategic planning and
overall business development of our Group. Mr. Howard’s interests
in the Shares are set out in the section headed “Directors’ and the
Chief Executive’s Interests or Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” of the directors’ report in this annual
report.

Mr. Howard has been with our Group for over 15 years since
joining our Group as a director of IBI Limited in November 2006
and a managing director of IBI Macau since August 2007.

Prior to joining our Group in November 2006, Mr. Howard was the
regional operations director at a company currently known as
Global Beauty International Management Limited (principally
engaged in health and lifestyle services) from July 2002 to March
2005 where he was primarily responsible for upgrading the
company’s portfolio of treatment centres throughout the Asia
region.

Mr. Howard graduated from University of the West of England,
Bristol in the United Kingdom with a bachelor’s degree of science
in quantity surveying in July 1993. Mr. Howard then completed a
course in advanced insolvency law and practice 1 from The
University of Southern Queensland in Australia in July 2000. He also
obtained a diploma in insolvency from the Hong Kong Society of
Accountants (currently known as Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants) in Hong Kong in November 2001.
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Mr. Steven Paul Smithers

Mr. Smithers, aged 54, was appointed as a Director on 13 April
2016 and redesignated as an executive Director and the chief
operations officer on 11 June 2016. Mr. Smithers is a director of
each of our subsidiaries. He is a member of the Remuneration
Committee and Nomination Committee. He is responsible for
corporate strategic planning, overall business development,
management and operations of our Group. Mr. Smithers’ interest in
the Shares are set out in the section headed “Directors’ and the
Chief Executive’s Interests or Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” of the Directors’ Report in this annual
report.

Mr. Smithers has over 27 years of work experience in the
construction industry in Hong Kong. Prior to joining our Group in
May 2006 as a senior project manager, he was last employed as a
compliance and co-ordination manager at group companies under
Paul Y. group (which was principally engaged in construction
services) from March 1996 to April 2006 and he was primarily
responsible for managing the tender and pre-qualification process
and general management activities. From October 1994 to
February 1996, Mr. Smithers worked as a quality assurance
consultant at Construction Quality Management Ltd. (principally
engaged in ISO accredited management systems), where he was
seconded to Paul Y. group.

Mr. Smithers graduated from Brighton Polytechnic (currently known
as the University of Brighton) in the United Kingdom with a
bachelor’s degree of science in building engineering and
management in July 1991. Mr. Smithers then obtained a master’s
degree of business administration from University of Leicester in the
United Kingdom in July 1998. Mr. Smithers was admitted as a
member and a fellow of the Chartered Institute of Building in the
United Kingdom in August 1997 and June 2014, respectively.
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Independent non-executive Directors
Mr. Robert Peter Andrews

Mr. Andrews, aged 64, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 20 September 2016. He is responsible for
providing independent advice to our Board. He is the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee, and a member of the Nomination
Committee and Audit Committee. Mr. Andrews has over 31 years
of experience in the construction industry. Mr. Andrews is the
director of Andrews Commercial Services Limited (principally
engaged in consultancy services in the construction industry) since
April 2018.

Mr. Andrews worked at Leighton Contractors (Asia) Limited
(principally engaged in construction) from January 1990 to March
2013, with his last position as the divisional commercial manager of
Hong Kong and Macau, where he was primarily responsible for
overseeing contractual and commercial aspect of the business unit.

Mr. Andrews obtained his diploma in quantity surveying from
Cauldon College (currently known as Stoke On Trent College) in the
United Kingdom in June 1979. He then obtained a certificate of
commercial mediation conducted by The Accord Group Australia in
association with the Mediation Council of the Hong Kong
International Arbitration Centre in Hong Kong in December 1998.

Mr. David John Kennedy

Mr. Kennedy, aged 53, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 30 June 2019. He is responsible for providing
independent advice to our Board. He is the chairman of the Audit
Committee, and a member of the Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee. Mr. Kennedy was the chief financial officer
and the chief operating officer of M.S. Asia Group from 2012 until
2019. He is currently a consultant at Hart Giles, Solicitors and
Notaries.

Mr. Kennedy was the chief operating officer and the chief executive
officer of Equititrust Limited between 2009 and 2011, the chief
operating officer of Octaviar Limited (formerly known as MFS
Limited) between 2007 and 2008, a senior manager, a partner and
the chief operating officer of RSM Hong Kong between 1997 and
2005, and a part-time lecturer in bankruptcy of Griffith University in
Australia between 1995 and 1996. He also worked for KPMG
between 1988 and 1996 with his last position being a manager.
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Mr. Kennedy obtained a degree of Master of Laws, a Bachelor’s
Degree in Laws and a Bachelor’s Degree in Business Accounting
from Queensland University of Technology in 2009, 2003 and
1989, respectively. He has been admitted as a solicitor in Hong
Kong since 2018, a solicitor in Queensland, Australia since 2006
and a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in Australia
(currently known as Chartered Accountants Australia and New
Zealand) since 1994,

Mr. Martin Woods

Mr. Woods, aged 61, was appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 4 October 2021. He is responsible for
providing independent advice to our Board. He is a member of
each of the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Nomination Committee. He is a member of The Royal Institution of
Chartered Surveyors in United Kingdom since January 1985. Mr.
Woods has over 31 years of work experience in the project
management field.

Mr. Woods has established JinWoods Limited in 2020 to provide
business consulting, coaching and mentoring to senior
professionals and companies operating in the real estate and
construction sectors. From September 2007 to December 2019,
Mr. Woods worked at CBRE Limited with last position as the Senior
Managing Director, Asia Pacific in Global Workplace Solutions
Department. From January 2003 to September 2007, he worked at
Jones Lang LaSalle Limited with his last position as National
Director. From January 1995 to December 2001, Mr. Woods
worked at Wayfoong Property Limited (a subsidiary of The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation, a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 5) as Project Manager.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT
Mr. Kwan John Lau

Mr. Lau, aged 54, first joined our Group in June 2001, and is
currently the tendering director of our Group. He is responsible for
overseeing tenders and recruitment of project-related staff.

Mr. Lau has over 27 years of work experience in the areas of
property development and fitting-out. Prior to joining our Group, he
worked as a project manager for L.P. Contractors & Construction
Co., (H.K) Ltd. (principally engaged in interior decoration business)
from July 1998 to June 2001 where he was primarily responsible
for the overall management of the company. From July 1996 to
July 1998, he worked as a project manager at Global Top Design &
Engineering Ltd. (principally engaged in interior fitting-out business)
where he was primarily responsible for fitting-out project
management. From August 1992 to April 1994, Mr. Lau worked as
the site supervisor at Interior Contract International Limited
(principally engaged in fitting-out, decoration and contracting)
where he was primarily responsible for fitting-out project
management.

Mr. Lau graduated with a bachelor’s degree of engineering in
industrial and civil engineering from Hunan University in the PRC in
July 1990. He then graduated with a master’s degree of science in
facility management from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
Hong Kong in December 2005.
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Mr. Siu Hong Lui

Mr. Lui, aged 47, first joined our Group in September 2005, and is
currently the regional director of our Group. He is responsible for
overseeing the Macau operations of our Group.

Mr. Lui has over 21 years of work experience in the construction
industry. Prior to joining our Group, Mr. Lui worked as a quantity
surveyor for Paul Y. Construction Company, Limited from May
2001 to February 2005. He worked as an assistant quantity
surveyor in Gammon Construction Limited and Kier Hong Kong
Limited (both principally engaged in civil construction works) from
June 2000 to November 2000 and from August 1998 to July 1999,
respectively. Mr. Lui worked at Universal Dockyard, Limited with his
last position as the assistant quantity surveyor (principally engaged
in marine and civil construction works) from October 1994 to May
1996 where he was primarily responsible for project budget
planning and project subcontracting.

Mr. Lui was awarded a certificate in building studies from the
Vocational Training Council for completing a course at Morrison Hill
Technical Institute (currently known as the Hong Kong Institute of
Vocational Education (Morrison Hill)) in Hong Kong in July 1997. He
then obtained a higher diploma in building and construction from
City University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in November 2000.
Subsequently, Mr. Lui graduated with a bachelor’s degree of
science in construction management from University of
Wolverhampton in the United Kingdom in October 2005, before
attaining a master’s degree of science in construction law and
dispute resolution from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
Hong Kong in October 2008.
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Mr. Wai Fung Kong

Mr. Kong, aged 486, first joined our Group in December 2009, and
is currently the commercial director of our Group. He is responsible
for overseeing the commercial department of our Group.

Mr. Kong has over 19 years of work experience in the field of
quantity surveying. He worked as a project quantity surveyor for
Chun Wo Construction and Engineering Company Limited,
principally engaged in construction, from May 2009 to November
2009. Mr. Kong worked as a quantity surveying consultant for
Rick’s Management Consultancy Limited (principally engaged in
quantity surveying consultancy services) from October 2006 to
March 2009. Mr. Kong worked as a project quantity surveyor for
New House Construction Co., Ltd, principally engaged in
construction services, from June 2005 to September 2006. He
worked as an assistant quantity surveyor at D. G. Jones & Partners
(H.K.) Ltd. and then as a quantity surveyor at Northcroft Hong Kong
Ltd., both principally engaged in construction consultancy services,
from July 2001 to April 2002 and from July 2002 to August 2004,
respectively.

Mr. Kong graduated with a bachelor’s degree of science in quantity
surveying and a master’s degree of engineering in building
engineering from City University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in
November 2001. He was elected as a professional member of the
Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and was certified as a
registered professional surveyor in the quantity surveying division
by the Surveyors Registration Board in February 2010 and April
2013, respectively.

Ms. Wai Che Rosanna Chu

Ms. Chu, aged 55, first joined our Group in December 2003, and is
currently the chief financial officer of our Group. She is responsible
for overseeing the financial and accounting functions of our Group.

Ms. Chu has over 30 years of work experience in the field of
accounting. Prior to joining our Group, from July 2002 to June
2003, Ms. Chu worked as a senior manager in the finance
department of PricewaterhouseCoopers. From April 1996 to June
2002, she worked as a manager in the finance department of
Arthur Andersen & Co. From September 1990 to March 1996, she
was employed by Ernst & Young, with her last position as manager
in the audit department.
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Ms. Chu graduated with a bachelor’s degree of commerce from
The University of Manitoba in Canada in May 1989. She is a
member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
certified in July 1995, and an associate of the Hong Kong Society
of Accountants (currently known as Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants) certified in December 1995.

Mr. Jian Song Gan

Mr. Gan, aged 46, first joined our Group in May 2020, and is
currently the managing director of Building Solutions Limited.

Mr. Gan has over 21 years of work experience in the areas of
innovation, business strategy and sales management. From 2009
to 2017, he was the Asia managing director of Humanscale Asia
Limited. Mr. Gan was a country manager with Jeb Greater China
Limited from 2008 to 2009. He was a director and general manager
of Yichang Xin Xing Corporation Limited, a sino-foreign joint venture
producing high quality building materials, from 2003 to 2007. From
1999 to 2002, he was a consultant and project manager at
Syntegra Pte. Ltd..

Mr. Gan graduated with a bachelor’s degree of engineering in
mechanical engineering from Imperial College of Science and
Technology and Medicine, University of London in the United
Kingdom in 1998. He is a RESET Healthy Buildings Standard
Accredited Professional.

COMPANY SECRETARY
Mr. Yun Wah Man

Mr. Man, aged 39, was appointed as the company secretary of our
Company on 11 June 2016. He was the principal and head of
corporate advisory division of Dominic K.F. Chan & Co., and a
director of In.Corp Corporate Services (HK) Limited. Mr. Man has
over ten years of experience in corporate services.

Mr. Man is an associate member of The Hong Kong Chartered
Governance Institute (formerly known as The Hong Kong Institute
of Chartered Secretaries) and The Chartered Governance Institute
(formerly known as The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and
Administrators) certified in March 2015.

Mr. Man obtained a bachelor’s degree of arts in business
administration and management from University of Huddersfield in
the United Kingdom in March 2010 and a master’s degree of
corporate governance from The Open University of Hong Kong in
Hong Kong in November 2014.
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PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are to act as a contractor
focusing on providing renovation services as a main contractor for
property projects in the private sector in Hong Kong and Macau,
strategic investments and provision of products and services with a
focus on air quality, energy efficiency and modern sustainable
building materials.

BUSINESS REVIEW
General

Further discussion and analysis of the Group’s principal activities as
required by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622
of the Laws of Hong Kong), including a business review of the
Group for the year and an indication of likely future developments in
the Group’s business, can be found in the Management Discussion
and Analysis as set out on pages 16 to 24 of this annual report. An
analysis of the Group’s performance during the year ended 31
March 2022 using financial key performance indicators is provided
in the Financial Summary on page 193 of this annual report. These
discussions form part of this directors’ report.

Principal risks and uncertainties

As the contracting business of the Group is project-based,
profitability of the Group is dependent on a consistent stream of
tender opportunities.

Upon converting these tender opportunities to awarded contracts,
the importance of a stringent project management system comes
into play so that costs can be controlled, income can be secured
and positive cashflow can be maintained.

From a risk perspective, a high level of importance is placed on our
tender strategies, our prudent execution of the works and the
diligent monitoring and controlling of the commercial aspects of our
projects.

The Group is also exposed to equity price risk through its
investments in listed securities. The management manages this
exposure by maintaining a portfolio of investment with different risk
profiles. The Group’s equity price risk is concentrated on listed
securities in London.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Environmental policies and performance

The Group is committed to its corporate and social responsibility in
promoting a sustainable and environmentally friendly environment.
We strive to minimise our environmental impact in our daily course
of business. The Group’s in-house guidelines contain measures
and work procedures governing environmental protection
compliance that are required to be followed by the Group’s
employees, suppliers and subcontractors. Such measures and
procedures included air pollution control, noise control and waste
disposal.

Further details of the Group’s environmental policies and
performance are set out in the Environmental Social and
Governance Report of the Company (the “ESG Report”) in this
annual report.

Compliance with laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group

The Group and its business are governed by certain laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group. To the best
of the Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, during the year
ended 31 March 2022, there was no material breach of or non-
compliance with the applicable laws and regulations by the Group.
The Company has complied in material respects with the relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the business
and operation of the Group.

Key relationships with major stakeholders

The Group fully understands that its employees, customers and
suppliers are the key to our sustainable and stable development.
We are committed to establishing a close and stable relationship
with our employees, enhancing cooperation with our suppliers and
providing high-quality construction services to our customers so as
to ensure the Group’s sustainable development.

Employees

Employees are regarded as the most important and valuable assets
of the Group. The Group ensures all staff are reasonably
remunerated and provides them with health and safety and other
developmental training and has proper whistle blowing procedures
in place for our employees to follow without fear of reprisal of
receiving any negative impacts.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (CONTINUED)
Key relationships with major stakeholders (Continued)
Customers

The Group’s principal customers include a number of highly
reputable organisations and commercial enterprises in the private
sector in Hong Kong and Macau, including multi-national banks,
hotel and casino operators, a racing and betting operator and
property developers. The Group have established stable and long
business relationships with some of our major customers with our
long years of operating history built up a strong business network
of customers and other professional consultants, which has
consistently presented us with business opportunities.

Subcontractors and Suppliers

Our major suppliers include subcontractors and suppliers of
materials. The Group firmly believes that its subcontractors and
suppliers are equally important in cost control and increasing its
bargaining power on procurement of materials, which further
secures its competitiveness when bidding for tenders. The Group
proactively communicates with its subcontractors and suppliers to
ensure they are committed to delivering high-quality and
sustainable products and services. Unless the customers require
the Group to engage subcontractors and suppliers nominated by
them, the Group will select subcontractors and suppliers from its
approved lists of subcontractors and suppliers. In addition, during
the continuance of the contracts with the subcontractors, the
Group will provide them with its internal guidelines on safety and
environmental issues and require them to follow. The Group
effectively implements the subcontractor assessment process to
monitor the performance of its subcontractors by conducting
regular site visits, evaluation on the performance of the contract
and other measures.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

On 18 May 2022, the Company, through its wholly-owned
subsidiary as the purchaser, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with the vendor to acquire a property located in Dublin,
Ireland at a consideration of EUR13,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$113,000,000). Further details of the acquisition
were disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 18 May
2022 and circular dated 29 June 2022. The transaction was
completed on 26 May 2022.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company adopts a dividend policy to allow the Shareholders
to enjoy the sharing of the profits of the Company while retaining
adequate reserves and working capital for future growth and
development. In proposing any dividend pay out, the Board shall
also consider variety factors, including but not limited to the
Group’s actual and expected financial results, financial position of
the Group, expected working capital requirement, future
development/investment plans, general economic conditions,
retained earnings and distributable reserves and any other factors
that the Board considers relevant. The Company does not have
any fixed dividend distribution ratio.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2022 are set
out in the consolidated statements of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 107 of this report.

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend of HK1.0
cent per Share for the year ended 31 March 2022, to be payable
on or about Friday, 7 October 2022. Based on 800,000,000 Shares
in issue as at the date of this report, it is expected that the total
amount of final dividend payable to the Shareholders is HK$8.0
million in aggregate for the year ended 31 March 2022, subject to
the approval of the Shareholders at the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 9 September 2022
(the “2022 AGM").

An interim dividend of HK1.0 cent per Share, amounting to HK8.0
million was paid to the Shareholders on 28 December 2021.

As far as the Company was aware, as at the date of this report,
there had been no arrangement under which any Shareholder has
waived, or agreed to waive, any dividends proposed to be
distributed for the year ended 31 March 2022.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For determining the Shareholders’ entitiement to attend and vote at
the 2022 AGM, the register of members of the Company will be
closed from Tuesday, 6 September 2022 to Friday, 9 September
2022 (both days inclusive), during which period no transfer of
shares of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify for
attending and voting at the 2022 AGM, all transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, must be lodged
with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer
office, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong (as from 15 August
2022, 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Admiralty,
Hong Kong), for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 5
September 2022.

Subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the 2022 AGM, the
proposed final dividend will be payable on or about Friday, 7
October 2022 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Thursday, 22 September
2022. To ascertain the entitlement of the Shareholders to the
proposed final dividend, the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Tuesday, 20 September 2022 to Thursday, 22
September 2022 (both days inclusive), during which period no
transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to
qualify for the proposed final dividend, all duly completed transfer
forms accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and
transfer office, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong (as from 15
August 2022, 17/F, Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road,
Admiralty, Hong Kong), not later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 19
September 2022.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year ended 31 March 2022 are set out in note 24 to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2022.
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RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended 31
March 2022 are set out in the consolidated statements of changes
in equity on page 109 of this annual report and note 25 to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2022. As at 31 March 2022, the reserves of the Company available
for distribution, as calculated under the provision of section 79B of
the Companies Ordinance, and in accordance with the Companies
Law Cap.22 of Cayman Islands, was approximately HK$142.9
million inclusive of share premium and retained earnings.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year ended 31 March 2022 are set out in note 15
to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
March 2022 of this annual report.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last four financial years is set out on page 193 of this
annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 March 2022.

DONATIONS

Donations made by the Group during the year ended 31 March
2022 amounted to HK$210,000.
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 March 2022 and up to the
date of this report were:

Name Position

Mr. Neil David Howard Executive Director, chairman of the

Board and chief executive officer

Executive Director and
chief operations officer

Mr. Steven Paul Smithers

Mr. Richard Gareth Williams
(stepped down on 4 October 2021)

Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Robert Peter Andrews Independent non-executive Director

Mr. David John Kennedy Independent non-executive Director

Mr. Martin Woods
(appointed on 4 October 2021)

Independent non-executive Director

The biographical details of the Directors and senior management of
the Company are set out in “Biographies of the Directors and
Senior Management” in this report.

In accordance with the Articles, Mr. Neil David Howard, Mr. Steven
Paul Smithers and Mr. Martin Woods shall retire by rotation at the
2022 AGM and they being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the 2022
AGM has an unexpired service contract which is not determinable
by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year without
payment of compensation, other than under normal statutory
obligations.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS AND CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this report, no transactions, arrangements or
contracts of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year ended 31 March 2022.
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DIRECTORS’ AND THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS OR SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES,

UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2022, the Directors and the chief executive had the
following interests in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures A &) -
of the Company, its Group members and/or associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO, as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the

Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were as follows:

The Company

A 50 VR - BRI REEES - BARLZAR
N AEIMRIERE 7 & B E 1R 011 55 352 & %TEE’JZE.:EH%Z
RI5 EAR R8T PRSI ETRIZASTTHE AR
B R PrE R N T
b NN

Approximate

W_E::¢*H*+ H ZEEKEE
HEBREQARLE S EIE(TERAEFLFR

EERFETBRAERRKRS - HEARORE
EEPHNEZIARE

TTBRABRA

percentage of
shareholding in

Name of Relevant company the total issued
Director(s)/ Capacity/ (including associated Number share capital
chief executive nature of interest corporation) of Shares' of our Company
RAEATE BT
BEE IE NG| RABEHRH
THRABHE B RmtE (BFEMEEEE) BRHHE BARERD L
Mr. Neil David Howard Interest in controlled Brilliant Blue Sky Limited 393,376,000 Shares 49.17%
(“Mr. Howard") corporation (“Brilliant Blue Sky”)
Neil David Howard %t 4 THEEER Briliant Blue Sky Limited 393,376,000 % A1
([Howard %4 )2 ([ Brilliant Blue Sky )
Mr. Howard Beneficial owner N/A 14,624,000 Shares 1.83%
Howard %t 4 EnBA TEA 14,624,000 B A% 15
Mr. Steven Paul Smithers Interest in controlled Breadnbutter Holdings Limited 174,888,000 Shares 21.86%
(“Mr. Smithers”) corporation (‘Breadnbutter Holdings”)
Steven Paul Smithers 4t 4 TP RERER Breadnbutter Holdings Limited 174,888,000 iz #% (7
([Smithers %4 |)° ([ Breadnbutter Holdings |)
Mr. Smithers Beneficial owner N/A 9,112,000 Shares 1.14%
Smithers 5t & EnHEAA NEH 9,112,000 B
Mr. David John Kennedy Interest of spouse N/A 8,000,000 Shares 1.00%
(“Mr. Kennedy")*
David John Kennedy 5& 4 [ TER 8,000,000 f& AR 17
(Kennedy %4 |)*
Notes: HisE
(1) All the above Shares are held in long position. (1) UEMBRHHUUGERS -

2 Brilliant Blue Sky, wholly-owned by Mr. Howard, held 393,376,000 )
Shares. Mr. Howard is deemed to be interested in the 393,376,000

Shares pursuant to the SFO.

(©)] Breadnbutter Holdings, wholly-owned by Mr. Smithers, held 174,888,000 (t©)]
Shares. Mr. Smithers is deemed to be interested in the 174,888,000

Shares pursuant to the SFO.

4) The spouse of Mr. Kennedy held 8,000,000 Shares. Mr. Kennedy is 4)
deemed to be interested in the 8,000,000 Shares pursuant to the SFO.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 March 2022, so far as was known to the Directors, the
following persons/entities (not being the Director or chief executive)
had, or deemed to have, interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company, its Group members and/or
associated corporations which would fall to be disclosed to the
Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO, or which recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

FERRRKRG  HEROREEEPHE

BmRAR

R-ZZEZ__F=A=+—HB ®BREBFHRAM ATA
T/ER(WHEERFETBAR)REART - HEE
B R E R, SRR E B B AR () SRR (T - BER K
WRRIEARIFE S LB GG XVERE 2 K5 370 |6
R R R ER AL AR R RIR AR E 75 N A B 151
FIBOIHRATEFENTLMOERIAR

Approximate

percentage of
shareholding in

the total issued

Number share capital of

Name Capacity/nature of interest of Shares! our Company
RAEDABE BT
IR A BEEH
wE /AR B REEME RAEHET HORERDL
Brilliant Blue Sky Beneficial interest 393,376,000 Shares 49.17%
Brilliant Blue Sky BEnEn 393,376,000 A% A% 17
Ms. Shuen Jolie Chung Howard? Interest of spouse 408,000,000 Shares 51.00%
EEmt? iR E 408,000,000 % % 17
Breadnbutter Holdings Beneficial interest 174,888,000 Shares 21.86%
Breadnbutter Holdings Emln 174,888,000 A& A% 15
Ms. Yuk Fan Joe Lam?® Interest of spouse 184,000,000 Shares 23.00%
MEHLZ L3 Ao iEiE e 184,000,000 %A% 15
Notes: MiE
(1) All the above Shares are held in long position. (1) UREMBRHHAUFERE -
(2)  Ms. Shuen Jolie Chung Howard, the spouse of Mr. Howard, is deemedto  (2)  #&liE & £ (Howard 55 A ) B 48 ) IR IR 55 55 S A E R G 1R &

be interested in the 14,624,000 Shares held by Mr. Howard and the
393,376,000 Shares held by Mr. Howard through his controlled
corporation, Birilliant Blue Sky, pursuant to the SFO.

) Ms. Yuk Fan Joe Lam, the spouse of Mr. Smithers, is deemed to be
interested in the 9,112,000 Shares held by Mr. Smithers and the
174,888,000 Shares held by Mr. Smithers through his controlled
corporation, Breadnbutter Holdings, pursuant to the SFO.

P Howard %t 4 15 5 #9 14,624,000 B 3% {5 K2 Howard %t 4 i
i H 4% E Brilliant Blue Sky 15 74 #9 393,376,000 A% % 15
BEER -

(38)  #REZ 2zt (Smithers S £ MRS ) IRIEFE FH K HIE K HIIR
77 Smithers 5 4 35 4 799,112,000 A% J% 1 & Smithers %t 4
% 3B H & ¥ % 8 Breadnbutter Holdings 5 & #J 174,888,000
[ vtk ¥ ok £
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of
the whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company
were entered into or existed during the year ended 31 March 2022.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

In the year ended 31 March 2022, purchases from the Group’s
largest supplier accounted for approximately 10.4% of the total
purchase cost and the aggregate purchases from its top five
suppliers in aggregate accounted for approximately 26.5% of the
total purchase cost.

Sales to the Group’s largest customer accounted for approximately
19.1% of the total revenue from external customer and the
aggregate sales to its top five customers in aggregate accounted
for approximately 62.4% of the total revenue from external
customer.

None of the Directors, any of their close associates or any
Shareholders (which to the knowledge of our Directors, own more
than 5% of the issued share capital of the Company) had any
interest in any of our five largest suppliers and customers during the
year ended 31 March 2022.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles,
although there are no restrictions against such rights under the
laws in the Cayman Islands.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company conditionally approved and adopted the Share
Option Scheme on 20 September 2016 by passing of a written
resolution of the then shareholders of the Company. The Share
Option Scheme became effective on the Listing Date and will
remain in force until the tenth anniversary of the Listing Date. No
option under the Share Option Scheme had been granted during
the year ended 31 March 2022 and up to the date of this report.

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the
Company to grant options to Eligible Participants (as defined below)
as incentives or rewards for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Company and/or any of its subsidiaries.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
Eligible persons

Under the Share Option Scheme, eligible persons include any full-
time or part-time employees, potential employees, executives or
officers (including executive, non-executive and independent non-
executive Directors) of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, and
any suppliers, customers, agents and advisers who, in the sole
opinion of the Board, has contributed or will contribute to the
Company and/or any of its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Eligible
Participants”).

Maximum number of Shares

The maximum number of Shares pursuant to which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not exceed
80,000,000 Shares, which represented 10% of the then issued
share capital of the Company as at the Listing Date and the date of
this annual report. This limit may be renewed at any time provided
that the new limit must not exceed 10% of the total number of
Shares in issue as at the date of the Shareholders’ approval for the
renewal.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the Share Option
Scheme, the Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all
outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under the
Share Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of our
Company at any time must not exceed 30% of the Shares in issue
from time to time. No options may be granted under any schemes
of our Company if such grant will result in this 30% limit being
exceeded.

Maximum entitlement of each Eligible Participant

Unless approved by the Shareholders at general meeting, the
maximum entitlerment of each Eligible Participant is that the total
number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the
outstanding options granted and to be granted to such Eligible
Participant (including exercised, outstanding and cancelled options)
under the Share Option Scheme and other scheme(s) of the
Company in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the
issued share capital of the Company at the date of grant.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
Option period

An option may be exercised in whole or in part in accordance with
the terms of the Share Option Scheme, during a period notified or
to be notified by the Board, provided that such period of time does
not exceed 10 years commencing on the date on which the option
is granted.

Minimum period for which an option must be held before
it is exercised

Each grantee under the Share Option Scheme shall be entitled to
exercise his/her option in the manner set out in his/her offer
document. The period within which an option may be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme is determined by the Board at its
absolute discretion, provided that such period is consistent with
any other terms and condition of the Share Option Scheme.

Payment on acceptance of the option

A nominal consideration of HK$1.00 is payable on or before the last
day for acceptance of the option as set out in the offer document.

Basis of determining the subscription price

The subscription price for Shares under the Share Option Schemes
shall be at the absolute discretion of the Board, provided that it is
not less than the highest of (a) the official closing price of the
Shares as stated in daily quotation sheets of the Stock Exchange
on the offer date; (b) the average of the official closing prices of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets of the Stock
Exchange for the five business days immediately preceding the
offer date; and (c) the nominal value of a Share.

The remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme remains in force for 10 years from the
Listing Date and ending on the tenth anniversary of the Listing Date
(both days inclusive), unless otherwise terminated, cancelled or
amended.
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EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory Provident
Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) in Hong
Kong under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
(Chapter 485 of the Laws of Hong Kong) for employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions are made
monthly at 5%, subject to a cap of HK1,500 of the employees’
basic salaries by each of the Group and its employees and are
charged to profit or loss as they become payable in accordance
with the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest fully
with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
Particulars of the employee retirement benefits of the Group are set
out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 March 2022. The Group’s contributions vest fully with the
employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme. Accordingly
there were no forfeited contributions available for the Group to
reduce its existing level of contributions to the MPF Scheme.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the date of this report and based on the information that is
publicly available to the Company and to the best knowledge of the
Directors, the Company has maintained the minimum public float of
25% as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 have
been audited by BDO Limited who will retire and, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-appointment at the annual general meeting
of the Company. A resolution for the re-appointment of BDO
Limited as auditor of the Company will be proposed at the 2022
AGM. There has been no change in auditor since the Listing Date.

RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY’S
SECURITIES

At no time during the year ended 31 March 2022 was the
Company, or any of its holding companies or subsidiaries, or any of
its fellow subsidiaries, a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors or chief executive of the Company or their respective
associates (as defined under the Listing Rules) to have any right to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debenture of, the Company or any other body corporate.
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EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2022, save for the Share Option
Scheme, the Company did not enter into any equity-linked
agreements in respect of Shares.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

During the year ended 31 March 2022, none of the Directors and
directors of the Company’s subsidiaries, or their respective
associates had interests in businesses, which compete or are likely
to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the businesses of the
Company and its subsidiaries as required to be disclosed pursuant
to the Listing Rules.

CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS
IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Saved as the related party transactions disclosed in note 28 to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2022 in this report, no Controlling Shareholder had a material
interest, either directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance
(whether for the provision of services to the Company or not) to the
business of the Group to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the year ended 31 March 2022.

CHANGES IN DIRECTOR’S BIOGRAPHICAL
DETAILS UNDER RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE
LISTING RULES

There has been no other change in Directors’ biographical details
which is required to be disclosed pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules during the year ended 31 March 2022 and up to the
date of this report.
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NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

In order to avoid potential conflicts of interests with our Company,
our Controlling Shareholders, namely Mr. Neil David Howard and
Brilliant Blue Sky Limited, have entered into the Deed, pursuant to
which they have undertaken, among others, not to compete with
the business of the Group. Details of the Deed are set out in the
section headed “Relationship with our Controlling Shareholders —
Deed of Non-competition” in the Prospectus.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has made a written
confirmation to the Board in respect of their compliance with the
undertakings in the Deed during the year ended 31 March 2022.

Upon receiving the confirmations from the Controlling Shareholders,
the independent non-executive Directors had reviewed the same as
part of the annual review process and confirmed that the
Controlling Shareholders had complied with the Deed during the
year ended 31 March 2022.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to applicable laws, the Directors shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company
from and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and
expenses which they or any of them may incur or sustain by or by
reason of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the
execution of their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices,
pursuant to the Articles. Such provisions were in force throughout
the year ended 31 March 2022 and are currently in force. The
Company has arranged for appropriate insurance cover for
Directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions that may be brought
against the Directors.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief on taxation available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holdings of the Shares. If the
Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or exercising of any
rights in relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult their
professional advisers.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of the related party transactions undertaken in the ordinary
course of business by the Group during the year ended 31 March
2022 are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2022 in this report.

The related party transactions set out in note 28 to the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2022 constitute
“continuing connected transactions” (as defined under Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules) which are fully exempted from the disclosure
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group had not
conducted any “connected transaction” or “continuing connected
transaction” (as defined under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules)
which is subject to reporting and annual review requirements under
the Listing Rules.

All references above to other sections, reports or notes in this
annual report form part of this report.

On behalf of the Board
Neil David Howard
Chairman

Hong Kong, 30 June 2022
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The Company is committed to fulfilling its responsibilities to the
Shareholders and protecting and enhancing Shareholder value
through good corporate governance. The Company has developed
and implemented sound governance policies and measures, and
the Board is responsible for performing such corporate governance
duties. The Board will continue to review and monitor the corporate
governance of the Company with reference to the CG Code so as
to maintain a high standard of corporate governance of the
Company.

The Company confirms that, other than the deviation from Code
Provision A.2.1, the Company has complied with all the Code
Provisions throughout the year ended 31 March 2022.

Our Company complies with all the Code Provisions with the
exception of Code Provision A.2.1, which requires the roles of
chairman and chief executive be different individuals. Under Code
Provision A.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of chairman and chief
executive should be separate and should not be performed by the
same individual. Mr. Neil David Howard holds both positions. Mr.
Howard has been primarily responsible for overseeing our Group’s
general management and business development and for
formulating business strategies and policies for our business
management and operations since he joined our Group in 2006.
Taking into account the continuation of management and the
implementation of our business strategies, our Directors (including
our independent non-executive Directors) consider it is most
suitable for Mr. Howard to hold both the positions of chief executive
officer and the chairman of our Board and the present
arrangements are beneficial to and in the interests of our Company
and our Shareholders as a whole. Our Company will continue to
review and consider splitting the roles of chairman of the Board and
chief executive officer of our Company at a time when it is
appropriate and suitable by taking into account the circumstances
of our Group as a whole.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Responsibilities

The Board is charged with promoting the success of the Company
by directing and supervising its affairs. The Board has general
powers for the management and conduct of the Company’s
business. The day-to-day operations and management are delegated
by the Board to the management of the Company, who will
implement the strategy and direction as determined by the Board.

Composition

The Company is committed to the view that the Board should
include a balanced composition of executive and independent non-
executive Directors so that the Board has a strong independent
element, which can effectively exercise independent judgement.

Currently, the Board comprises two executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors:

The Composition of the Board during the year ended 31 March
2022 and up to the date of this annual report is as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Neil David Howard (Chairman and chief executive officer)
Mr. Steven Paul Smithers

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Richard Gareth Williams
(stepped down on 4 October 2021)
Mr. Robert Peter Andrews
Mr. David John Kennedy
Mr. Martin Woods
(appointed on 4 October 2021)

The biographical details of each of the Directors are set out in the
section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management”
of this report.
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Responsibilities of executive Directors

The executive Directors are responsible for the leadership and
control of the Company and overseeing the Group’s businesses
development, strategic formulation and are collectively responsible
for promoting the success of the Company by directing and
supervising its affairs.

Responsibilities of independent non-executive Directors

The independent non-executive Directors participate in the Board
meetings to bring in an independent judgment to bear on the issues
of strategy, policy, performance, accountability, resources, key
appointments and standards of conducts and scrutinise the
Company’s performance in achieving agreed corporate goals and
objectives. They are also responsible for ensuring a high standard
of financial and other mandatory reporting of the Board as well as
providing a balance in the Board in order to effectively exercise an
independent judgment on the corporate actions of the Company so
as to protect Shareholders’ interest and the overall interest of the
Group.

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2022, the Company had
three independent non-executive Directors, which met the
requirements of the Listing Rules that the number of independent
non-executive Directors must represent at least one-third of the
Board and should not be less than three, and that at least one of
the independent non-executive Directors has appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has made an
annual confirmation of independence in writing pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Board is satisfied that all the
independent non-executive Directors have been independent and
met the independence guidelines set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules during the year ended 31 March 2022 and up to the date of
this report.

Term of Directors

Each of the Directors has been appointed for an initial term of three
years commencing from their respective dates and shall continue
thereafter until it is terminated by either party by giving at least three
months’ prior notice in writing or otherwise in accordance with the
terms and conditions of the service contract and letter of
appointment entered between each of the Directors and the
Company.
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Remuneration

The Directors and senior management receive remuneration in the
form of salaries, allowances and other benefits, including our
contribution on defined contribution retirement plans.

The aggregate amount of remuneration (including salaries,
allowances, discretionary bonuses, other benefits and contributions
to pension schemes) paid or payable to the Directors for the year
ended 31 March 2022 was approximately HK$11.3 million.

The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference to
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors and performance of the Group.
Details of the remuneration of the Directors and senior management
for the year ended 31 March 2022 are set out in note 12 to the
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2022. In addition, pursuant to Code Provision B.1.5, the annual
remuneration of members of the senior management by band for
the year ended 31 March 2022 is set out below:

Remuneration of the senior management by bands

A

EXLRAEEBUFE RMEREMEN(BREEHE
SR IRET 30 B A MR EGE B -

HEZ-—FZA=+—HIFE SNXENES
R B (BEHE 28 BB - EaEf Rk
BRIRETEEFONA113EEBT -

BEEFMSBA B LLRA R - EEATRIREE
FLRBREUALCAEERBMEE BHE_T-__F=H
T+ RALEENEESReAEREEFIFEIERERE
T A+ BHULFENGRATBERERME
12 o WA IRIBEFRIEXBAS BREREKEEZ
—ECCEZ AT+ B IEFENFEEFRERE D
o

B BB 19 % AR T B B

Number of
senior
management
=&
BEEEAK

Nil-HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001-HK$ 1,500,000
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000
HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000
HK$3,000,001-HK$3,500,000

Save as disclosed in this report, (i) no remuneration was paid to the
Directors or the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join, or upon joining, our Group; (i) no compensation was paid to,
or receivable by, the Directors or past Directors or the five highest
paid individuals during the year ended 31 March 2022 for the loss
of office as director of any member of the Group or of any other
office in connection with the management of the affairs of any
member of the Group; and (i) none of the Directors waived any
emoluments during the same period.

Save as disclosed in this report, no Director or none of the five
highest paid individuals has been paid in cash or shares or
otherwise by any person either to induce him to become, or to
qualify him as a Director, or otherwise for service rendered by him
in connection with the promotion or formation of us.
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Directors’ induction and continuing professional
development

Each of the Directors, namely, Mr. Neil David Howard, Mr. Steven
Paul Smithers, Mr. Robert Peter Andrews, Mr. David John Kennedy
and Mr. Martin Woods had participated in continuous professional
development during the year ended 31 March 2022 by reading
materials relating to duties and responsibilities of directors of a
listed company in Hong Kong, the Listing Rules, anti-corruption
and other applicable laws and regulations. The Company arranges
suitable training for all the Directors in order to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills as part of their continuous professional
development.

Meetings of Board and Board committees and Directors’
attendance records

Notice of regular Board meetings is served on all the Directors at
least 14 days before the meeting. For other Board and Board
committee meetings, reasonable notice is generally given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information are sent to all Directors at least three days before each
Board or Board committee meeting to keep Directors apprised of
the latest developments and financial position of the Company and
to enable them to make informed decisions. The Board and each
Director also have separate and independent access to the Senior
Management of the Company where necessary.

The minutes of Board and Board committee meetings are kept by
the company secretary and are open for inspection by any Director.
The minutes of Board and Board committee meetings record in
sufficient detail the matters considered and decisions reached,
including any concerns raised by Directors or dissenting views
expressed. Draft and final versions of minutes are sent to all
Directors for their comment and records respectively, within a
reasonable time after the meetings are held.
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During the year ended 31 March 2022, one general meeting was
held while four Board meetings were held whereat the Board,
among others, (i) reviewed and approved the financial results for
the year ended 31 March 2021; (ii) reviewed and approved the
financial results for the six months ended 30 September 2021; (i)
considered and approved the overall strategies and policies of the
Group; and (iv) considered and approved the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and the senior
management. The attendance of individual Directors at the general
meeting and Board meetings is set out in the following table:

BHE_Z-_—#=-A=+—HULFE AQFHET—K
BREAE MEFCNBRTUAEESSHEN(EFE
B )BHERNEBE-_S-_—F=RA=+—RHILFE
MBS EE  ((BEEALERE T -—FNLAZ+H
1IENE AP FSEELE ¢ (i) B B M E R EE B R K
HE RiWEBRERENATEERSATEEN
HEE - EARESHERREASGREZTS DR
HRTR:

Attended/
Eligible to attend
BHE SEREHE
2021
Annual Board
General Meeting Meetings
—E-_—F
Name of Directors EEpE BREBEAE Exgea
Mr. Neil David Howard Neil David Howard 5t 4 11 4/4
Mr. Steven Paul Smithers Steven Paul Smithers 5t 4 11 4/4
Mr. Richard Gareth Williams Richard Gareth Williams % 4
(stepped down on 4 October 2021) (RZE-_—F+AWARERE) 0/1 11
Mr. Robert Peter Andrews Robert Peter Andrews 5t 4 11 4/4
Mr. David John Kennedy David John Kennedy %t & 1/1 4/4
Mr. Martin Woods Martin Woods %t &
(appointed on 4 October 2021) (R=ZB=—FTANBEZAE) - 3/3

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
Code Provision D.3.1. The Board reviewed the Company’s
corporate governance policies and practices, training and
continuous professional development of Directors and Senior
Management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the
Model Code and written employee guidelines, and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this corporate
governance report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has established three board committees, namely the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Each of the Board committees operates under its
terms of reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees
are available on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

Audit committee

We have established the Audit Committee in compliance with Rule
3.21 of the Listing Rules on 20 September 2016. The Audit
Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. David John
Kennedy (Chairman), Mr. Robert Peter Andrews and Mr. Martin
Woods.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include:

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, approving
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external
auditor, and considering any questions of resignation or
dismissal of that auditor;

° reviewing and monitoring the external auditor’s independence
and objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in
accordance with applicable standards;

° developing and implementing a policy on the engagement of
an external auditor to supply non-audit services and reporting
the same to the Board, and identifying and making
recommendations on any matters in respect of which it
considers that action or improvement is needed;

° discussing with the external auditor before the audit
commences, the nature and scope of the audit and reporting
obligations, and ensuring proper co-ordination where more
than one audit firm is involved;

° discussing problems and reservations arising from the interim
and final audits, and any matters the external auditor may
wish to discuss (in the absence of the Senior Management
where necessary);
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monitoring the integrity of the Company’s financial statements,
annual report and accounts, half-year report and, if prepared
for publication, quarterly reports, and reviewing significant
financial reporting judgements contained in them;

reviewing the Company’s financial controls, risk management
and internal control systems;

discussing the risk management and internal control systems
with the Senior Management to ensure that the Senior
Management has performed its duties in establishing and
maintaining effective systems, including matters on adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget of the Company’s accounting and
financial reporting function;

considering major investigations findings on risk management
and internal control matters as delegated by the Board or on
its own initiative and the Senior Management’s response to
these findings;

where an internal audit function exists, ensuring co-ordination
between the internal and external auditors, ensuring that the
internal audit function is adequately resourced and has
appropriate standing within the Company, and reviewing and
monitoring its effectiveness;

reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

reviewing the external auditor’'s management letter, any
material queries raised by such auditor to the Senior
Management about the accounting records, financial
accounts or systems of control and the Senior Management’s
response;

ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’'s management letter;

reporting to the Board on the matters set out in the Audit
Committee’s terms of reference;

reviewing arrangements employees of the Company can use,
in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters and
ensuring that proper arrangements are in place for fair and
independent investigation of these matters and for
appropriate follow-up action;

IBI Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021/2022

ERARAMBHRE FERSNERE - ¥FE
HBER(MBTEMRR) TERESHZTEME - I
EHE P AEEAY R

MDA MM R - BB EE R B
=N

HEREREN RRERERENLAREIZEGE - M
REREEECETRAERY LERFAUNES
BREARAAEEST MMEHRBETENER
BTERELES HIRENFEERETRE ¢

HEEFEEZATHERERAHRAREERAR
EREENEARAEHERALSREREHER
HAEHEROEIE

TR E M EBBAZ B AL » B HE(R 0 30 1% BB B2 SN EE
ZEEN AR - RN EZIPIERE RS
BERENARRANEEBEE A - Wi RER
HEAHME

NS

EHNARENMBERETRELER

ERIMNEZBEEIRE N - RRBEASRE
BERHEMNEBELHE MEKRE EES
ERHEAREAULSREIEENEE

BRESE S KL EINEZEAEIEE R FRE
MEH :

AEFSERECZESREBEMIER

e NN EEB A BIARE IR B A TS R
ABEENEMEENEETNETROZE I
RREHESELHEARTFBIMBAEEHREER
REUBE RETH



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
EREBRE

acting as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

establishing a whistle-blowing policy and system for
employees of the Company and those who deal with the
Company (e.g. customers and suppliers) to raise concerns, in
confidence, with the Audit Committee about possible
improprieties in any matter related to the Company;

developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance and making
recommendations to the Board;

reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of the Directors and the Senior
Management;

reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and
the Directors;

reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and
the disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report in the
Company’s annual report;

reviewing on-going connected transactions of the Company
and ensuring compliance with the terms of approval by the
Shareholders;

reviewing the findings of internal investigations and the Senior
Management’s responses in relation to any suspected fraud
or irregularities or failures of internal controls or infringement
of laws, rules and regulations; and

considering any other topics as determined by the Board.
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During the year ended 31 March 2022, two Audit Committee
meetings were held whereat the Audit Committee, among others, (i)
reviewed the unaudited consolidated financial results of the
Company for the six months ended 30 September 2021; and (ii)
reviewed the consolidated financial statements of the Company for
the year ended 31 March 2021. The attendance of individual
members is set out in the following table:

BE_ T _F=A=1+—BHILFE BRZEGH]T
MREHNA(EPEE) () EHNARTABRE_ZE_—FA
A=t HIEANEANREELGE VRS - R () FEH
ARABE-_T - —F=ZA=T—HLEFENGEENE
& o ERIKE R FECHEN TR -

Attended/
Name of committee members Eligible to attend
ZEEHNERR BHE SEEHE
Mr. David John Kennedy David John Kennedy %t 4 2/2
Mr. Richard Gareth Williams Richard Gareth Williams %t 4= 1/1

(stepped down on 4 October 2021) (RZZ2E——F+AWART)

Mr. Robert Peter Andrews Robert Peter Andrews &4 2/2
Mr. Martin Woods Martin Woods 4t 4= 1/1

(appointed on 4 October 2021)

Remuneration committee

We established the Remuneration Committee in compliance with
Rule 3.25 of the Listing Rules on 20 September 2016. The
Remuneration Committee consists of five members, namely Mr.
Robert Peter Andrews (chairman), Mr. David John Kennedy, Mr.
Martin Woods, Mr. Neil David Howard and Mr. Steven Paul
Smithers. The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include:

° making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for the remuneration of all Directors and
the Senior Management and on the establishment of a formal
and transparent procedure for developing a remuneration
policy;

° reviewing and approving the Senior Management’s
remuneration proposals by reference to the Board’s
corporate goals and objectives;

° making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and the Senior
Management and such packages include benefits in kind,
pension rights and compensation payments, including any
compensation payable for loss or termination of their office or
appointment;
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° considering salaries paid by comparable companies, time
commitment, responsibilities and employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group;

° reviewing and approving compensation payable to the
executive Directors and the Senior Management for any loss
or termination of office or appointment to ensure that it is
consistent with contractual terms and is otherwise fair and
not excessive;

° reviewing and approving compensation arrangements relating
to the dismissal or removal of Directors for misconduct to
ensure that they are consistent with contractual terms and
are otherwise reasonable and appropriate;

° ensuring that no Director or any of his/her associates (as
defined in the Listing Rules) is involved in deciding his/her
own remuneration; and

° reviewing the Group’s policy on expense reimbursements for
the Directors and the Senior Management.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the model described in
Code Provision B.1.2(c) (ii) of the CG Code (i.e. make
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration packages of
individual executive Director and Senior Management).

During the year ended 31 March 2022, two Remuneration
Committee meetings were held whereat the Remuneration
Committee reviewed and recommended to the Board for
consideration of the remuneration packages of individual executive
Directors and the senior management. The attendance of individual
members is set out in the following table.

o EREFAAUBABMANHE  AIRHERE - BE
RAEBEAMK B QB RABIERT

o BHRHARRTEFREMEEEBEARKL
BERSIMAOBE - RS BRERA D
BB RS (R RA D ERET) BAT AT
CHEABERE

s BEULHMEBHMEBRAMEBITATEESTNHEE
T URERARBLIHZA QR ETE S (1AREE
BAENGRET) BAERE

e HMAMBEFRIHEMABEACERR LTRA)
SEBEARTHH X

o EHNAKEMNEZELEAEEEEMRIFEECR -

FTMEZE e EMEETRIMSFAIEXB.1.2(0) ()BT
BRI ERRTEE LS REEENTFHNEFERNE
EgRIHEBEREZR) -

BE_T-_F="FA=1+—HILFE FHEZESH8]T
R EH AR ERATEE RS RE RO MGE
UHtitRh EBRZRHEFTEER - @RIKBMHERL

Attended/
Name of committee members Eligible to attend
ZEERERRA BHE SEEHE
Mr. Robert Peter Andrews Robert Peter Andrews %t 4= 2/2
Mr. David John Kennedy David John Kennedy 5t 4 2/2
Mr. Richard Gareth Williams Richard Gareth Williams %t 4= 11
(stepped down on 4 October 2021) (RZZE=—F+AMNARE)
Mr. Martin Woods Martin Woods 5 4 1/1
(appointed on 4 October 2021) (RZEZ—F+ANBEZE)
Mr. Neil David Howard Neil David Howard 4t 4 2/2
Mr. Steven Paul Smithers Steven Paul Smithers %t 4 2/2
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Nomination committee

We established the Nomination Committee in compliance with the
CG Code on 20 September 2016. The Nomination Committee
consists of five members, namely Mr. Neil David Howard
(chairman), Mr. David John Kennedy, Mr. Robert Peter Andrews,
Mr. Martin Woods and Mr. Steven Paul Smithers. The primary
duties of the Nomination Committee are to make recommendations
to our Board on the appointment of our Directors and Senior
Management.

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include:

° reviewing the structure, size and composition (including the
skills, knowledge and experience and diversity of
perspectives) of the Board at least annually and making
recommendations on any proposed changes to the Board to
complement the Company’s corporate strategy;

° identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to the
Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships, with due regard for the benefits of diversity on
the Board;

° assessing the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors;

° reviewing the Board diversity policy of the Company, as
appropriate; and reviewing the measurable objectives that the
Board has set for implementing such policy, and the progress
on achieving the objectives; and

° making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or reappointment of Directors and succession planning for
the Directors, in particular, the chairman and the chief
executives.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, one Nomination Committee
meeting was held whereat the Nomination Committee, among
others, (i) assessed the independence of the independent non-
executive Directors; (ii) recommended to the Board for
consideration the re-appointment of all the retiring Directors as
Directors at the 2021 AGM,; (iii) reviewed the structure, size and
composition of the Board; and (iv) reviewed the Board diversity
policy. The attendance of individual members is set out in the
following table.
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Attended/
Name of committee members Eligible to attend
ZEBREHSR EHE SEEBHE
Mr. Neil David Howard Neil David Howard %t 4= 11
Mr. Steven Paul Smithers Steven Paul Smithers 7t 4 1/1
Mr. David John Kennedy David John Kennedy %c 4 1/1
Mr. Robert Peter Andrews Robert Peter Andrews 5t 4 11
Mr. Richard Gareth Wiliams Richard Gareth Williams 4t 4 1/
(stepped down on 4 October 2021) (R—EBE-_—F+HANHEEE)
Mr. Martin Woods Martin Woods 5¢ 4 -
(appointed on 4 October 2021) (R=ZZE=—F+ANBEZT)
Nomination Policy REBBUER
The Board has adopted a nomination policy which sets out the ZEEZS2EEMNIZEZKE  ERHYTE  SELREHS

procedures and criteria for the selection, appointment and
reappointment of the Directors. In evaluating and selecting any
candidate for directorship, the Nomination Committee shall
consider the candidates’ character and integrity, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience, independence,
diversity on the Board, willingness to devote adequate time to
discharge duties as a Board member and such other criteria that
are appropriate to the business of the Company.

Board Diversity Policy

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development,
the Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development. In designing the
Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from a
number of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. All Board appointments will
be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates will be based on a range of diversity
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skKills,
knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision will be
based on merit and contribution that the selected candidates will
bring to the Board.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct for securities
transactions. Following specific enquires of all the Directors, all the
Directors confirm that they have complied with the required
standards of dealing as set out in the Model Code throughout the
year ended 31 March 2022.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND REMUNERATION

BDO Limited is appointed as the external auditor of the Company.

For the year ended 31 March 2022, the fees paid to BDO Limited
for the audit of the annual financial statements of the Group were
HK$920,000 (excluding the expenses on the non-audit service
provided by BDO Limited).

The non-auditing services fees charged by BDO Limited in relation
to the agreed-upon procedures performed on the interim financial
results of the Group for the six months ended 30 September 2021
were approximately HK$87,000.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors are responsible for overseeing the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements which give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow
during the reporting period. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 March 2022, the Directors have
selected suitable accounting policies and applied them consistently,
made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable and prepared the consolidated financial statements on
a going concern basis. There are no material uncertainties relating
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. A statement
from the external auditors about its reporting responsibilities on the
consolidated financial statements is set out on pages 101 to 106 of
this report.
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INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for maintaining sound and effective
internal control and risk management systems in order to safeguard
the Group’s assets and Shareholders’ interests and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control and risk
management systems on an annual basis so as to ensure that
internal control and risk management systems in place are
adequate. The Company outsourced its internal audit function to an
external consultant who reports directly to the Board. The internal
audit function primarily carries out the analysis and independent
appraisal of the adequacy and effectiveness of the issuer’s risk
management and internal control systems, and reports their
findings to the Board on, at least, an annual basis.

The Group’s internal control system includes a well-established
organisational structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility
and authority. The day-to-day departmental operations are
entrusted to individual department which is accountable for its own
conduct and performance and is required to operate its own
department’s business within the scope of the delegated authority
and to implement and strictly adhere to the strategies and policies
set by the Company from time to time. Each department is also
required to keep the Board informed of material developments of
the department’s business and implementation of the policies and
strategies set by the Board on a regular basis.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Board had reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems
of the Group to ensure that a sound system is maintained and
operated by the management in compliance with the agreed
procedures and standards. The review covered all material controls,
including financial, operational and compliance controls and risk
management functions. In particular, the Board considered the
adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programs and budget of the Company’s accounting, internal audit
and financial reporting functions. The review was made by
discussions with the management of the Company and the
assessment conducted by the Audit Committee. The Board
believes that the existing internal control system is adequate and
effective, in particular, for financial reporting and Listing Rules
compliance.
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INSIDE INFORMATION

With respect to procedures and internal controls for the handling
and dissemination of inside information, the Company takes
seriously of its obligations under Part XIVA of the SFO and the
Listing Rules. The Company has adopted a Continuous Disclosure
Compliance Policy which sets out guidelines and procedures to the
Directors and officers of the Group to ensure inside information of
the Group is to be disseminated to the public in an equal and timely
manner. A flowchart has been improvised to provide guidelines for
next action steps. The Company has also communicated to all
relevant staff regarding the implementation of the Continuous
Disclosure Compliance Policy and the relevant trainings are also
provided.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND SHAREHOLDER
RIGHTS

The Company’s annual general meeting remains the principal forum
for dialogue with the Shareholders. The Shareholders are
encouraged to participate in the proceedings and ask questions
about the resolutions being proposed and the operations of the
Group. The Articles allows a Shareholder entitled to attend and
vote to appoint more than one proxy to attend and vote on behalf
of the Shareholder and also provides that a proxy need not be a
shareholder of the Company.

Code Provision E.1.3 stipulates that the issuer should arrange for
the notice to shareholders to be sent in the case of the annual
general meeting at least 20 clear business days before the meeting
and in the case of all other general meetings at least 10 clear
business days before the meeting. The Company has been in
compliance with such code provision.

All resolutions put forward at general meetings will be voted by poll
pursuant to the Listing Rules and poll results will be posted on the
websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange after each
general meeting.
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Procedures for Shareholders to convene an extraordinary
general meeting

Pursuant to article 64 of the Articles, the Board may, whenever it
thinks fit, convene an extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary
general meetings shall also be convened on the requisition of one
or more Shareholders holding, at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the
Company having the right of voting at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Board or the company
secretary for the purpose of requiring an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any
business specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21
days of such deposit, the Board fails to proceed to convene such
meseting, the requisitionist(s) himself/herself (themselves) may do so
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Procedures for putting forward proposals at general
meeting

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Law (2016 Revision). However, Shareholders who wish
to propose resolutions may follow article 64 of the Articles for
requisitioning an extraordinary general meeting and including a
resolution at such meeting. The requirements and procedures of
article 64 of the Articles are set out above. As regards proposing a
person for election as a Director, the procedures are available on
the website of the Company.

Procedures for putting enquiries to the Company and
contact details

Shareholders may, at any time, direct questions, request for
publicly available information and provide comments and
suggestions to the Directors or management of the Company.
Such questions, requests and comments can be addressed to the
Company by mail to 3/F, Bangkok Bank Building, 18 Bonham
Strand West, Hong Kong or by email to ibi@ibi.com.hk.
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Shareholders should direct their questions about their
shareholdings by mail to the Company’s Hong Kong branch share
registrar, Tricor Investor Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong (as from 15 August
2022, 17/F., Far East Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Admiralty,
Hong Kong) or by telephone at (852) 2980-1333, who has been
appointed by the Company to deal with Shareholders for share
registration and related matters.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 March 2022 and up to the date of this
report, there has not been any change in the Articles. The Articles
are available on the websites of the Company (www.ibighl.com)
and the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk).

COMPANY SECRETARY AND PRIMARY
CONTACT OF THE COMPANY

Directors have access to the services of the company secretary to
ensure that the Board procedures are followed. The company
secretary of the Company is Mr. Yun Wah Man. He is currently a
director of In.Corp Corporate Services (HK) Limited. The primary
corporate contact person at the Company is Mr. Neil David
Howard, the chairman of the Board and chief executive officer of
the Company. In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules,
Mr. Yun Wah Man has undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training during the year ended 31 March 2022.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

RE  HERERBHE

IBI Group Holding Limited (The “Group” or “IBI”) is a publicly listed
holding company on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The Group focuses
on investments in the built environment and its subsidiaries
including building contractors, a building solutions provider and a
strategic investment division.

The Group is pleased to present the Environmental, Social and
Governance (the “ESG”) Report for the year ended 31 March 2022.
The report captures the Group’s efforts toward sustainable
practices and development. The Group’s ESG Report has been set
out in accordance with the standards set forth by the Stock
Exchange in its ESG Reporting Guide under Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”).

Information disclosed and presented in this ESG Report follows the
reporting principles required by the ESG Reporting Guide, i.e.,
materiality, quantitative, balance and consistency. The Group has
complied with the “comply or explain” provisions set out in the ESG
Reporting Guide for the year ended 31 March 2022. The Group is
dedicated to strengthening the information collection of the
business in both Hong Kong and Macau with a view to enhance its
sustainability performance and disclosures.

A. GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Group’s mission is to deliver premium products, quality
services and superior customer experience with a strong
emphasis on innovation, sustainability and wellness. With its
mission at the heart of its business, the Board is committed
to high standards of governance, ethics and transparency.

The Board is actively engaged in formulating and
implementing ESG strategy as well as overseeing risk
management by ensuring appropriate and effective ESG risk
management and mitigation. Three Board committees have
been established, namely audit committee, remuneration
committee and nomination committee, to govern relevant
aspects of the Group’s affairs. The Board committees
oversee clearly defined duties to implement the Board’s
functions.

STAKEHOLDER FEEDBACK
The Group welcomes stakeholders’ feedback and opinion.

Readers are welcome to share their views with us at
ESG@ibi.com.hk.

IBI Group Holding Limited ([ Z<& @ | 3k [1BI]) A& S
ERGAAERAT([BRE]) FROAR EHERA
Al AEEEIRENBLERRRAMBAR - BFER
SRR - BEERATRREHRERRBEES -

REBPRAREBEE-_T-_—_F=-A=+—HILFEN
RiE @ MhER(ESG)) ME - MERBEAKTESA
FETRANERENNSE N - AEEESGRE HIRE
B FTER RXFTRE 7 E AR AN ([ LR A ) Mk — 1+t
JA T ESGHEHE S| TR EREMARER

RESGHRE FriiE i 2 WA EFHBBESGH & 5 51 P
ERMHmERA - NE2M - B FHR—BME - K
SEREBE_Z__F=A=1T—HILFEZEFESG
WEESIFTHA [ TETIRERE] X - AREH IR
IREBFORPIRBHE RIS - HRFT R A& %
REVRIRNIE

A. BAREE

AEBEURNEEER SERGREBVEFE
At EHBRAAE  AUREERER- R
FEEPREBIL  EFSHNRNERSERE
ER - BIENEHE -

EXRB2RGIE MEEESGRE U MEREA
REIE - EREE A MWESGAR E IR REF &S
- EZQERY=-—EZEE AEZREZES .
FHZEeRERZB S UREASEEKH
HETH EFZEeRBERATNRE - U
BITESGMEBEE -

BFiERER

AEEBOEDERERERER  MEDE
3BIBESG@ibi.com.hk B FH = HEREL -

IBI Group Holdings Limited 67
2021/2022 F [ %



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R - HBRER/HRE

68

REPORTING BOUNDARY

This ESG Report focuses on the Group’s sustainability
approach and performance in the environmental and social
aspects of our business, primarily in Hong Kong and Macau
for the year ended 31 March 2022.

This report captures qualitative and quantitative information
from the three segments of the Group, namely contracting,
building solutions and strategic investments.

Building for
tomorrow

BERAEX

Contracting

Through its subsidiaries — IBI Limited, IBI Projects and IBI
Macau, the Group provides world-class interior fitting outs
and building refurbishment services in Hong Kong and
Macau. Whilst acting predominantly as a main contractor, the
Group takes on the overall responsibility for all aspects of
project management, coordination, safety and quality control
but do not directly undertake the physical construction works.

The Group delivered many projects under Leadership in
Energy and Environmental Design (“LEED”) and Building
Environmental Assessment Method (“BEAM”) Plus
certifications. The Group and its contracting parties take great
pride by implementing responsible construction and following
best practices for waste management and recycling wherever
possible.
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Building Solutions

Building Solutions Limited (“BSL”) supplies products and
services that enhance the performance and well-being of the
built environment by creating modern, healthy and high-

performing spaces for the occupants.

Strategic Investments

The Group established the strategic investments division to
make efficient use of its available capital, to expand its reach
both geographically and enter new market sectors.

C. REPORTING PRINCIPLES

C.1 Materiality

The Group held discussions with senior management
and operational staff across departments to identify
material topics for its business. The topics have been
identified based on their relative importance for the
activities of the Group and its stakeholders. The material

ESG issues are listed below:

Table 1: List of Material Topics

Building Solutions

Building Solutions Limited ([BSL ) $Z 4 7] 12 7+ &
FLRFNRARBUNERRRY - AAERE

AR RERSMEREEMZER -

REIRE

REBRRERED SRR T AR B EA A
B WAEMEEBEZHBEWEAFNTISEL -

C. E#HRFA

c.1 EEH

AEEDERFPIRREEEREBAEE

1Tadim - UBBIEXRTNERSE - &

=D

REEHASEEGMEFDENHRER

MHER c EZESGEHIITIT :

®1: EXRBEBE

ESG aspects as set forth in the ESG
Reporting Guide
ESG#H &51E S| IR ESG B EH

Material ESG Issues
EEZESGEH

Environmental
RIB
Al Emissions

30 E)

A2 Use of Resources
BIREM

A3 The Environment and natural resources
RIERARANEIR

A4 Climate Related Physical Risk
RIRBEAERER

° Emissions from Electricity and Paper Usage
A& &AM BB

o Non-hazardous solid waste emission
= ERRE MY

° Electricity usage
HE

° Measures in reducing environmental impact
BAORIBEZ BN

° Physical impacts of climate change
SRBMBERYE
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ESG aspects as set forth in the ESG

Reporting Guide
ESG ¥ &51ES|I T ESG EE

Material ESG Issues
EEESGEE

Social
HeE

B1 Employment
&=

B2 Health and Safety
fERRERZ 2

B3 Development and training
ELEYSe=E]

B4 Labour Standards
4 TR

B5 Supply Chain management
HrEsEER

B6 Product responsibility
EmEE

B7 Anti-Corruption
k&S

B8 Community Investment

HERE

C.2 Quantitative & Consistency

The guidance for reporting on Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”)

° Labour Policy & Practices
BITBRNRER
° Workplace health and safety
THERENERELZ S
° Staff development and training
8 TR &IE
° Anti-child and forced labour
REI R&HI%T
° Supplier management
HEmER
° Product and service responsibility, quality assurance,
customer service, safeguarding customer assets
EmIkRBEEL  BR2RE  BLPRG  REXFPAE
o Anti-Corruption policy
REFHBER
° Community involvement
iyl

C.2 EfR—EM

EXFrEiRERE(RERE D) RO RE

emissions set out above is based on the Environment
Protection Department’s (“EPD”) “Guidelines to
Account for and Report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions
and Removals for Buildings (Commercial, Residential,
or Institutional Purposes) in Hong Kong” issued by
Electrical and Mechanical Services Department and
Environmental Protection Department. The Group
confirms that no change has been made from previous

years to the date of this ESG Report.
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D. ENVIRONMENTAL FOOTPRINT D. REEH

IBI Limited and IBI Projects Limited, the subsidiaries of the
Company, have obtained ISO 14001:2015 Environmental
Management Systems (“EMS”) Certification. EMS is an
internationally recognised standard for the development of
policies and procedures intended to enhance environmental
performance, achieve environmental objectives and help in
fulfilling compliance obligations for an organisation. The
Group aims to continue to act and conduct business in a
socially and environmentally responsible manner.

The Group provides guidance, briefing and training to sub-
contractors and site workers regarding the Air Pollution
Control Ordinance and Water Pollution Control Ordinance
and its subsidiary regulations in Hong Kong. The Group is not
directly involved with the physical construction work, but it
has project managers in charge to monitor the air pollution
and wastewater treatment to ensure the compliance with the
regulations.

The Group has adopted “EMS Best Practise Procedures”.
The document details the best practises for “Responsible
Construction”. The Group’s specialist subcontractors perform
the labour intensive and skilled trade works of the projects.
Subcontractors directly control the pollution management
and waste treatment, while the Group’s “EMS Best Practise
Procedure” provides pollution and wastage treatment
guidelines and plays a monitoring role to ensure that the
controls and procedures comply with the relevant regulations.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group did not

have any cases of environmental prosecution (2021: 0). The
Group will continue to do its best for the environment.

@\ e

C} Non-Compliance
with
Environmental
Laws
PETIRREAE

The Group provides training and guidelines to its
subcontractors on a project-by-project basis and monitors
the subcontractors to follow the requirements regarding the
relevant undermentioned legislations and regulations.

N~ &)t B A F)IBI Limited & IBI Projects Limited
#EAI1SO 14001 : 2015RIZEE IR EE Z ([EMS]) R
FEMSTIHIE ¥ RRBR MEF MBI AR
2 BERACERERE BEROEMNIRE
BEEMNGCEBITARET - AEENEIER
BENHHTERIREEENEEITERKEER

REBRBEEM D BRI ME T AREER(ZER
A BEH) ~ KT RE B 5 ) B LS AR )
ol BmEIEI - AEEY EER2RERE
T EERFAEEEETRSARNMEKEIENIE
B&E  ERTAKE -

AEBECHRA EMSHEBRIEF ] - 2 X4
METETER| WREER - AKENEMDE
BRRBETSSTENREMEES TIE 2
BEERENSRAEENEYRE  MAKERN
[EMS REEERF | YOS R REYERERES -
I B B E R UARERIZ B A2 T A HEREARE -

BE-_Z-_—_F=ZA=+—HIEE XEBEL
BELETARBAZFHAEGH(ZZE-_—F:0
) - REBBEEBZZAB HREIRE -

Responsible
Construction
BEEER

— Reduce Emission
- B HEL

— Manage Waste

— BIEY
AEBERERRBEERED BEREHEIRE
B VWEESBRMETAR TIUERIERNE
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Table 2: List of laws and regulations R2:EERBRAGIE
Category Relevant laws and regulations
Rl HEEERRH
General Environmental Impact Assessment Ordinance (Cap. 499)
e CREZEFEIEOIN(FE 499F)
Hong Kong Planning Standards and Guidelines
BB R EIF R
Air Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 311)
E=R (ZERIFRERMEBN(EIN F)
Hong Kong Air Quality Objectives
ERTERERER
Air Pollution Control (Construction Dust) Regulation (Cap. 311R)
(ERSEED GRETRER) RN ESIRE)
Water Water Pollution Control Ordinance (Cap. 358)
VS ORIFREHIERIN(E 358 %)
Water Quality Objectives
BIKKE IR
Waste Summary Offences Ordinance (Cap. 228)
EEEY (A BIRFATFEDINFE228F)

Factories and Industrial Undertakings Ordinance (Cap. 59)
(IR TEEEGRIINEIE)

Waste Disposal Ordinance (Cap. 354)
CREYIRR B EPINEE 354 %)

Public Cleansing and Prevention of Nuisances (Regional Council) By-law (Cap. 132BJ)
(RFRFRY b9 (RETHBE) MHINE132BIE)

Public Health and Municipal Services Ordinance (Cap. 132)
(RAREERTBUEGIN(E132F)

Waste Disposal (Chemical Waste) (General) Regulations (Cap. 354C)
CREMERIE (L2 REY)) (—MR) A PIN(E 354CFE)

Practice Note for Authorised Persons 144: Control of Environmental Nuisance from
Construction Sites (August 1997)
RAUALEEBEEZRT 144 BHIREMBERBEXNNZE (—ANEFENAR)
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D.1 Reduce Emission

D.1

The Group is committed to keeping its emissions under
check. The Group does not have any direct emission
due to its nature of business and has identified two
main indirect sources of emissions for its business.
They are indirect emissions resulting from the disposal
of non-hazardous waste and the use of electricity at its
office and project sites. In its efforts to reduce its
carbon footprint, the Group has implemented the
measures listed in the section titled — “D.3 Use of
resources” in this report.

Another source of emissions is paper used in office,
which the Group manages to offset a major part by
recycling the used paper. During the year ended 31
March 2022, the Group collected and recycled 0.18
tonnes of paper used in office. In addition, the Group
has internal policies to efficiently manage the use of

paper.

Direct emissions by the Group’s sub-contractors mainly
comprises electricity usage on site. As the electricity is
provided by the customers, the Group did not record
for this emission.

The following table shows the GHG emissions recorded
by the Group during the year ended 31 March 2022:

D BE R

AREBMBARESESER - AREEB MK
B AREYECAERFR  TEETHE
EiE R M E X 2R BER - WETIANE
EEEEMALEERNENIARRSER
BHMEEMREBER - BB - &
SEEEEARSE — [DIBREM] —4
RESIRIEIE o

S—HBRRSRAERR  AEERERB
B4 R B E AR SR IR S KB D HE IR - MBI E—
T _F=ZA=1+—HIEFE  FAEEYE
R BN ZEFRAL0.18ME o PhAh + AN 5 B
FEAMERAREROAFIBOR

AEESBEANERINEERRRER
B mRENRATPEN  AKEYEERE
IR BER -

TRINFAEERBE_T_—_F=H
=T BLFERSNRERBIN

Table 3: Emission Footprint =3 HEMEH
Emission Indicators 2022 2021
BRIIER —B-CF —E_—F
Scope 1 — Direct emissions #HE— — BEERY o 0
Scope 2 — Indirect emissions fgilE— — MEEEY
— Electricity (Tonnes CO.e)* —EBEhH(ME_gtiEE)" 48.17 49.68
Scope 3 — Other emissions #ils= — HaBEmy
(Tonnes COLe) (A tE=
— Paper Consumption — MRERE 11.23 11.20
Total emission (Tonnes CO.e) Mt E (- Sk iRE2) 59.40 60.88
Total emission per floor area REERETENREIRE
(Tonnes/Saq. ft) (M, F75 R) 0.01 0.01
Total emission per employee EETEMEERE
(Tonnes/employee) (W, 8T) 0.61 0.63
# The guidance for reporting on GHG emissions set out # EXFEAAREREREBIERAES T AK

above is based on the EPD’s Guidelines to account for and
report on Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Removals for
Buildings (Commercial, Residential or Institutional Purpose)
in Hong Kong issued by Electrical and Mechanical services
Department and Environmental Protection Department

BEIRENREREZEMORRE(EER
Y (EE - EEHAAHAR)EEREIN
KRR E MR SRS REE -
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D.2 Manage Waste

The Group has a waste management plan in place
pertaining to reduction, avoidance, recycling, reusing
and disposal of waste.

The Group ensures minimal waste by increasing its
efficiency through avoiding excess purchase of
materials and other methods to limit the amount of
waste that is generated during its refurbishment
services.

The Group is dedicated to minimising construction
waste as well as ensuring that the disposal of waste
generated at construction sites complies with the local
regulations. The hazardous waste generated is minimal
since the work carried out does not directly lead to the
generation of hazardous waste.

Hazardous waste generated by subcontractors at the
construction sites is primarily paint cans and fluorescent
lamp tubes. Subcontractors are required to comply with
a set of waste management procedures for handling
hazardous and non-hazardous waste, which must be
collected and disposed of by qualified and licensed
waste collectors in accordance with the applicable
regulations.

Any waste that is hazardous is treated carefully and
disposed of properly by subcontractors. The Group
ensures that registered chemical waste collectors
approved by EPD are appointed by subcontractors.
The Group also has a procedure to monitor the disposal
circumstances to ensure that it is safe to the public and
in compliance with the local regulations.

In relation to the non-hazardous waste, the Group has
a system in place to record the quantities of different
wastes that are disposed of. The Group separates
recyclable waste into four categories, namely metal,
paper, plastic and aluminium. The Group temporarily
stores its waste at a designated area and puts them
into separate containers which are suitable for storage
of the waste.

IBI Group Holdings Limited
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The Group disposes of the waste off-site as soon as REBEBRATER NRIREEDIESINGE
practicable in order to optimise the storage space E UBEERSRNREGTERE - NEBERFZ4%
available on-site. The Group always maintains good BHEFENRMEEIE  ITHERIEEDMEDR
housekeeping in the storage area and ensures that it ZEFE - AEETHEBEFEEE - LA
handles all waste properly. The Group plans each REZERENREEREY - KAEBITYE—FR
project comprehensively to ensure that proper handling HERBHBEETHE - EERNEYWEN
and disposal of waste is done. The Group also identifies o

a disposal company to help it with the disposal. The
quantities of waste generated are as follows:

Table 4: Quantity of Waste Generated R4 . EENEYE
Waste Types 2022 2021
&Y B —®8=-= —F_—F
Non-hazardous construction mEREEYSE ()
waste (tonnes) 641.58 508.51
Paper consumption (tonnes) MR B FER (W) 2.34 2.33
Total non-hazardous waste (tonnes) mEREY4E S (1) 643.92 510.84
Total waste per construction ISR HAENEY EE
project (tonnes/project) (g, 188 ) 58.54 39.30
Total waste per revenue B RTENEDRE
(tonnes/million dollar) (M8, BEIT) 1.59 0.92
The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance 7N 2 B 3 4 25 IR (o] BR R R KR = SR As HE
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a W MK R MBS A R B EREE R E
significant impact on it relating to air and GHG S AEBABHEERNEATYENSEREREENR
emissions, discharges into water and land and the FERAEE LR o

generation of hazardous waste.
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D.3 Use of Resources

76

D.3.1 Resource Management at Office

The Group has procedures in place for its
employees to follow in order to reduce the
number of resources and electricity used by and
emissions generated from appliances, electrical
equipment and lighting that is used in its offices.
The implementation of the above procedures has
led to stable water, electricity and paper
consumption in the Group’s offices.

Resource Management Practises followed by the
Group:

> LED and T5 fluorescent tubes
> Master shut down switch to turn off office
equipment and lighting during non-office

hours

> Procurement of environmentally friendly
electronic appliances

> Installation of motion sensors for lights to
save electricity in the office

> Segregation of waste in the office area

> Encourage digital communication and
minimise printing

> Signage in the office to encourage efficient
use of water

> Printing Guidance encouraging sensible
printing like green notes, print double-side
policy, reuse single-sided printed paper

IBI Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021/2022
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D.3.2 BEMBHE FEE

D.3.2 Resource Management at Construction

Sites

The Group understands the importance of
resources and has mechanisms in place to use
resources more efficiently. The Group provides
proper training to its staff, subcontractors and site
workers on how to use the equipment and
materials in a safe, productive and efficient
manner. New staff members are trained upon
joining, while existing staff are given refresher
training approximately in every six months.

The Group encourages its subcontractors to be
mindful when carrying out their duties to reduce
waste and welcomes any suggestions from them
on managing or reducing waste at the
construction sites. The Group budgets and buys
materials on an as-needed basis to avoid over
purchasing of materials and to efficiently reduce
wastage at the construction sites. The Group
encourages its subcontractors to continue using
the remaining materials in future projects to
minimise the overall wastage at the construction
sites.

D.3.3 Water Utilisation

Based on the nature of its business, the Group
has not identified any issues in sourcing water.
The water consumption is limited to the water
usage in the office which is supplied by the
landlord of the properties and the water used at
site is provided by the customers. Thus, water
usage is considered to have minimal effect to the
Group’s business operation. The Group will
continue to enforce prevention control by
encouraging all staff to follow the water-saving
practice established by it.

AEBRAERNEEE Y EOEY
BHAERER - AKERET - D
BEktE T ARFEEEI - &85
ARAA] 22 2 i A {50 P AR 8 K L o B
BTHEMARESEIN MBREEET
ROBTANEAZRZ—EEE -

AEEZBLYERERBTRER IR
WMARE - MERRFRONERNSE
FAE RSN D REREY NS -
AEERFFERERRBEDR - A
2B E BRI AR S B BB, D i SR
REEY) - NEBETE D BB F R
RN ARRIAR - FA R 2EM
BEERE -

D.3.3 Ak

EREBEE  AREREEKRLE
W BB E - FKERRRA
=K AERKEMERZIMHE
mZMAKEEFREM - Fitt - AKX
WA REREERGEENTEEM -
AEBERFBREEZRE TERBERLS
TERIENE FKEE I - #EAE DN oR TRRD 2
il o
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The electricity consumed at the Hong Kong office
is the Group’s major energy consumption. The
consumption data during the year ended 31
March 2022 is shown in the following table:

Table 5: Consumption Data

AEENEBERSRFATENA
EME-HE-B--—F=F=+—
AL R BRI RN Tk -

®E6 I HERE

Energy Consumption 2022 2021
BETRUR %2 —E-—F —EC- 4
Total electricity consumption (kwh) wEEsE (TEH) 67,853 62,886
Total electricity consumption REERETENRREESE

per floor area (kwh/sq. ft) (FERE"FAR) 7.68 7.12
Total electricity consumption RETIENEREES

per employee (kwh/employee) (ThRE EI) 692 648

# The guidance for reporting on GHG emissions set # EXEERRSRER B RAES

out above is based on the EPD’s Guidelines to
account for and report on Greenhouse Gas
Emissions and Removals for Buildings (Commercial,
Residential or Institutional Purpose) in Hong Kong
issued by Electrical and Mechanical services
Department and Environmental Protection
Department

Our overall energy consumption level per floor
area remained consistent in 2022 as compared to
2021.

The Group is committed to reducing the energy
consumption. Following are the emissions targets
set by the Group:

Table 6: Emissions Target and Steps
Taken

Emission & Resource Efficiency Targets

FHRERMEER

TIAHETIZE MIRERESRMOIR
RE(EBRZEY (BE - FEXAHE
B ) BB R HERUR R AR E R
S RELE -

BN E - —FREAAETEDN
LR RBFREK P T - —F(RFF
—3 o

AEEHNBPETRER - AT RN
SEFRENFRER

*6: G A ERREMERE

Steps taken
PRER Y 5 it

Reduce the electricity usage in the office and
on sites by not less than 3%
PAERMBRAES RS TERI%
Reduce paper consumption in the office and
on sites by minimum 3%
MAERIMBHAREEERDED 3%
Reduce usage of protective materials

TR DBy s A B 5
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Use energy efficient lighting

i FA B A2 AR AR
Provide recycle bins in the office area

YN IR EI e

Using greener and more environmentally
friendly materials for protection
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D.4 The Environment and Natural Resources D.4 BERXARER

The Group sets appropriate air pollution control system
measures on site and wastewater treatment procedures
for its subcontractors. The Group’s site managers,
safety and environmental officers and foremen are
responsible to carry out site inspection procedures to
monitor the performance of the subcontractors and to
present their feedback during the evaluation process.
The Group aids its customers to get LEED and BEAM
Plus certification. It helps the Group and its customers
to demonstrate commitment through projects certified
as “Green Building”.

LEED Projects:

The Group has in the past engaged in many LEED
projects with its customers and has vast experience in
these types of projects. LEED projects are a popular
green building certification aimed at helping the Group’s
customers who choose to have LEED certification to be
environmentally responsible and use resources
efficiently in their refurbishment, redecoration design
and implementation.

LEED certified buildings save money, improve efficiency,
lower carbon emissions and create healthier places for
people. They are critical parts of addressing climate
change and meeting ESG goals, enhancing resilience
and supporting more equitable communities.

To achieve LEED certification, a project earns points by
adhering to prerequisites and credits that address
carbon, energy, water, waste, transportation, materials,
health and indoor environmental quality.

Leadership in
Energy and
Environmental

Design
A REIREE
B

The Group offers its customers LEED design and
implementation services should they wish to have LEED
certification as part of its refurbishment services.

AEBADBHEMBRRTHEENTRSHE
T R TEHE R EEK R IRIR P o NEE R
B RERREERTIEBENTHE
BRERFUEEDBHMERE - WENGA
BPRMEER - AEBBHERTSIE
LEED }2 BEAM Plusi@#% - H BB ERE S
[EEsE | MERENAEERHEEFEH
HoEG o

LEEDIEE :

AEBEBEAETEFASELHELELEEDIER -
WH L ERIEE ABEYE45 - LEEDIEH
BEAGEREERE  SEWBEIELEED
RENIEERFHREGEUVAEE - B
R R ERERETBEURFBER

ESLEEDRENEZENUHEES R
MR~ FRARHBER L A A PIAIE E 2 R IR
%o ADEEHRIRECLERESGEIR - 1§
SRENE MR E A TR RS o

AIESLEEDRE - JHE BBE T M
BER K BEY - EH - ME - BERER
RIBEEEMIREG REERESES -

MBEEFHEESLEEDRE  (EAEBH
RN —2r AEESAEERTFIRMHE
LEED &5 R B AR TS -
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D.5

BEAM Plus Projects:

The Group has also engaged in many BEAM Plus
Interiors projects. BEAM Plus (formerly known as HK-
BEAM) is on a per capita basis of the most widely used
voluntary green building certification schemes of its kind
in the world.

The Group offers its customers BEAM Plus
implementation services should they wish to have
BEAM certification as part of its refurbishment services.

The basis of credits is comprised of many aspects —
(Environmental, Social, Building Performance,
Regionally Responsiveness & Scientific Rigour).

During the year ended 31 March 2022, one BEAM Plus
Interiors project was completed (2021:2) for the
Group’s customers.

BEAM Plus
Interiors,
Commercial,
Retail and

Institutional
ZEBRIER
ZERKE

Climate Change

Climate change is a global concern, especially in
coastal areas like Hong Kong. The communities of
these areas are experiencing increased intensity and
frequency of extreme weather events and rising sea
levels.

The Group’s operations may get disrupted by
catastrophic events such as severe storms or floods.
The occurrence of these events could adversely affect
the Group’s operations and may require substantial
expenditure and recovery time in order to resume
operations. The Group has taken these potential risks
into account when selecting locations for the offices
and will also ensure that adequate insurance coverage
is in place.
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E. SOCIAL FOOTPRINT E. #2225
E.1 Care for Employees E1 BEET
The Group understands the importance of the impact REEFHAEIHAER N EBEZENE
that employees have on it and its reputation, and aims M BOHREITERR BRERLZEH
to provide its employees with a happy, healthy and safe T{EIRIE -

working environment.

Key Initiatives promoting Happy, Healthy and Safe Working Environment

RERMR BERTE2IFRENTEEE

0]0)
]

Staff Handbook Non Discrimination
8 TF s AR,
/| !
7
P

Annual Review Whistleblowing
and Appraisal Procedure
FREZE NHE RHIZ T

IBI Group Holdings Limited
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The Group’s staff handbook is well established and
issued to all employees for their reference pertaining to
office rules and benefits such as typhoon arrangements,
annual leave, working hours, office attire, jury duty,
salary and lunch hours as well as other rules and
benefits.

The Group provides health and safety and other
developmental trainings to its employees. In addition,
the Group has appropriate whistleblowing and ethics
procedures in place for its employees to follow without
fear of reprisal or receiving any negative feedback.

The Group is dedicated to offer equal opportunities and
a fair and diverse work environment. The Group’s
recruitment process is non-discriminatory and is solely
based on the employees’ performance, experience and
skills.

Employees’ remuneration is commensurate with their
job nature, qualifications and experience. Salaries are
subject to an annual review that is based on
performance appraisals and other relevant factors. The
Group also encourages internal promotions and a
variety of job opportunities are offered to the existing
staff as and when they arise.

In addition to the statutory holidays, the Group takes
care of the special needs of employees through a
comprehensive leave system, providing marriage leave,
compassionate leave and paternity leave.

IBI Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021/2022
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Table 7: Employment Details *®7: EEVHMA
% Of Staff
Particulars Nos. Total Staff Turnover Rate
HETHAY
=3 A Btk BIRAER
Employment Type EEER
Full Time 2R 96 98% 3%
Part Time 3 2 2% 0%
Total @t 98 100%
Gender Lz ]l
Male Bt 72 73% 3%
Female pegis 26 27% 1%
Total @t 98 100%
Age Group FH 4R
18-30 18-30 7% 22 23% 4%
31-40 31-40 5% 34 35% 3%
41-50 41-50 5% 24 24% 2%
50 or above 50 %A £ 18 18% 2%
Total st 98 100%
Geographical Region b ¥ & 35
Macau P 4 4% 0%
Hong Kong ' 94 96% 3%
Total et 98 100%
Employee Categories EEFEH
Senior Management SREIEE 7 7% 0%
Middle Management AR TR 20 20% 0%
General Staff —RET 71 73% 4%
Total et 98 100%
Service Period PR 7% & 13
— Less than 5 Years — 5F R 61 63% 4%
— 51010 Years — 5&10F 13 13% 2%
— Over 10 Years —10F U E 24 24% 1%
Total @t 98 100%
As of 31 March 2022, 13% (2021: 15%) of the Group’s HEZZ-_—_F=A=+—08 " x&£H13%

(ZEZ—F :15%) ETRAEETIESF
AE - MmN AEBEBBETFNET(524%
TE T4 1 25%) e

employees had worked for over 5 years and 24%
(2021: 25%) of its employees had worked for more than
10 years in the Group.

Staff stability
ETEEM

>]8%ears 24%

> géears -I 3 %

~  w 63%
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E.2

The Group strictly abides by the following laws and
regulations relating to staff remuneration and benefits:

Table 8: List of Laws and Regulations

Category

5l MBEER RS

REBBBETATERE THMEMNE
ISR

*8:EERBAHITIX

Relevant laws and regulations

For Employees and
Subcontractors
REERSEEMS

Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance and the Construction Sites (Safety)
Regulations in Hong Kong
ER(BELE LBREEN) RCGEEDE (Z2) RO

General Regulation of Working Safety and Hygiene in the Construction Industry

in Macau

BPIGETITE TIER 2 BEEEBAB KD
Employment Ordinance in Hong Kong

FE(RERD

Labour Relations Law in Macau

RIS ENBIERER)

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on it relating to compensation and
dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours,
rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-
discrimination and other benefits and welfare.

Occupational Health and Safety

IBI Limited and IBI Projects Limited, subsidiaries of the
Company, are ISO 45001:2018 Occupational Health &
Safety Management Systems Certified. This certification
sets out occupational health and safety requirements
and best practices. ISO 45001 is a framework that sets
out a range of standards that can help the Group to put
controls, policies and procedures in place to achieve
good working conditions and workplace health and
safety. This framework is internationally recognised for
setting forth best practices and provides certified
companies with a range of benefits such as identifying
hazards and how to manage them, creating good
working conditions, reducing workplace accidents and
engaging and motivating staff.

IBI Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021/2022
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The Group understands the importance of occupational
health and safety and aims to continually improve,
reduce workplace hazards, increase employee
motivation and be in compliance with ISO 45001:2018
standards. For details on training related to health and
safety, please refer to “E.3 Development and Training”.

The Group also has a Safety, Environmental and Quality
Manager in charge to oversee the site and ensure that
it is safe for staff members to carry out their daily duties.

The Group provides staff with a modemn, clean breakout
area which includes showers, sofas, TV, pantry and
dining area in the head office. Further, the Group also
provides staff with safety and health training as well as
regular employee safety and health memos for their
reference. These memos are for the benefit of the staff
to ensure that they use the office equipment safely and
that there is minimal chance of occupational hazards
taking place in the offices.

Apart from training, benefits and safeguards, the Group
also advocates a healthy work-life balance for all
employees. Due to Covid-19, the Group has
suspended all recreational staff events during the year
to prevent group gatherings. Through the Group’s
employee recognition programs, it felicitates its loyal
staff for their years of hard dedication, loyal service and
positive contribution to the Group. Unfortunately, there
was one fatal incident attributable to a subcontractor.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to providing a
safe working environment and protecting employees
from occupational hazards.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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AEBARPRERFHETEZMEZE BN
TEGE - B TEGAEE MBI HE
B KB ST ISO 45001 © 201812 « 5 B fE
BERZE2EINEE - F2H E3RE RS
Ao

AEENRELE RRNEERE BF
EBRG  MREILZEZHITATRE -

AREBER AR TITEBRNARKRR
B ERRAMARE DB BHEE K
IKERRRER - I - NREBETAE TRMH
e MRS YEMBEAREL 2R
BTHEAR2E - ZFERHTEAB THREIL
RIS BEREIZ2EMABRARE - B
RENBEEERXGEHE -

BRIZEEEEH - R RARBESN - ANEE RS
2EE TEKEENTERLTYEE - iR
Covid-19» Al ILBEHERSE  AEBEERA
FEEEMBE TIRGES - BBETRY
TE o REBBRSSDME TS E ka0
o BHRBRERABALEEHEEER - T
EME BET - RASEHEKNIT S
gyo

AEBYEFEREMEEEREREREZE2T
EREMREREREBELEZAHAY
REBRBKREAZENMERREZEMARPINE
DL e

Table 9: Count of Incidents +R9: BHRE
Occupational Health and Safety Statistics 2022
BERERZEZHT —E-—F
Number of lost days due to work injury A TEMBLN T ERE 378
Number of work injuries due to work Ao BEEERMNETEEAK
attributable to subcontractors 3
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E.3 ZRRIEI

E.3 Development and Training

The Group provides comprehensive health and safety
trainings that include, but not limited to, induction to the
Group’s safety system and identification of the safety
duties, group safety policy and updates on changes to
legislations and regulations to all new and existing staff
on a bi-yearly basis to ensure they understand the
importance of safety and how to operate the machines
and keep the site clear of hazards. The Group
implemented an Environmental Management Plan
(“"EMP”) for its refurbishment work which will be
followed by all team members and the Safety and
Environmental team helps to supervise and monitor the
implementation of the EMP. These plans, procedures
and policies are in place to ensure that the Group
provides a safe working environment and to protect its
employees from hazards.

The table below shows the details of Health and Safety
training for the office and site staff. 100% of the staff

attended minimum required training.

Table 10: Total Training Hours

AREBSFFRMANABRNRE 8 TRMH
PEEELZZHE - BREMRRAEE
REEABLHR L ZBEAPIE - KEZ
ERERMREHWEO RO BB KIEL
NERE T TRZ 2B R A R A
W MR BRIRBERE - AKRBR/BETIE
HERREEFE(TEMP]) - 28 E B
BUEMAES  ME2REEKHHEE
REREMPHEN - BitxFatsl - BF R
BREEBRARERRZETIFRE R
#ETRXERE -

TRETABAENMOERE TIRENERES
RIS - 2RETIH2MT R ERER

2Ll -

®10  BIETIRH

Senior Middle General
Male Female Management Management Staff
B BREERE TREERE —-RET
No. of training hours Ry

attended 249 23 70 252
No. of staff attended training 221318 T8 B 72 7 20 71

Average training hours FHEEFIIET
completed per trained staff & 2SI & 3.46 3.29 3.50 355

The Group provides sufficient safety trainings to
subcontractors. The training contents include site safety
introduction and proper usage of equipment. The
following shows the details of the Group’s safety
training of its subcontractor workers.

AEEAHBERBUTROE DY - 5]
MBI BT 2R RERE MR - 1A
TAAEEBRS ORI ARKNEZEE
BB -

Safety Training to subcontractors A% SRR 2%

\:’/I/‘

1o

8,527 persons
8,527 EAt
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Labour Standards

The Group has an equal opportunity policy in place
which explains its policy on having a work environment
that is free of discrimination and that all employees have
equal opportunity regardless of age, marital status,
pregnancy status, race and religion. The Group
advocates a work-life balance at the workplace and
managers are available to communicate with the staff
to ensure the staff to raise their concerns or
suggestions for management’s consideration.

The Group also has an anti-child and forced labour
policy for its companies, employees, suppliers and
subcontractors to follow. The Group does not employ
or advocate the employment of children or of people
who are forced to work. All workers are employed on a
voluntary basis with agreed terms and are not forced or
coerced into working for the Group.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on it relating to preventing child and
forced labour.

Supply Chain Management

The Group strictly abides by the Supply of Services
(Implied Terms) Ordinance (Chapter 457 of the Laws of
Hong Kong). It maintains an approved suppliers and
subcontractor list. The potential suppliers and
subcontractors are evaluated on the basis of quality of
product, compliance history, reputation, functional fit of
the product and potential environmental and social
risks. The Group performs comprehensive checks on
new suppliers and subcontractors and continues the
evaluation on an ongoing basis. Unless a supplier is
specified by customer, the Group only selects suppliers
from this list. The Group understands the importance of
environmental protection and encourages its suppliers
and subcontractors to follow its environmental
management system.

E.4

E.5

2T

AEECDHEFPERERE  EPRMEY
TETMFEREN TERENERER - 288
ITHEETFERE  TXFEK - BEIOR
B2 - ERERRBREDAEE - AEE
ETESMRETRREATE TS HETH
RERABRR  UERE TAREIX
BENHEEEEE -

AREFARAT AT REERSOH
I R RIS THOR - AR BB
AREREAEIARHST - 2BIAL
BB A 1 BRI - (BIFRISA B
AEEAT -

AEBEYEFREMEEEREHN LETR
SR HI%5 T AR B S EBKERTENMERA
REBBIER -

HEEEE

REBERETEBEN FE 4657 ERBIRM
(B2 GF) &0 - WA LA ENHER KR
HDEERE - AEERBEREE  ARE
£ BE EnNEESEREERNIRE
RitgRBREBERER LD BEETT
- AEBEHHHER XD EHETEERX
L WHEETHE - RIFFTEEMHRE
o BRIAEEEREETEEEER - X
SEFAARRNEBEN  BEHEB LD
BRERRREEHE -

IBI Group Holdings Limited 87
2021/2022 F [ %



The Group provides training and guidance to its
subcontractors and vendors for every project including
its environmental management system and relevant
guidelines. All subcontractors and suppliers are rated
after the completion of each job by the Group’s
tendering director, based on feedback from the project
staff records, which are kept for the staffs’ reference.
The rating is based on numerous aspects such as
quality, safety, environmental and social risk, health and
other aspects.

The Group further performs annual review on its
suppliers and subcontractors’ performance. It rates and
discusses their performance in different aspects
including price, quality, delivery, health and safety, as
well as environmental and social aspects. The
evaluation record serves as the starting point of the
Group’s selection of subcontractors for its future
projects.

Supply chain risk management is an integral
component in the quality control system of the Group.
To cater to the social and environmental concerns of its
customers, the Group recognises the importance of
ensuring a sustainable supply chain management. The
Group ensures purchase of material from specific
suppliers as and when requested by a customer in
order to cater to their priority of sustainable materials.
All suppliers are notified of the Group’s environmental
and social standards during the annual assessment,
encouraging them to produce materials in a sustainable
way.

Table 11: Number of Suppliers

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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AEBESTHEB NS BB T ERREEE
Kigsl - BRBEREESERAMES - &
SEBRAERNAE D BB RHERTX
BEIERIRBEREILHMTERRE
BT YREBEMLEUNERTSE -
ERFAAEE 22 BREIEERER -
8 B A R EoAth 75 D A R 2E o

AEETSFRANMERLDBANKRE -
HERNRERNER E8 Y BEEL
2 REMEFENRTTEORE AR
Katam o sHE R E R AR E AR PR TR
DERRES

HERRREEIAREEEZFIBRP T
AISRRAVERE D - KAEFFHLEERIR
BT ARBERABRAUFEREEE
ENEEN - AEEERNE S RH EKE
FEEHREEBEME - WA REE AR
BV HNEEEZE - METFEEE - K
SESESHMAHBRERERLGIRE
3 & B 1 B LA R] R RO 0 UAEEE AT L

F11: HEFHE

Number of Suppliers Count
by Geographical Region i3 BRI B 5 R ER S E 2H
— HK — &3 351
— China — 3
— Macau — B’ !
— Any other please add name — A ERE TR RS

(USA, UK, Australia, Finland, Germany, (ER - [ - RAF T ~ 258 -

Indonesia, Italy, Singapore, Norway, Spain, =R HEEfmDE - 2R -

Switzerland and Taiwan) Monsg - BB - FPLI -

mtRkaE 28
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E.6 Product Responsibility

IBI Limited and IBI Projects Limited, the subsidiaries of
the Group, have obtained ISO 9001:2015 Quality
Management Systems Certification. This certification is
an internationally recognised qualification relating to
product quality management systems. There are quality
principles relating to customer focus, leadership,
engagement of people, process approach,
improvement, evidence-based decision making and
relationship management. The Group takes the quality
of its project delivery seriously and acts in accordance
with the ISO principles and aims to ensure that it
continues to have high customer satisfaction and meet
customer expectations. The ISO 9001 helps to give the
Group guidance on best practices and policies for it to
use to ensure that its Quality Management Systems are
maintained at a high standard and that it can continue
to make improvements on customer satisfaction,
employee motivation and other current practices. For
the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group had no
product recalls or complaints.

The Group understands the importance of sales service
and strictly abides by the relevant laws and regulations.
The Group is proud to be in compliance with the Supply
of Services (Implied Terms) Ordinance in Hong Kong
which pertains to sales.

The staff are required to report any enquiries or
complaints to their supervisors and they shall be
recorded and tracked in the log sheet.

The Group takes its obligation to customers seriously
and aims to continue delivering high quality fitouts and
A&A services for customers across the region. the
Group engages with its customers and asks for
feedback from each project. It works with its customers
to deliver desired results and strives to maintain a high
degree of customer satisfaction. The Directors are in
charge of making sure that it can meet its customers’
requirements in areas such as quality, environmental
concerns, safety, cost, time schedule, customer data
protection and customer privacy.

E.6

EmEfE

A N 7 KB A &8I Limited X 1Bl Projects
Limited A 1SO 9001 : 20156 B EE R E XK
RiE - WRBAREMESEEBRNER
RAJER HEFET -BEH - ABZ
BORBAE U EEARREREE
FIAEERA - AEBREHAEERNH
Zg - BRISORAITE BB RERS
BEEREEMREEFEE - I1SO 9001 BB
RIEEAREERARERHMBEE - BRE
ETEERAEFSZEURALEEAFER
EEPREE  REEIBEBRERNESHM
BIEH - HE—_S-——F=A=+—HIt
FE  AEEWHEMEEIIEFHIBR

AREBRANMBEERBOER M - WERKET
MBEEER - AEBEARRETEEGHH
S CIRF IR (B2 1650 1R B -

WMAEEAERARRF  ETARTIEER
FOERI TAFRCER R I BRAE o

FEEREBERUTPNAR  BIBER
BEAEFRHEEERERAARY - A&H
HEPEBATHESEEBNRE - AEE
HEPAENERBMAR - NIRRT
FrEE EFRERRENTEE RN
A TR AR BEK - EPEEBRE
REPRLETHMEEFPNEL
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E.6.1 Data Privacy

90

The Group highly values the protection of
intellectual property rights for both the group and
third parties. Continuous reviews and standard
employment contract containing relevant clauses
become the first line of defence against
confidential information leakage. The Group
strictly abides by Personal Data (Privacy)
Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the Laws of Hong
Kong).

The data collected from the group’s customers is
maintained in accordance with the Personal Data
(Privacy) Ordinance applicable in Hong Kong.
Specifically, strict guidelines are followed by the
Groups’ employees to ensure privacy of its
customers. The employees of the Group are
required to obtain consent from customers before
they collect customers’ personal data. All
confidential information is properly stored and
encrypted and only authorised business personnel
have access to them.

The Group is not aware of any material non-
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Group
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to services provided
and methods of redress.

IBI Group Holdings Limited
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E.7 Anti-Corruption

The Group implements an anti-corruption and whistle-
blowing policy that states any bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering behaviour will not be tolerated
by the Group. The Group also strictly adheres to
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance (Chapter 201 of the
Laws of Hong Kong).

The Group provides its staff with proper whistle-blowing
channels so that they can raise concerns when needed,
without fear of reprisal or any negative impacts. The
Group’s employees have been informed through
printed anti-corruption material for the same.

The Group encourages its employees to voice their
opinions and it will not take any negative action against
staff for voicing out their concerns through the proper
whistle-blowing channels. The Group fully supports its
employees to raise concerns in good faith and the
mentioned issues are discussed by management and
dealt with in a professional and appropriate manner.
There were no legal cases regarding corruption during
the year ended 31 March 2022.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance
with the relevant laws and regulations that have a
significant impact on the Group relating to bribery,
extortion, fraud and money laundering.

E.7 RES

AEERITRES RBREE - FTHAKE
BARFHEMER IR - BEERARET
o REBTRBARE T EBEDISE 201 2K
LEFBRR GBI o

AEBSHEBTRHEIERBHMRE - EET
REFE2REHHEEMBAZTHRELZE
THaEEPE AEEETEEBRESH
RIME T R A RS REE

AEERBEETHXRER BB TSHE
BIERBRREREMENE TREUEM A
HITE AKER2AXFHETAEHNRLHE
B MERERNWmLARXEE T AEE
BEHME REE-_T-__F=A=+—H
R - BEBMEISHRDARNT -

AREL BN IR B B iR [ B LR AR
PR HFEAREEHEEASEBKE
FENEREREROINER -

Four Principles for the Group and Employees
AEBERKEIHMNFAEL

Prohibited from paying or
receiving a bribe of any kind

ZEEARRTHRRZ

Required to observe the
Group’s guidelines in
relation to the giving and
receiving of gifts and
hospitality

HABIFAEE ALK
YR8 A & R 1 R3S

Prohibited from giving or
offering anything of value
to a public official

i@ AR5 E R
REEMEEYR

Required to fully comply
with the applicable laws
and regulations relating to
anti-money laundering
and terrorist financing
HAZHBETERAREER
ZMmEHEMENEREERZESR
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E.8 Community Investment

The Group cares for the youth and those who are less
fortunate in society and aims to do its part in supporting
the local community by making donations and
supporting local charities. During the year ended 31
March 2022, the Group provided internships to
students who participated in the student Industrial
Attachment Programme run by the Hong Kong Institute
of Vocational Education (IVE).

The Group has made following community donations:
Table 12: Community Investments

Name

=1

E8 #HERE

REBEBLELFRUEZHATE - BHE
BIERA R RA MRS W B E MR D
— PN REBEZT-__F=ZA=+—HL
FE AEBERSZHEFEEEHE S (VD
ENNBEETHEESTENSEREBEET K

& o
=

AREBDEHITHERIBR :

®’i&12: HERE

The Lighthouse Club Hong Kong Benevolent Fund
REeEBRELAD
Mother’s Choice

R TRE

The Zubin Mahtani Gidumal Foundation Limited — donation to support ethnic minority families

IMERSESEARAR — BRXEIBEBSHE

Hong Kong society for protection of children — donations towards the necessities of children

EERERES — RREAEAHMIELBR

Other than donations, the Group actively encourages
its staff to serve the community. The Group will
continue to do its part to help those who are in need
and are less fortunate in society by making further
future donations and encouraging staff to get involved
in charity works.

IBI Group Holdings Limited
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HONG KONG STOCK EXCHANGE ESG EARABRXFTESGHERSIRAERSIX
REPORTING GUIDE CONTENT INDEX

Aspects from

Appendix 27 Disclosure Sections in ESG Report
M § = + & At g TE wRE RESG & HEE
Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

BREEERE

13. Governance Structure A statement from the board containing the following elements: A. Governance Structure

(i) a disclosure of the board’s oversight of ESG issues.

(i) the board’s ESG management approach and strategy,
including the process used to evaluate, prioritise and
manage material ESG-related issues (including risks to the
issuer’s businesses); and

(i) how the board reviews progress made against ESG-related
goals and targets with an explanation of how they relate to
the issuer’s businesses.

13. BEVaR1E HESGELENER  EFHE TR A ERZRIE

() HEEFSUHESGEENEE

(i) EEFEHESGEREHH KX BN BAHIKE
BEZHNESCHEMEER (BEHEEITAERNRER)&EE

K
(i) FBEEWMEIRESGHARE B R EE - WRET M E
BITARGARE -
14. Reporting Principles A description of, or an explanation on, the application of the B. Reporting Principles

following Reporting Principles (Materiality, Quantitative,
Consistency) in the preparation of the ESG report.

14. [EIRR A Rl R R ESGIRE R AR T ERRA(ZEE - B ERFKA
Bk —81) -

15. Reporting Boundary A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the ESG report B. Reporting Boundary
and describing the process used to identify which entities or
operations are included in the ESG report. If there is a change in
the scope, the issuer should explain the difference and reason for

the change.
15, (&R #5 [E FREEESG MEMIEMEE[E - REMPGEML F R EBRNAESG B. EREE
WMERRIE o FEREBEBINE - BITARRETR 2B RE#
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Aspects from
Appendix 27
MisE =+ L Frai i m

Disclosure

mE

Sections in ESG Report
RESG & HEE

Environmental
RiB
A1. Emissions

A1 B

A1 General Disclosure

Al —RIFE

KPIA1.1
BB BIE IR AT
KPIA1.2

FASAEIRIRAL.2

KPI'A1.3

PSR AERIEIRA1.3

KPI'A1.4

B IE IR A4
KPIA1.5
FABHERIEIRAL5

KPI'A1.6

RSB RUIEIRA1.6

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer;
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into
water and land and generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste.

FRERIRERBYN - Mk R THEEET  BEREEEE
MHEEER  QBE RO ETHETABERZENEH
ER RO ER -

The types of emissions and respective emissions data.
HERURE A R AR BE B -

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas
emissions (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g., per
unit of production volume, per facility).

B (HEN) RERAEE (BE2) REREENE (UAMEETE) k(40
HR)EE(MABESEM - §EKXBAE) -

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g., per unit of production volume, per
facility).

FEXEEREEDHE CAEAE) R(ER) ZRE (NS ES
B GIERBFTE)

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g., per unit of production volume, per
facility).

EABEEREEYEE CAEGE) X (ER) BE (MAEGESE
B - BIERETE) ©

Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve
them.

R FTRI LB E B IR R AE R E L B IR ERENE P8R

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are
handled and a description of reduction target(s) set and steps
taken to achieve them.

HMEEEERBEEFEEMN AL - RIEMPEIZRERER
REIEEBFEMERNLR o

D. Group’s Environmental
Footprint

Table 2: List of laws and
regulations
D. 7k M 60355 2 1)

&2 ERNMRDIFIR

D.1. Reduce Emission

D.1. WA BER

Table 3: Emissions Footprint

=3 BEUR R

Table 4: Quantity of Waste
Generated

x4 EENEDE

Table 4: Quantity of Waste
Generated

R4 ELEMEDE

Table 6: Emissions Target
and Steps Taken

R6 PR B R REREE
D.2. Manage Waste

D2 BEEEY
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RE  HERERBHE

Aspects from
Appendix 27
Misg —+ L Frat @ m

Disclosure

mE

Sections in ESG Report
RESG & HEE

A2. Use of Resources
A2. EREHA

A2 General Disclosure
A2 —fR IR

KPI A2.1
RARERURIR A2.1

KPI'A2.2

FABHARIEIRA2.2
KPI A2.3

BB MIEIRA2.3

KPI'A2.4

PSR IR A2.4

KPI'A2.5

BB RIEIRA2.5

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including energy, water
and other raw materials.

BRERAER(BIEER « KREMEMED) BB -

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity,
gas or oil) in total (kWh in ’000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

RERESMERE R SEEER(NE - Jeloh) 8FE (AT
EFEEAE) RBE (NABES SR - BERBE)
Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).

BRKERTE (WMAGESSN - BERMEH)
Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken
to achieve them.

R PTET S BV RE IR R AR B AR M AiE R3S A B ARFTERIR B 2 5% -

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is
fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to
achieve them.

FEHCSKBGER KR S B EAEE - ARTEI LM AKWE B iE
NIRER|E L B IR IR B -

Total packaging material used for finished products (in tonnes)
and, if applicable, with reference to per unit produced.

R MATABEEMERAE (I E) k(@A) BEEEN
1EE -

D.3. Use of Resources

D.3. &R A

Table 5: Consumption Data

=5 HFEEUE
D.3.3. Water Utilisation

D.3.3. A

Table 6: Emissions Target
and Steps Taken

*6 : P B R KRR A
s

D.3.3. Water Utilisation

D.3.3. K

The use of packaging
materials for finished
products is not applicable to
the Group due to its business
nature.
BRAEENEREE - &
BR fn FT A BEM BB E AT
HANRAER -
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RIR - #HE8KRER

Aspects from
Appendix 27
MisE =+ L Frai i m

HE

Disclosure

mE

Sections in ESG Report
RESG & HEE

A3. The Environment and Natural Resources

A3. RERRARER
A3 General Disclosure

A3 — BRI 5=
KPI A3.1

PR AR IR AS.1

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts on the
environment and natural resources.
MIEEITAHRERRRERERKEATENBR

Description of the significant impacts of activities on the
environment and natural resources and the actions taken to
manage them.

R EBEBEIRBERRRNERNEAZE D RDREEEHY
21178 o

D.4 The Environment and
Natural Resources

D.4 BRIERRAEIR
D.4 The Environment and
Natural Resources

D.4 BREERKAER

A4. Climate Change
Ad. RIZE1E

A4 General Disclosure

A4 — IR
KPI A4.1

BASR B IR IR A4.1

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-
related issues which have impacted and those which may impact,
the issuer.

BAIREH R LA EHBRTAEEYENEARKIARER
EVIRER o

Description of the significant climate-related issues which have
impacted and those which may impact, the issuer and the actions
taken to manage them.

BB RAEEHBETAEEYENEARGARER - RE
178

D.5 Climate Change

D.5 RIEE (L

D.5. Climate change

D.5. RIRE (L,

96 IBI Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021/2022



ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
R dHERERRE

Aspects from
Appendix 27
Misg —+ L Frat @ m

Disclosure

mE

Sections in ESG Report
RESG & HEE

Social

HeE

B1. Employment
B1. Ef&

B1 General Disclosure

B1 — &5

KPI B1.1
RABHE SR B1.1
KPI B1.2

PSR IRRB1.2

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer;
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and
promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal opportunity,
diversity, anti-discrimination and other benefits and welfare.
BEAFM LR E  BEREA  TIERE - BRI TERE %
Tl SRIBR DA B B 538 B A FI 8D (@) SR I (b) <P 4 8817
ABERZEOEERMROIENER -

Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or
part-time), age group and geographical region.

IR EEER (N2 BEERE) - FiRAsI R E S HES
B o

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical
region.

IR - FEAR K EE D HEB MK E -

E.1. Care for Employees

Table 8: List of Laws and
Regulations

BET

E.1. B8

&8 AR NMABITIR
Table 7: Employment Details

®R7:EFEAMA
Table 7: Employment Details

&7 EIRAAAR

B2. Health and Safety

B2. @FERZE

B2 General Disclosure

B2 — & 55
KPI B2.1

FABIE M5 1R B2.1
KPI B2.2
FABHARUIEIR B2.2
KPI B2.3

FASAENIERB2.3

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer;
relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting
employees from occupational hazards.
EARELZ2TERERREBESHEBENLBETN@QEE &
L) BETHETABEATENHBER RPN ER -
Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the
past three years including the reporting year.

BE=ZF (BRERFE)BFRAITHOABKLLE -

Lost days due to work injury.

ETIGERTIEAE -

Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted
and how they are implemented and monitored.

R PRER BB E R R 2451 - U RABBEARTRER A

E.2. Health and Safety

E2 f#FiL s
Table 9: Count of Incidents

RO BHURE

Table 9: Count of Incidents
RO FBHUREK

E.2. Health and Safety

E2. fERET S
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Aspects from
Appendix 27
MisE =+ L Frai i m

Disclosure

mE

Sections in ESG Report

RESG & HEH

B3. Development and Training

B3. ¥R &IEII
B3 General Disclosure

B3 — I 5=
KPI B3.1

BSR4 R FE1R BS. 1
KPI B3.2

PR AE 1R B3.2

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for
discharging duties at work. Description of training activities.
BHERIHE S BT TR E 6 A R RE IR - fdUBFIES) -
The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee
category (e.g. senior management, middle management).
RUERIREEEN(NERERE  +REEE)EASNZIEES
ERia

The average training hours completed per employee by gender
and employee category.

RIERIREEERRE D - BREBTHZIE TR -

E.3. Development and
Training

E.3. R &IET

Table 10: Total Training
Hours

F10 : BT EL

Table 10: Total Training
Hours
=10 : I8

B4. Labour Standards

B4. & T %8|

B4 General Disclosure
B4 — X FE

KPI B4.1

RAB IR MIE1R B4.1
KPI B4.2

FASAE IR R B4.2

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer;
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
ERAM IEZE T kadhil 4 TH) (@) BSK © K (o) B5F
T EOERER MR DIEER -

Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid
child and forced labour.

R BRI R AR R E T RAHST -

Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when
discovered.

fet A IR E RIS HIR B BB U BREREY 2B -

HETABEKR

E.4. Labour Standards

E.4. & T¥#8|
E.4. Labour Standards

E.4. BT %8|
E.4. Labour Standards

E.4. TR
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Aspects from
Appendix 27

B8 =+t At EE

Disclosure

mE

Sections in ESG Report
RESG & HEE

B5. Supply Chain Management

B5. fEEERE

B5 General Disclosure

B5 — I EE
KPI B5.1

RS 48 IR IR B5.1
KPI B5.2

RS AE BIRIZB5.2

KPI B5.3

PR AE MIE1R B5.3

KPI B5.4

R4S IE 1R B5.4

Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply
chain.

EIRHERAIRE Rt R

Number of suppliers by geographical region.

BB SR HERHA -

Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of
suppliers where the practices are being implemented and how
they are implemented and monitored.

MG REREERAED  mERTEBEMNHEEREE -
AR ABREAITRERTE -

Description of practices used to identify environmental and social
risks along the supply chain and how they are implemented and
monitored.

G B R e S T EER A A IR IR At & R 0 B - DA AR
BT RERT A -

Description of practices used to promote environmentally
preferable products and services when selecting suppliers and
how they are implemented and monitored.

R TEBRE H R (2 (8 2 ARRE m R IRISEVE DI - AKX AERE
MITREERAE -

E.5. Supply Chain
Management

E.5. ftrEsEE e
Table 11: Number of
Suppliers

=11 HEREA
E.5. Supply Chain
Management

E5. ftrEsEE R

E.5. Supply Chain
Management

E5. ftrEsEE R

E.5. Supply Chain
Management

E5. ftrEsEE R

B6. Product Responsibility

B6. EmE(T

B6 General Disclosure

B6 — I 5=

KPI B6.1

RS AE N IE15 B6.1
KPI B6.2

RS AE N IE15 B6.2
KPI B6.3

BASAE N IE15B6.3
KPI B6.4
BAS AR5 B6.4
KPI B6.5

RSB NIE1R B6.5

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer;
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy
matters relating to products and services provided and methods of
redress.

BERAMREERNBRENRERLZSE BES  SERLEEFEN
RHRITER (@) B R (o) BFHBITABERZENHEBE
RO ER -

Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for
safety and health reasons.
BEERDEXEMABPRL T EREREAMARDKNBA DL -
Number of products and service-related complaints received and
how they are dealt with.

BN E M MRS 8B A R EE 75 0% -

Description of practices relating to observing and protecting
intellectual property rights.

et B g o AR AR E R A B o

Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures.
S SR TEBIEREMEIBIRF °

Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies and
how they are implemented and monitored.

WU B E ERMRE RALRBR - U MBI RERTA

E.6. Product Responsibility

E6. EmMET

E.6. Product Responsibility

E6 EmEfE
E.6. Product Responsibility

E6 EmEfE
E.6. Product Responsibility

E6 EmEfE

E.6. Product Responsibility
E6 EmEfE

E.6.1 Data Privacy

E.6.1 BURALEE
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Appendix 27
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Disclosure

mE

Sections in ESG Report
RESG & HEE

B7. Anti-corruption
B7. RES
B7 General Disclosure
B7 — M E

KPI B7.1

FA 48 BUIRIZ BT .1
KPI B7.2

B E IR B7.2
KPIB7.3

FASAENIERBT.3

Information on: (a) the policies; and (b) compliance with relevant
laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer;
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

RV ILHRRE - 9% - BGERERERN @ BER M (b) B ri
TABERZENERMEZRBROIEER o

Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices
brought against the issuer or its employees during the reporting
period and the outcomes of the cases.
REFPRNHEHTANEEEIRET EEENE THARENE
B REFAER -

Description of preventive measures and whistle-blowing
procedures and how they are implemented and monitored.
TRy EE i MR REF - URBERITRERSE -
Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and
staff.

HmEERE TRENRESE -

E.7. Anti-Corruption

E7.RES

E.7. Anti-Corruption

E7. RES
E.7. Anti-Corruption

E7. RES
E.7. Anti-Corruption

E7.RES

B8. Community Investment

B8. HtERE
B8 General Disclosure

B8 — I 5=

KPI B8.1

FASR 4B IS 1R BB

KPI B8.2
RABHAIEIR BB.2

Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of
the communities where the issuer operates and to ensure its
activities take into consideration the communities’ interests.

B R2ERTHREEMEHRFENRREERIDHEE
At I8 A ER Y BUR

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental
concerns, labour needs, health, culture, sport).

EIERER(NHE  REFEE  SIFK EZFE b B
B)-

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area.
EEIHBMBAER (NG EERE)

E.8 Community Investment

E8HERIRE
E.8 Community Investment

Table 12: Community
Investments
E8 tt@IE&E

®12: HREKRE
E.8 Community Investment

E8 (it &
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|IBDO

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
IBI GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of IBI Group
Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the
“Group”) set out on pages 107 to 192, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 March 2022,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
March 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants” (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

31BI GROUP HOLDINGS LIMITED
FIL AR R
(RASHSEMA LA BR LA

=z
=

5B # % F107E192H AT #IBI Group Holdings
Limited ([ E AT ) REWB AR (5E [ E5E ) /947
AUBRE  EPBEER _ZE-__F=ZA=+—A8%
EHBRAREEEZA EFENGEBREEMEE
Wk e RREHRREERENEXAREEY
BREAMT  BREFZSHERHME -

BERR  GEMBHRREREEESFMAS(EE
SEEAE ) MG E BN EHRE LR ([HEPBERSE
ZUDEBERAFHRR BEKER_-_FT-__F=7
=+ BANEEMBRAARBEZ R FFENGEA
BR|NGEARERE  YEBREFBARGIINEE
REH RS -

RRE®

BEEREBFEGTMASBEMNBTERNEYN((FEE
AHERIDETEZ c ERFENT  BEENEEEES
MIER [ZBEEREE VBRI AENEE] —
- SR - RIBBFB A AGN(EEXSTRNE
A (TR BEFBUN E5E - YSEREST
ARTTEMERRT - BFHE  BSMESENERE
EEREMEENREENEREHER
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we
do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Recognition of contract revenue

Refer to Notes 4(k)(i), 5() and 7 to the consolidated financial
statements.

The Group recognised revenue from provision of renovation
services as a main contractor for property projects in the private
sector in Hong Kong and Macau (“Contracting”) of approximately
HK$403,888,000 for the year ended 31 March 2022.

The Group recognises revenue from Contracting according to the
Group’s management’s estimation of the total outcome of the
construction contracts as well as the percentage of completion of
the Contracting which requires the estimation of contract costs of
each contract. Contract costs of individual contracts are
determined based on budget of the contract which was prepared
by the management. The recognition of revenue and the estimation
of the outcome of construction contracts require significant
management judgement, in particular with respect to estimating the
cost to complete and the amounts of variations and claims to be
recognised.

Our response:

Our procedures in relation to management’s recognition of contract
revenue included:

° Comparing contract sum and budgeted contract costs to
respective signed contracts and approved budgets on a
sample basis;

° Discussing with the management of the Group and testing
the supporting evidence to evaluate the reasonableness of
the management’s estimation of the budgeted contract
costs;

IBI Group Holdings Limited
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° Checking the existence and valuation of variations to
correspondences with customers on a sample basis; and

° Obtaining an understanding from management of the Group
about how the approved budgets were prepared and the
respective stage of completion were determined.

OTHER INFORMATION IN THE ANNUAL
REPORT

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the Company’s
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

s WMEBRERFTFPHXMHERBERNIEHMMGE:
)53

e A EREEEETHRNARRSHERE R
R TERPEER ©

FHRARAMESR

EXERHEMERNASE - HERBR BEARFHM
HER  ETBREAVBHRRLEFHNZBENRS

BEEHRANMBRRERNERL TVREEMBEN - &
ENMTE UL BEREMEANRE SR

IEFHRAMBHRIETHERTTIEME - BFRE
EREMER  TEREMENES BGEAMHRERX
BEENESA TEAESER ZHERERNTERNER -
NHRAEEAMTERREAHEREL - HEFERATET
TEMBHEFEMERNEERNHERELNER - BIE
FEERBABN - BN E  BFLBAEFRNEE -

ESNGEUBRRARENER

EEARERBEEBSMASRMNTEN B IRELE
AIRBEBARGINERBERETRBEEE AU RRER
MR mE  RETHRESRAMBREIE L EN
BRANRERE  IWEXFHEYBRRTEFEHRRK
FEREARR M G B E A AR B -

ERBFAMBHERE  EFRENE EXEREL
EHEEN YEERBATHREEARBELLEENE
B URERFELLREHER RIEFEFE

BEEEBRYE ML HRBEEMBERERIE -

g
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The directors are also responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process. The Audit Committee assists the
directors in discharging their responsibility in this regard.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with the terms of our
engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

° obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
control.
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° evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to
draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
B 2B R &

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, action taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine
those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

BDO Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Ho Yee Man
Practising Certificate number: PO7395

Hong Kong, 30 June 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

meBEskEtEZEKER

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—F-_—F=A=1+—HIFFZ

2022 2021
—E-F T4
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
5T FHET FHIT
Revenue Wz 7 407,491 513,136
Other (losses)/gains Hith (&518), Wz 7 (1,613) 43,566
Revenue and other (losses)/gains Uz K HoAb (B518),Uzs 405,878 556,702
Direct costs B (337,926) (477,268)
Gross profit EA 67,952 79,434
Other income HA A 8 215 5,903
Administrative and other THREMEEFRS
operating expenses (34,122) (29,223)
Finance costs BB KR 9 (353) (316)
Profit before income tax expense BRETSFIE AT RF 10 33,692 55,798
Income tax expense FTS i 2 11 (7,235) (1,720)
Profit and total comprehensive FRBANREZEKALEE
income for the year 26,457 54,078
Profit and total comprehensive DT EEEEFRERNR
income for the year 2HEINAEEE !
attributable to:
— Owners of the Company — KRAIEBA 27,010 54,390
— Non-controlling interests — JEE R E R (553) (312)
26,457 54,078
Earnings per share: BREF
Basic and diluted (HK Cents) AR R (BIL) 14 3.4 6.8
IBI Group Holdings Limited 107
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

iR MR R &
As at 31 March 2022
R-FE——F=FH=+—H

2022 2021
—E-CF T
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Mo TFHET T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - WENMERE 15 924 359
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 4,302 3,827
Financial assets at fair value through BAFEFAEBEN
profit or loss TREE 17 16,062 61,825
21,288 66,011
Current assets REBEE
Contract assets BHEE 18 100,139 110,130
Trade and other receivables B 5 M H W FRIE 19 28,643 116,917
Property under development BERPYE 20 10,250 -
Inventories =& 604 381
Pledged deposits EHEBER 21 14,850 14,426
Tax recoverable A] Uiz 51554 18 278 1,210
Cash and cash equivalents HeRIRESEEY 141,647 87,142
Total current assets MENEEAE 296,411 330,206
Current liabilities REBAE
Contract liabilities aHEE 18 4,072 1,224
Trade and other payables H 5 RAMERFRIE 22 135,473 209,322
Lease liabilities HeEaE 23 2,791 2,992
Tax payables FERTER IR 5,933 270
Total current liabilities MENE EEEE 148,269 213,808
Net current assets RBEERE 148,142 116,398
Total assets less current liabilities AEERABERS 169,430 182,409
Non-current liability FREBEE
Lease liabilities HEBRE 23 1,759 1,195
NET ASSETS EEFE 167,671 181,214
Capital and reserves EARRHE
Share capital A& AN 24 8,000 8,000
Reserves ] 160,534 173,524
Equity attributable to owners EAREEAELESR
of the Company 168,534 181,524
Non-controlling interests FEIE AR M 2 (863) (310)
TOTAL EQUITY DA 167,671 181,214
On behalf of directors REE=S

Neil David HOWARD

Director

EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

mEREBER

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BE T —F=H=+—HIFE

Equity attributable to owners of the Company

RAREE ARLRER
Non-
Share Share Merger  Retained controlling
capital premium reserve profits Total interest Total
BA  ROEE AHEE REEA @t FERER Mt

HK$'000 HK$'000

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET THET FHT FHT THT FTET THET
(Note 24) (Note (i) (Note (ii))
(FfizE24) (HEEEQ)  (HIRE()
At 1 April 2020 R-ZB-BFMmA—A 8,000 73613 (13511) 67,032 135134 - 135134
Profit and total comprehensive FREFREEEABE
income for the year - - - 54,390 54,390 (312) 54,078
Capital injection from BRI E
non-controlling interests . . - - - 2 2
Dividend declared and paid (Note 13) &% & MR {TA% E (FIFE13) - - - (8,000 (8,000) - (8,000
At 31 March 2021 R=B=—%=A=+-8 8,000 73,613 (13511) 113422 181,524 (310) 181,214
Profit and total comprehensive FRENR2ERARRE
income for the year - - - 27,010 27,010 (653) 26,457
Dividend declared and paid (Note 13) B & JE & JE{T % & (K5 13) - - - (40,000) (40,000) - (40,000)
At 31 March 2022 R-B-—f=H=+—H 8,000 73,613 (13,511) 100,432 168,534 (863) 167,671
Notes: BsE -
(i) Share premium (i) BB E

Share premium account of the Group represents the excess of the
proceeds received over the nominal value of the Company’s shares
issued.

(i) Merger reserve
The merger reserve represents the difference between the investment

costs in subsidiaries and the nominal value of the issued share capital of
the Group’s subsidiaries.

(ii)

AEER A EREMKRFIRBE AR R EB#ITROEE
HEb
i 1]

EHEFHERNBARNRERAEREEETHBERRE
BATIRAHE(E 2 R Z5E -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mERERER

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—T - —F=HA=1+—HIFE

2022 2021
=== T —F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
5T F#&T FHIT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHEERE
Profit before income tax expense B BT 1S 54 7 2 AT A1) 33,692 55,798
Adjustments for: AT ZEAR
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment  ¥12 « = LR HEITE 620 211
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHEEETE 2,618 2,558
Gain on lease modification HE sk (324) -
Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value 12 2 FE&H A
through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) ([BRAFEFAEBZDH
SEEEZ AT EKE 1,613 (43,566)
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEaBENFBHAY 353 316
Covid-19-related rent concession Covid-19 188 2 & ER = (306)
Interest income FLEMA (11) (468)
Operating profit before working capital changes & 4& & 4 % &) Jij 4% 2 i 7] 38,561 14,543
Decrease in contract assets BHEERD 9,991 33,938
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities BHaEEM CR) 2,848 (18,502)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other B 5 N E MW R TE
receivables WA (E ) 88,274 (33,642)
Increase in properties under development LR R YL N (10,250) -
Increase in inventories FEEM (223) (381)
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets LA EFAERED
at FVTPL SREEMD, () 44,150 (63,615)
Decrease in trade and other payables B 5 K E A A FORR (73,849) (28,727)
Cash generated from/(used in) operations rEmB/ (FTR)BEE 99,502 (96,386)
Income tax paid BEAATER (640) (3,477)
Net cash generated from/(used in) RESEERE,(FTA)
operating activities REFH 98,862 (99,863)
Cash flows from investing activities RETBHEESRE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE BMELKE (1,185) (337)
(Increase)/decrease in pledged deposits BEMEREEM), R (424) 1,710
Interest received B HFIE 11 468
Net cash (used in)/generated from RETE(FA), R
investing activities REFEE (1,598) 1,841
Cash flows from financing activities REITBHEESRE
Repayment of lease liabilities BEAEAR 29 (2,759) (2,511)
Capital injection from non-controlling interests ~ JE1E PR HEZS S+ & - 2
Dividend paid BRE 13 (40,000) (8,000)
Net cash used in financing activities REEZHMARSESE (42,759) (10,509)
Net increase/(decrease) in HERBREZEEY
cash and cash equivalents #hn,/ GBd) BEE 54,505 (108,531)
Cash and cash equivalents FNBRESRBESEEY
at beginning of year 87,142 195,673
Cash and cash equivalents FRASRAESEEY
at end of year 141,647 87,142
Analysis of the balances of REeERESEENERDIT
cash and cash equivalents
Cash at banks and in hand RITRFERE 141,647 87,142
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR EWAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—F-_—F=A=1+—HIFFZ

GENERAL INFORMATION 1. —REH

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an ARABIRZZE—RNEMANBRERSEHS AN
exempted company with limited liability on 6 April 2016 under BRERNANE(—NAR—FE=GERE - KEE
the Companies Law, Cap.22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated MiEE ) EHESBE STk AEEREBR AT °
and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The address of its H oF it 9 = &R b fit & One Nexus Way, Camana
registered office is One Nexus Way, Camana Bay, Grand Bay, Grand Cayman, KY1-9005, Cayman Islands °
Cayman, KY1-9005, Cayman Islands. Its principal place of EFBE BN E S X AF 18R ARIT
business is located at 3/F, Bangkok Bank Building, 18 KEIE

Bonham Strand West, Hong Kong.

The shares of the Company were listed on the Main Board of AATIBROR—ZE—RETATUAER RS
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock THAR AR ([EZ]) R EMm ([ L) -
Exchange”) on 14 October 2016 (the “Listing”).

The Company is an investment holding company. The KRB EBREERAR - REBTEELRAIES
principal activities of the Group are to act as a building BTN IEMBTRENEERER  BEEEK
contractor focusing on providing renovation services as a SRPIRL S REEEEmEREE((ARE]) %
main contractor for property projects in the private sector in B E R ERE R 2R RIFEART
Hong Kong and Macau (“Contracting”), strategic investments BEZRNEEME AEENERLRE -

and provision of products and services with a focus on air

quality, energy efficiency and modern sustainable building

materials.

ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL 2. BMEBYBBREEN(EBHBERE

REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)

(a) Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1

R )

(a) RMHEBETEBUBEREED — B

April 2021 —E--FHWUA-BBEN
Amendments to HKFRS 9, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform BEYBREERER . FIREENE
HKAS 39, HKFRS 7, — Phase 2 EESHERNZ 0% - £2ER
HKFRS 4 and HKFRS 16 BENBREEUETS
BAVEREENE4ER
BANEREENE 165
(B3T)
Amendment to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent BAMBREEE6Y, -5 BEZTH
Concessions beyond (B3TK) [A%#COVID-19
30 June 2021 HEREER

IBI Group Holdings Limited
2021/2022 F [Z 4
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—T - —F=HA=1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

112

(a)

Adoption of new/revised HKFRSs — effective 1
April 2021 (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 39, HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16, Interest Rate
Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

The amendments provide targeted reliefs from (i)
accounting for changes in the basis for determining
contractual cash flows of financial assets, financial
liabilities and lease liabilities as modifications, and (ii)
discontinuing hedge accounting when an interest rate
benchmark is replaced by an alternative benchmark
rate as a result of the reform of interbank offered rates
(“IBOR reform”). The amendments do not have an
impact on these financial statements as the Group does
not have contracts that are indexed to benchmark
interest rates which are subject to the IBOR reform.

Amendment to HKFRS 16, Covid-19-Related
Rent Concessions beyond 30 June 2021

The Group previously applied the practical expedient in
HKFRS 16 such that as lessee it was not required to
assess whether rent concessions occurring as a direct
consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic were lease
modifications, if the eligibility conditions are met. One of
these conditions requires the reduction in lease
payments affect only payments originally due on or
before a specified time limit. The 2021 amendment
extends this time limit from 30 June 2021.

IBI Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021/2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—F-_—F=A=1+—HIFFZ

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective

The following amended HKFRSs, potentially relevant to
the Group’s consolidated financial statements, have
been issued, but are not yet effective and have not
been early adopted by the Group. The Group’s current
intention is to apply these changes on the date they
become effective.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current and Related Amendments
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 (2020)?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies?
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates?
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and
Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction?
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use'
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract'
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework’
Amendments to HKFRS 1, Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
HKFRS 9, HKFRS 16 2018-2020"
and HKAS 41
HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between
and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or

Joint Venture®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

2022.

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023.

8 The amendments shall be applied prospectively to the sale

or contribution of assets occurring in annual periods
beginning on or after a date to be determined.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—T - —F=HA=1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

114

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1, Classification of
Liabilities as Current or Non-current and HK
Interpretation 5 (2020), Presentation of
Financial Statements — Classification by the
Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a
Repayment on Demand Clause

The amendments clarify that the classification of
liabilities as current or non-current is based on rights
that are in existence at the end of the reporting period,
specify that classification is unaffected by expectations
about whether an entity will exercise its right to defer
settlement of a liability and explain that rights are in
existence if covenants are complied with at the end of
the reporting period. The amendments also introduce a
definition of ‘settlement’ to make clear that settlement
refers to the transfer to the counterparty of cash, equity
instruments, other assets or services.

HK Interpretation 5 (2020) was revised as a
consequence of the Amendments to HKAS 1 issued in
August 2020. The revision to HK Interpretation 5 (2020)
updates the wordings in the interpretation to align with
the Amendments to HKAS 1 with no change in
conclusion and do not change the existing
requirements.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments and revision in the
future will have an impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

IBI Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021/2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR EWAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—F-_—F=A=1+—HIFFZ

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2, Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments change the requirements in HKAS 1
with regard to disclosure of accounting policies. The
amendments replace all instances of the term
‘significant accounting policies’ with ‘material
accounting policy information’. Accounting policy
information is material if, when considered together with
other information included in an entity’s financial
statements, it can reasonably be expected to influence
decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those
financial statements.

The supporting paragraphs in HKAS 1 are also
amended to clarify that accounting policy information
that relates to immaterial transactions, other events or
conditions is immaterial and need not be disclosed.
Accounting policy information may be material because
of the nature of the related transactions, other events or
conditions, even if the amounts are immaterial.
However, not all accounting policy information relating
to material transactions, other events or conditions is
itself material.

Guidance and examples have been developed to
explain and demonstrate the application of the ‘“four-
step materiality process’ described in HKFRS Practice
Statement 2.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the above amendments in the future will
have an impact on the consolidated financial
statements.

RMNBEMBRELEN(EBHBRS
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(b)
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R ABBERIFEARR S - HbEHHIE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—T - —F=HA=1+—HIFE

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

116

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 8, Definition of
Accounting Estimates

The amendments replace the definition of a change in
accounting estimates with a definition of accounting
estimates. Under the new definition, accounting
estimates are “monetary amounts in financial
statements that are subject to measurement
uncertainty”.

The definition of a change in accounting estimates was
deleted. However, the concept of changes in
accounting estimates was retained in the Standard with
the following clarifications:

o A change in accounting estimate that results from
new information or new developments is not the
correction of an error.

° The effects of a change in an input or a
measurement technique used to develop an
accounting estimate are changes in accounting
estimates if they do not result from the correction
of prior period errors.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments in the future will have an
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR EWAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—F-_—F=A=1+—HIFFZ

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 12, Deferred Tax related
to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction

The amendments introduce a further exception from
the initial recognition exemption. Under the
amendments, an entity does not apply the initial
recognition exemption for transactions that give rise to
equal taxable and deductible temporary differences.

Depending on the applicable tax law, equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences may arise on initial
recognition of an asset and liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit. For example, this may
arise upon recognition of a lease liability and the
corresponding right-of-use asset applying HKFRS 16 at
the commencement date of a lease.

Following the amendments to HKAS 12, an entity is
required to recognise the related deferred tax asset and
liability, with the recognition of any deferred tax asset
being subject to the recoverability criteria in HKAS 12.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the above amendments in the future will
have an impact on the consolidated financial
statements.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

118

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 16, Property, Plant and
Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use

The amendments prohibit deducting from the cost of
an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds
from selling items produced while bringing that asset to
the location and condition necessary for it to be capable
of operating in the manner intended by management.
Instead, the proceeds from selling such items, and the
cost of producing those items, is recognised in profit or
loss.

The directors of the Company is currently assessing the
impact that the application of the amendments will have
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 37, Onerous Contracts
— Cost of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that the ‘cost of fulfilling’ a
contract comprises the ‘costs that relate directly to the
contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can
either be incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g.
direct labour and materials) or an allocation of other
costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (e.g. the
allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of
property, plant and equipment used in fulfilling the
contract).

The directors of the Company is currently assessing the
impact that the application of the amendments will have
on the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

IBI Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021/2022

2. RMNBERUBRE

ZA(ERMBRE

EE\UJ) (IIE)

(b)

BREMEERER I RETEERHK
BEER ()

BEBETERFEI6HIETE  WE BE
RRfE  BERZBAHIFEHE

ZEERIEILAME - BB RRERE WK
AR 8 B E PR IR IR E IR E R M
HTARREEMVENE MEITBRERE
HEYIR B T HEMEHOE - ik - KRB
FHEALEZFRAMNASREARELZE
TH B BB ©

ARREFERAEFHEEAZS
HAREBRA MG RERER A

2 4H*
¥ &

BBEERIEI7THISTE  EBEEA
IBITERIBI KA

E%#f FIAGRTAE AR [BITRA] B[4
BHEZMARKA] - BEOEZREMN
EJZ$EF—J7%JETT IR ERA (INEE S
TR - MASERETEOERERN
HMAADE (AR BETENNYE - K
FEREEBEBNFE LN -

T

T

ARREF B A EFHEEAZSES
HAKERA MG HRREKRNFS

=
o nu\



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR EWAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—F-_—F=A=1+—HIFFZ

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 3, Reference to the
Conceptual Framework

The amendments update HKFRS 3 so that it refers to
the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 instead of the version issued in 2010.
The amendments add to HKFRS 3 a requirement that,
for obligations within the scope of HKAS 37, an acquirer
applies HKAS 37 to determine whether at the
acquisition date a present obligation exists as a result
of past events. For a levy that would be within the
scope of HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 Levies, the acquirer applies
HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 to determine whether the obligating
event that gives rise to a liability to pay the levy has
occurred by the acquisition date. The amendments also
add an explicit statement that an acquirer does not
recognise contingent assets acquired in a business
combination.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments in the future will have an
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)
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(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 1, HKFRS 9, HKFRS 16
and HKAS 41, Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2018-2020

The annual improvements amends a number of
standards, including:

HKFRS 1, First-time Adoption of Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, which permit a
subsidiary that applies paragraph D16(a) of
HKFRS 1 to measure cumulative translation
differences using the amounts reported by its
parent, based on the parent’s date of transition to
HKFRSs.

HKFRS 9, Financial Instruments, which clarify the
fees included in the ‘10 per cent’ test in
paragraph B3.3.6 of HKFRS 9 in assessing
whether to derecognise a financial liability,
explaining that only fees paid or received between
the entity and the lender, including fees paid or
received by either the entity or the lender on
other’s behalf are included.

HKFRS 16, Leases, which amend lllustrative
Example 13 to remove the illustration of
reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the
lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion
regarding the treatment of lease incentives that
might arise because of how lease incentives are
illustrated in that example.

HKAS 41, Agriculture, which remove the
requirement to exclude taxation cash flows when
measuring the fair value of a biological asset using
a present value technique.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments in the future will have an
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UBRRMNEE

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—F-_—F=A=1+—HIFFZ

2. ADOPTION OF HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS (“HKFRSs”)
(CONTINUED)

(b)

New/revised HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective (Continued)

HKFRS 17, Insurance Contracts

The new standard establishes the principles for the
recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure
of insurance contracts and supersedes HKFRS 4,
Insurance Contracts. The standard outlines a ‘General
Model’, which is modified for insurance contracts with
direct participation features, described as the ‘Variable
Fee Approach’. The General Model is simplified if
certain criteria are met by measuring the liability for
remaining coverage using the Premium Allocation
Approach.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments in the future will have an
impact on the consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28, Sale
or Contribution of Assets between an Investor
and its Associate or Joint Venture

The amendments clarify with situations where there is a
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture. When the transaction with
an associate or joint venture that is accounted for using
the equity method, any gains or losses resulting from
the loss of control of a subsidiary that does not contain
a business are recognised in the profit or loss only to
the extent of the unrelated investors’ interests in that
associate or joint venture. Similarly, any gains or losses
resulting from the remeasurement of retained interest in
any former subsidiary (that has become an associate or
a joint venture) to fair value are recognised in the profit
or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investors’
interests in the new associate or joint venture.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the
application of the amendments in the future will have an
impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

122

(a)

(b)

(c)

Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations (hereinafter collectively referred to as the
“HKFRS”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Listing Rules”).

Basis of measurement

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared under the historical cost basis except for
certain financial instruments which are measured at fair
value as explained in the accounting policies set out
below.

Functional and presentation currency

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (‘HK$"), which is the same as the
functional currency of the Company and its subsidiaries
other than IBI Macau Limited, and all values are
rounded to the nearest thousand except when
otherwise stated.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—F-_—F=A=1+—HIFFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Basis of consolidation and subsidiaries

The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of the Company and subsidiaries.
Inter-company transactions and balances between
group companies together with unrealised profits are
eliminated in full in preparing the consolidated financial
statements. Unrealised losses are also eliminated
unless the transaction provides evidence of impairment
on the asset transferred, in which case the loss is
recognised in profit or loss.

A subsidiary is an investee over which the Company is
able to exercise control. The Company controls an
investee if all three of the following elements are
present: power over the investee, exposure, or rights,
to variable returns from the investee, and the ability to
use its power to affect those variable returns. Control is
reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate
that there may be a change in any of these elements of
control.

In the Company’s statement of financial position,
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less
impairment loss, if any. The result of a subsidiary is
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividend
received and receivable.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

124

(b)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

The cost of property, plant and equipment includes its
purchase price and the costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other costs, such as repairs and
maintenance are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated so as to
write off their cost net of expected residual value over
their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. The
useful lives, residual value and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of
each reporting period. The estimated useful lives are as
follows:

Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Office equipment 3-5 years or over the leases
and fittings terms, whichever the shorter

An asset is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if its carrying amount is higher than the asset’s
estimated recoverable amount (Note 4(0)).

An item of property, plant and equipment is
derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from the continued use
of the asset.

The gain or loss on disposal of an item of property,
plant and equipment is the difference between the net
sale proceeds and its carrying amount, and is
recognised in profit or loss on disposal.

IBI Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021/2022

4.

EXRSTHE (&)

(b) % - BERKRE
WE - BEER ﬁ&ﬁkﬁ/ﬂl%ﬁﬁ%&%:ﬁr
FAEER (WA ) 5Bk
WE  BEERENKARBEBAGBRK

B EHE EREHHOKAE -

E70 1R B B R R REE MR A A R AR
S8 LRZABMRAGER SRt B - 18
BRATTFABENREEXERRELE
E(IER) - B BRE D MREES R L
HERR » FTB AR A (I E RRE) A HE
EH RN RSN ER AR o

W - BB RRERAERRZRE AR
F SR I B DA L AR AR (AR N RR TR AR
PRMEE) - AIERFY  MREERNES
EREREPRRBIT LR BEE BN TEHA
B AEHERFHNT

RARBEEEKE 5%
WmoRENEE SESFIRMES
PABRRE B I

HEEMNBREESNEGTAIKESEE - Al
BESARHUBZEE AT 58 (FRE4(0)) °

WME - BEER ﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬂz”‘iﬁﬁ%ﬁ:ﬁf
ERZEENEEERIEEN SR LT
HEME - BEMREEB HREHER

BHERBRRFRELREENEZHE
YR ERREBEARER -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR EWAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—F-_—F=A=1+—HIFFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Financial instruments

(i)

Financial assets

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) is
initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not
measured at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade
receivable without a significant financing
component is initially measured at the transaction
price.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on the trade date, that is,
the date that the Group commits to purchase or
sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require
delivery of assets within the period generally
established by regulation or convention in the
market place.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirely when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
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(c)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets (Continued)
Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model for
managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments measured at:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Financial assets
at amortised cost are subsequently measured
using the effective interest method. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and
impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any
gain on derecognition is recognised in profit or
loss.

“FVTPL”: Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss include financial assets held for
trading, financial assets designated upon initial
recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or
financial assets mandatorily required to be
measured at fair value. Financial assets are
classified as held for trading if they are acquired
for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the
near term. Derivatives, including separated
embedded derivatives, are also classified as held
for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments. Financial assets with cash
flows that are not solely payments of principal and
interest are classified and measured at fair value
through profit or loss, irrespective of the business
model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt
instruments to be classified at amortised cost or
at fair value through other comprehensive income,
as described above, debt instruments may be
designated at fair value through profit or loss on
initial recognition if doing so eliminates, or
significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

IBI Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021/2022

4.

BEASEBE (&)
(c) £®IA(H)
() =2HEEGE)
EHETA

B TANKETERRARAREE
BREENEBRANUNZEENR
EREFH  ARBEZMEBEIIE
HEHTH:

BEAN : FFRBANRSREDN
BELBHEKRATE  EHABRRE
MEBAEEAS LA B - REH
AR ABRE) & BB E R IR B A EIRA
FEFTE o FBHA - SMEU E MBS
BARBERERER o & ILHERK
Ef TR R R o

[ZRFEFARZG]  BRAFETA
BaEMEREEEERFIFEENTR
BE  NREREEE/RAFE
FRABRENEREELR ZRERA
FEMENEREE - HEBSRE
ENENAEEHHERBERE
AZEEREESDBABIFESE - K
FTETA(BREBIBRARITETR)
BRETRERE DT A TRITSRER
RFIEEE - BREREWFERIN
AERFMENEMEEDB/EAF
Bt ABZATE - M A mERHRA
e BEFELAKEH TADER
RILBHERAIIR A FEFARE LS
EWAWRE  EHTADARIE
BRARIETEREATEFAERR A
RIS RBER D SR -



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Financial assets (Continued)
Equity instruments

On initial recognition of an equity investment that
is not held for trading, the Group has not elect to
present subsequent changes in the investment’s
fair value in other comprehensive income. All
equity instruments are classified as FVTPL,
whereby changes in fair value, dividends and
interest income are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment loss on financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for
expected credit losses (“ECLs”) on trade
receivables, contract assets, financial assets
measured at amortised cost. The ECLs are
measured on either of the following bases: (1) 12
months ECLs: these are the ECLs that result from
possible default events within the 12 months after
the end of reporting period; and (2) lifetime ECLs:
these are ECLs that result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The maximum period considered
when estimating ECLs is the maximum
contractual period over which the Group is
exposed to credit risk.

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of credit
losses. Credit losses are measured as the
difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance with the
contract and all the cash flows that the Group
expects to receive. The shortfall is then
discounted at an approximation to the assets’
original effective interest rate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)
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(c)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

The Group has elected to measure loss
allowances for trade receivables and contract
assets using HKFRS 9 simplified approach and
has calculated ECLs based on lifetime ECLs. The
Group has established a provision matrix that is
based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors
specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For other debt financial assets, the ECLs are
based on the 12 months ECLs. However, when
there has been a significant increase in credit risk
since origination, the allowance will be based on
the lifetime ECLs.

In assessing whether the credit risk of a financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of
default occurring on the financial instrument
assessed at the reporting date with that assessed
at the date of initial recognition.

When determining whether the credit risk of a
financial asset has increased significantly since
initial recognition and when estimating ECLs, the
Group considers reasonable and supportable
information that is relevant and available without
undue cost or effort. This includes both
quantitative and qualitative information analysis,
based on the Group’s historical experience and
informed credit assessment and including
forward-looking information.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a
financial asset has increased significantly if the
contractual payments are more than 90 days past
due.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—F-_—F=A=1+—HIFFZ

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c) Financial instruments (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment loss on financial assets
(Continued)

The Group considers a financial asset to be
credit-impaired when: (1) the borrower is unlikely
to pay its credit obligations to the Group in full,
without recourse by the Group to actions such as
realising security (if any is held); or (2) the financial
asset is more than 365 days past due.

Interest income on credit-impaired financial assets
is calculated based on the amortised cost (i.e. the
gross carrying amount less loss allowance) of the
financial asset. For non-credit-impaired financial
assets interest income is calculated based on the
gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities

The Group classifies its financial liabilities,
depending on the purpose for which the liabilities
were incurred. Financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss are initially measured at fair
value and financial liabilities at amortised costs
are initially measured at fair value, net of directly
attributable costs incurred.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities at amortised cost including
trade and other payables and lease liabilities are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using
the effective interest method. The related interest
expense is recognised in profit or loss.

Gains or losses are recognised in profit or loss
when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the amortisation process.

EXEHBE(E)

£RT A (&)

(ii)

(iii)

EMEEREER (H)

AEERABETHMEER FNIBER T F
EEERE: WEAKBEALEETE
/%(WUZZD """"" SRR (B BER TE
RATKAIRERAAEERH A EHE
EERE AQ%eREEAHES
365H -

FEEEREMNTSHBEENFBIA
Wiz e R EENE A (B RE & E
MERRE)FE - TMFEEEE MEE’J
EREENNBRAZREAETE

AR

ARERTRABEEENENE DR
BE - -BAPEFABRSNEHMAR
B R FERTE - MikEHEK AT
ENERABINSEAFERMEE
HEREERAGE -

B KA SR AR &

REHEKAIRENERAGE(BRES
REMEMNRBAREERE) RRE
RERMEERBERAE - HH
S NBEER o

Yk sl B IR AL
SHIME R INEEE °

IBI Group Holdings Limited 129
2021/2022 F [Z 4



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—T - —F=HA=1+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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(c)

Financial instruments (Continued)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset
or financial liability and of allocating interest
income or interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
or payments through the expected life of the
financial asset or liability, or where appropriate, a
shorter period.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct
issue costs.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when
the contractual rights to the future cash flows in
relation to the financial asset expire or when the
financial asset has been transferred and the
transfer meets the criteria for derecognition in
accordance with HKFRS 9.

Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the relevant contract is
discharged, cancelled or expires.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2022
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c)

(d)

(e)

Financial instruments (Continued)
(vi) Derecognition (Continued)

Where the Group issues its own equity
instruments to a creditor to settle a financial
liability in whole or in part as a result of
renegotiating the terms of that liability, the equity
instruments issued are the consideration paid and
are recognised initially and measured at their fair
value on the date the financial liability or part
thereof is extinguished. If the fair value of the
equity instruments issued cannot be reliably
measured, the equity instruments are measured
to reflect the fair value of the financial liability
extinguished. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial liability or part thereof
extinguished and the consideration paid is
recognised in profit or loss for the year.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand,
demand deposits and short-term, high liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or
less that are readily convertible into known amount of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value.

Leasing

All leases (irrespective of they are operating leases or
finance leases) are required to be capitalised in the
statement of financial position as right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities, but accounting policy choices exist
for an entity to choose not to capitalise (i) leases which
are short-term leases and/or (ii) leases for which the
underlying asset is of low-value. The Group has elected
not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
for low-value assets and leases for which at the
commencement date have a lease term less than 12
months. The lease payments associated with those
leases have been expensed on straight-line basis over
the lease term.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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132

(e)

Leasing (Continued)
Right-of-use asset

The right-of-use asset should be recognised at cost
and would comprise: (i) the amount of the initial
measurement of the lease liability (see below for the
accounting policy to account for lease liability); (i) any
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received; (i) any initial
direct costs incurred by the lessee and (iv) an estimate
of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and
removing the underlying asset to the condition required
by the terms and conditions of the lease, unless those
costs are incurred to produce inventories. The Group
measures the right-of-use assets applying a cost
model. Under cost model, the Group measures the
right-to-use assets at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liability. The Group has
leased a number of properties under tenancy
agreements and the right-of-use asset arising from the
properties under tenancy agreements are carried at
depreciated cost.

Lease liability

The lease liability is recognised at the present value of
the lease payments that are not paid at the date of
commencement of the lease. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if
that rate can be readily determined. If that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group uses the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e)

Leasing (Continued)
Lease liability (Continued)

The following payments for the right-to-use of the
underlying asset during the lease term that are not paid
at the commencement date of the lease are considered
to be lease payments: (i) fixed payments less any lease
incentives receivable: (i) variable lease payments that
depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using
the index or rate as at commencement date; (iii)
amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under
residual value guarantees; (iv) the exercise price of a
purchase option if the lessee is reasonably certain to
exercise that option and (v) payments of penalties for
terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the
lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

Subsequent to the commencement date, the Group
measures the lease liability by: (i) increasing the carrying
amount to reflect interest on the lease liability; (ii)
reducing the carrying amount to reflect the lease
payments made; and (iii) remeasuring the carrying
amount to reflect any reassessment or lease
modifications, e.g., a change in future lease payments
arising from change in an index or rate, a change in the
lease term, a change in the in substance fixed lease
payments or a change in assessment to purchase the
underlying asset.
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)

(9)

(h)

Property under development

Properties under development are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Cost includes the cost
of land, development expenditure and other attributable
expenses. Net realisable value is determined by
management based on prevailing market conditions.

Inventories

Inventories are initially recognised at cost, and
subsequently at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition. Cost
is calculated using the first-in first-out method. Net
realisable value represents the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary
to make the sale.

Income taxes
Income taxes comprise current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is based on the profit or loss from ordinary
activities adjusted for items that are non-assessable or
deductible for income tax purposes and is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period.
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rE MR EWAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(h)

Income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary
differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
corresponding amounts used for tax purposes. Except
for goodwill not deductible for tax purposes and initial
recognition of assets and liabilities that are not part of
the business combination which affect neither
accounting nor taxable profits, taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it
is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future, deferred tax liabilities
are recognised for all taxable temporary differences.
Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences can be utilised,
provided that the deductible temporary differences are
not arises from initial recognition of assets and liabilities
in a transaction other than in a business combination
that affects neither taxable profit nor the accounting
profit. Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates
appropriate to the expected manner in which the
carrying amount of the asset or liability is realised or
settled and that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of reporting period, and reflects any
uncertainty related to income taxes.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income tax levied by the same taxation authority and
the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
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136

(h)

U]

Income taxes (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the assets to be
recovered.

Income taxes are recognised in profit or loss except
when they relate to items recognised in other
comprehensive income in which case the taxes are also
recognised in other comprehensive income or when
they relate to items recognised directly in equity in
which case the taxes are also recognised directly in
equity.

Foreign currency

Transactions entered into by group entities in currencies
other than the currency of the primary economic
environment in which they operate (the “functional
currency”) are recorded at the rates ruling when the
transactions occur. Foreign currency monetary assets
and liabilities are translated at the rates ruling at the end
of reporting period. Non-monetary items carried at fair
value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the
fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the translation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise. Exchange differences arising on the
retranslation of non-monetary items carried at fair value
are included in profit or loss for the period except for
differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary
items in respect of which gains and losses are
recognised in other comprehensive income, in which
case, the exchange differences are also recognised in
other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

U]

0

Foreign currency (Continued)

On consolidation, income and expense items of foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) at the average
exchange rates for the year, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during the period, in which case,
the rates approximating to those ruling when the
transactions took place are used. All assets and
liabilities of foreign operations are translated at the rate
ruling at the end of reporting period. Exchange
differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity as
foreign exchange reserve. Exchange differences
recognised in profit or loss of group entities’ separate
financial statements on the translation of long-term
monetary items forming part of the Group’s net
investment in the foreign operation concerned are
reclassified to other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity as foreign exchange reserve.

On disposal of a foreign operation, the cumulative
exchange differences recognised in the foreign
exchange reserve relating to that operation up to the
date of disposal are reclassified to profit or loss as part
of the profit or loss on disposal.

Employee benefits
(i) Defined contribution retirement plan

Contributions to defined contribution retirement
plans are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss when the services are rendered by the
employees.

(ii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised when, and
only when, the Group demonstrably commits
itself to terminate employment or to provide
benefits as a result of voluntary redundancy by
having a detailed formal plan which is without
realistic possibility of withdrawal.
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138

0

Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Other employee entitlements

(iv)

Short term employee benefits are employee
benefits (other than termination benefits) that are
expected to be settled wholly before twelve
months after the end of the annual reporting
period in which the employees render the related
service. Short term employee benefits are
recognised in the year when the employees
render the related service.

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to the employees.
A provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.
Employee entitlements to sick leave are not
recognised until the time of leave.

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded to employees
and others providing similar services, the fair
value of the services received is measured by
reference to the fair value of the options at the
date of grant. Such fair value is recognised in
profit or loss over the vesting period with a
corresponding increase in the share option
reserve within equity. Non-market vesting
conditions are taken into account by adjusting the
number of equity instruments expected to vest at
the end of each reporting period so that,
ultimately, the cumulative amount recognised
over the vesting period is based on the number of
options that eventually vest. Market vesting
conditions are factored into the fair value of the
options granted. As long as all non-market
vesting conditions are satisfied, a charge is made
irrespective of whether the market vesting
conditions are satisfied. The cumulative expense
is not adjusted for failure to achieve a market
vesting condition.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

1)

(k)

Employee benefits (Continued)
(iv) Share-based payments (Continued)

Where the terms and conditions of options are
modified before they vest, the increase in the fair
value of the options, measured immediately
before and after the modification, is also
recognised in profit or loss over the remaining
vesting period.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services, excluding those amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. Revenue excludes
value added tax or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of any trade discounts.

Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time. Control of the goods or service is transferred over
time if the Group’s performance:

° provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

° does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods or service.

4.

EXEHBE(E)

)]

(k)

BEEF (&)
(iv) LR BEB 5 (&)

i R FECHE O ER SR R R R BRI AT E 2R
AR B & R B ZIE AR EN
BREAFERBIENGTEED
WNEBRER -

Wz HERE

KAEP & MmN 8 5k IR 4% il
BEZEFPHER  HeBRRAKEEY
IR EEmARBHEKIHRE -
TEERARE=ZJTUBMNEE - Wa TN EHE
RERKEMBEEN LR EFRESHT
it

RIBEOGRFIERRE WA - Emsk
AR 75 B 2 Bl #E AT BE RS R s K — B R FA 88
%o MAKREBRORHBEATER - AEMm
Sk AR5 B0 4% I BE S R 85 RS -

o  RHEFPREBEUSAFEMHAAENE

e EXKEENR AEXRERAFFE
B EE © K

o  TRAERAKEBEERAZNEE
AXEEHLSD TRBENNNRE
B AR FHITRORER]

i B M RIS EIE S EBERS REE - ARG
HWBE2REEETZEOETNEERER
Ygs o BRI WaENEPEBERmIRGE
Tl ) By FE] B AR ©

IBI Group Holdings Limited
2021/2022 F [Z 4

139



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—T - —F=HA=1+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

140

(k)

Revenue recognition (Continued)

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides a significant financing benefit to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured
at the present value of the amount receivable,
discounted using the discount rate that would be
reflected in a separate financing transaction with the
customer, and interest income is accrued separately
under the effective interest method. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides a
significant financing benefit to the Group, revenue
recognised under that contract includes the interest
expense accreted on the contract liabilities under the
effective interest method. For contracts where the
period between the payment and the transfer of the
promised goods or services is one year or less, the
transaction price is not adjusted for the effects of a
significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.

(i) Revenue from Contracting

Revenue from construction works transferred
over time is recognised progressively by reference
to the proportion of contract costs incurred to
date compared to expected total cost, which
depict the transfer of control of the goods or
services to the customer.

The Group recognises revenue over time only if it
can reasonably measure its progress toward
complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation. However, if the Group cannot
reasonably measure the outcome but expects to
recover the costs incurred in satisfying the
performance obligation, then it recognises
revenue to the extent of the costs incurred.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(k)

U]

Revenue recognition (Continued)
(i) Revenue from Building Solutions

Revenue for trading of products with a focus on
air quality and sustainable building materials
generally includes only one performance
obligation. The Group has concluded that revenue
from trading of products with a focus on air
quality and sustainable building materials should
be recognised at the point in time when control of
the products is transferred to the customer,
generally when the products are delivered to and
the risks of obsolescence and loss have been
transferred to customer.

(iii) Other income

Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the

principal outstanding at the applicable interest

rate.

(iv) Dividend income

Dividend income from financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss is recognised when the right
to receive the dividend is established.

Construction contracts
Contract assets and liabilities

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for services that the Group
has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer services to a customer for which the Group has
received consideration (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer.
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U]

Construction contracts (Continued)
Contract assets and liabilities (Continued)

Contract asset is recognised when the Group
completes the construction works under such services
contracts but yet certified by architects, surveyors or
other representatives appointed by customers. Any
amount previously recognised as a contract asset is
reclassified to trade receivables at the point at which it
is invoiced to the customer. If the considerations
(including advances received from customers) exceeds
the revenue recognised to date under the input method
then the Group recognises a contract liability for the
difference.

Contract costs

The Group recognises an asset from the costs incurred
to fulfil a contract when those costs meet all of the
following criteria:

(@ the costs relate directly to a contract or to an
anticipated contract that the entity can specifically
identify;

(b)  the costs generate or enhance resources of the
entity that will be used in satisfying (or in
continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in
the future; and

(c) the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset recognised is subsequently amortised to
profit or loss on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the transfer to the customer of the goods or
services to which the cost relate. The asset is subject
to impairment review.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. ERSHBER(E)
(CONTINUED)
(m) Government grants (m) BUSHEB

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them and that the grants will
be received.

Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically,
government grants whose primary condition is that the
Group should purchase, construct or otherwise acquire
non-current assets (including property, plant and
equipment) are recognised as deferred income in the
statement of financial position and transferred to profit
or loss on a systematic and rational basis over the
useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred
or for the purpose of giving immediate financial support
to the Group with no future related costs are recognised
in profit or loss in the period in which they become
receivable and are recognised as other revenue, rather
than reducing the related expense.

The benefit of a government loan at a below-market
rate of interest is treated as a government grant,
measured as the difference between proceeds received
and the fair value of the loan based on prevailing market
interest rates.
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(n)

(o)

Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain
timing or amount when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of a past
event, which will probably result in an outflow of
economic benefits that can be reasonably estimated.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow of
economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations, the
existence of which will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities unless
the probability of outflow of economic benefits is
remote.

Impairment of assets (other than financial
assets)

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets to determine whether there is
any indication that those assets have suffered an
impairment loss or an impairment loss previously
recognised no longer exists or may have decreased. If
the recoverable amount (i.e. the greater of the fair value
less costs of disposal and value in use) of an asset is
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised
as an expense immediately.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, to the extent that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is
recognised as income immediately.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(o)

(p)

(a)

Impairment of assets (other than financial
assets) (Continued)

Value in use is based on the estimated future cash
flows expected to be derived from the asset,
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset.

Borrowings costs

Borrowings costs attributable directly to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets which
require a substantial period of time to be ready for their
intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost
of those assets. Income earned on temporary
investments of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on those assets is deducted from
borrowings costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which
they are incurred.

Related parties

(@ A person or a close member of that person’s
family is related to the Group if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of key management personnel
of the Group or the Company’s parent.
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(q) Related parties (Continued)

(b)  An entity is related to the Group if any of the
following conditions apply:

@

(i)

(V)

(V)

(vii)

(viil)

the entity and the Group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

one entity is an associate or joint venture of
the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

both entities are joint ventures of the same
third party.

one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of the employees of the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

the entity is controlled or jointly controlled
by a person identified in ().

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
key management personnel of the entity (or
of a parent of the entity).

the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
parent of the Company.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 4. BEARGFEE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(q) Related parties (Continued) () EBES (E)
Close members of the family of a person are those BAATHIRREBKEEERSEETEN
family members who may be expected to influence, or T HHRIEEAR e EZ A TR T AT

be influenced by, that person in their dealings with the HERBAKE @ B :

entity and include:

()  that person’s children and spouse or domestic () BATHTLZREBRREFSE
partner;

(i) children of that person’s spouse or domestic (i) FALTHRBIREMENFR: &
partner; and

(i) dependents of that person or that person’s (i) AT ZEZ AT AERAS S R E A
spouse or domestic partner. SHFEA o

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, the
directors are required to make judgement, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to
be relevant. Actual results differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

In addition to information disclosed elsewhere in these
financial statements, other key sources of estimation
uncertainty that have significant risks of resulting in material
adjustments to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within next financial year are as follows:

(i)

Recognition of contract revenue

Contract revenue recognition on individual projects are
dependent on management’s estimation of the
progress of the satisfaction of performance obligations
of a construction contract over time, measuring using
input method, with reference to the proportion that
contract costs incurred for work performed to date to
the estimated total costs for the contracts. The Group
reviews and revises the estimates of contract revenue,
contract costs, variation orders and contract claims
prepared for each contract as the contract progresses.
Budgeted contract income is determined in accordance
with the terms set out in the relevant contracts.
Budgeted contract costs which mainly comprise
subcontracting charges and cost of materials are
prepared by the management on the basis of
quotations from time to time provided by the major
contractors, suppliers or vendors involved and the
experience of the management. In order to keep the
budget accurate and up-to-date, the management
conducts periodic reviews on the management budgets
by comparing the budgeted amounts to the actual
amounts incurred and the value of work performed as
certified by quantity surveyors where applicable.
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5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS
AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Impairment of financial and contract assets

The Group makes loss allowance on financial and
contract assets based on assumptions about risk of
default and expected credit loss rates. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the
Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well
as forward looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period.

Fair value measurement

The fair value measurement of the Group’s financial and
non-financial assets and liabilities utilises market
observable inputs and data as far as possible. Inputs
used in determining fair value measurements are
categorised into different levels based on how
observable the inputs used in the valuation technique
utilised are (the ‘fair value hierarchy’):

Level 1:  Quoted prices in active markets for identical
items (unadjusted);

Level 2: Observable direct or indirect inputs other
than Level 1 inputs;

Level 3:  Unobservable inputs (i.e. not derived from

market data).

The classification of an item into the above levels is
based on the lowest level of the inputs used that has a
significant effect on the fair value measurement of the
item. Transfers of items between levels are recognised
in the period they occur.

The Group measures financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (Note 17) at fair value.

For more detailed information in relation to the fair value
measurement of the item above, please refer to the
applicable note.
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SEGMENT REPORTING

The executive directors of the Company, who are the chief
operating decision-makers (“CODM”) of the Group, review
the Group’s internal reporting in order to assess performance
and allocate resources. Management has determined the
operating segments based on reports reviewed by the
executive directors of the Company that are used to make
strategy decision.

During the year ended 31 March 2022, the Group has three
reportable segments. The segments are managed separately
as each business offers different services and requires
different business strategies. The following summary
describes the operations in each of the Group’s reportable
segments:

Revenue from contracts with customers within the scope of
HKFRS 15:

o Contracting — provision of renovation services as a
main contractor for property projects in the private
sector in Hong Kong and Macau

° Building Solutions — provision of products and services
with a focus on air quality, energy efficiency and
modern sustainable building materials

Revenue from other sources:

° Strategic Investments — investment in listed securities

IBI Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021/2022

72 BB

ARAMTER (RAREMNEREERRA(TE
REERRA D EBHAEEN AR HRE AT ER
BAEARER BEEEBEERARARNTESRRE
B O ¥ 5 S A AVE I SRR TE HOAR 2 0 56 -

REBEE-ZTZ-—F=A=+—BILFE ~&£E
E-EAAREDE - AR SEBIRBTIRNRS
MEZBRRMEBRE ZEo0HoHAERE - MU
TR A EE S A HE DA LE -

HAEBM SRS ERE 15 R REA A B
& Hlkas -
/A n e

o  AE - RBEMEMLEHBYMEARE
EARFGE R IR B RS

e Building Solutions— 2 {E MR MRS - FE
AEREE - SRR RBERAIFE MR

bt
5 BRI s



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—F-_—F=A=1+—HIFFZ

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 6. DEImE (E)
(@) The segment revenue and results for the years ended (a Bz Z-_—Fr-_FT--—F=ZH=+—H
31 March 2022 and 2021: IFFER D s R EANT
Year ended 31 March 2022 BE-SE-—F=A=+—HLEE

Building Strategic

Contracting Solutions Investments Total
Building
AR Solutions BERERE e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FE&xT FHExT T FHBxT
Revenue & other U ek & E A
gains/(losses) Wz, (E18) 403,888 1,690 300 405,878
Inter-segment revenue PaR= L - - - -
Segment Revenue from REIINERE K
external customers and HmREDN
other sources o 2BUL 403,888 1,690 300 405,878
Segment profit/(loss) DEEF, (EE) 40,206 (2,706) (709) 36,791
Bank interest income RITHI B WA 11
Unallocated corporate AOBRBIFX
expenses (2,757)
Finance costs & R (353)
Profit before income B PSR SR
tax expense Y A 33,692
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BE T —F=H=+—HIFE

(a)

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 6. DEW|E(HF)
The segment revenue and results for the years ended (@) BE_Z_—_Fk-_FT-_—F=-—H=1—H
31 March 2022 and 2021: (Continued) IEFERD BRI RELENT : (8)
Year ended 31 March 2021 BE-_E-_—-F=ZA=+—HLEE
Building Strategic
Contracting Solutions  Investments Total
Building
g2 Solutions i “RET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FHAT FAT
Revenue & other Hﬁl &Ei\ﬁﬂ
gains/(losses) =/ (&18) 510,958 299 45,468 556,725
Inter-segment revenue "*B k= - (23) - (23)
Segment Revenue from RKEIINERE K
external customers and HAbRER
other sources U S 510,958 276 45,468 556,702
Segment profit/(loss) DERET(BE) 17,742 (1,546) 43,867 60,063
Bank interest income HRITH BN 468
Unallocated corporate AOBRBIFAX
expenses (4,417)
Finance costs ELE DN (316)
Profit before income BRPT1SHIF S Al
tax expense S ) 55,798
Inter-segment transactions are priced with reference to DERER G TIRZERBURTERINBA T
prices charged to external parties for similar order. ) ERERE -
Segment results represent the profit earned or loss DEHEEDE AR BRI REEZE
incurred by each segment without allocation of certain B TRERITFERA - ARHAZIEAE
bank interest income, corporate expenses and finance AN 2 R o b ThAE B & ERE AFTHRS
costs. This is the measure reported to the CODM for ERERD I KRV A ELE o
the purposes of resource allocation and performance
assessment.
IBI Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e B ISR R M R

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—F-_—F=A=1+—HIFFZ

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 6 DEBERE ()
(b) The segment assets and liabilities as at 31 March 2022 b) RE-_—_FE_T-_—F=A=+—HH
and 2021 are as follows: NHEERBBENOT :
Year ended 31 March 2022 BE-—_E-_—_F=-A=t+—HLEE
Building Strategic
Contracting Solutions Investments Total
Building

AR Solutions BERERE e
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHExT F#ExT F#ExT
Segment assets DEEE 208,476 2,651 62,244 273,371
Unallocated assets AOEEBE 44,328
317,699
Segment liabilities NEEE 143,617 122 25 143,764
Unallocated liabilities AOBEE 6,264
150,028

Year ended 31 March 2021 BE-Z-—-F=ZA=+—HLEE

Building Strategic
Contracting Solutions Investments Total
Building

s Solutions BRI & FEE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHIT FHT T THIT
Segment assets DEBEE 226,192 1,493 120,996 348,681
Unallocated assets ADBEE 47,536
396,217
Segment liabilities HERE 207,020 47 15 207,082
Unallocated liabilities KAfca® 7,921
215,003

For the purposes of monitoring segment performances
and allocating resources among segments:

— all assets are allocated to reportable and
operating segments other than certain other
receivables, right-of-use assets and certain cash
and cash equivalents; and

— all liabilities are allocated to reportable and
operating segments other than certain other
payables and lease liabilities.

REEDMERBARED M ZEOEER

- KRETHMEKFE EREEER

ETHERREFEDIN

2HRPAEEDH

B BEER]

PMEEE

b K&

- BETHMEMRERBEE&EIN
FrEREANEEA 2
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—T - —F=HA=1+—HIFE

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 6.

(c) Geographical information

The Group operates in two principal geographical areas

— Hong Kong and Macau.

The Group’s revenue derived from Contracting and
Building Solutions segments from external customers
for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021 are

analysed as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2022

I E

AEEEMETIZHERELE — FER

P o

HE-_ZT-_—_FKR_-_ZT—

—F=A=+—H

LtFEE XEBRBINBEP AR R
Building Solutions 2 EP &Iz AT EAT

BE-_Z__F=A=1+—HLFE

Building
Contracting Solutions
Building
Revenue from external customers g 4N % F #Ukzs RE Solutions
HK$’000 HK$’000
T F#&T
Hong Kong BB 403,888 1,667
Macau SEPY - -
Others Hith - 23
403,888 1,690

Year ended 31 March 2021 BE—_Z--F=ZA=+—HLEE
Building
Contracting Solutions
Building
Revenue from external customers R EINBEF Myl e G Solutions
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FAET FET
Hong Kong &5 510,709 158
Macau JEPY 249 -
Others Hi - 118
510,958 276
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—F-_—F=A=1+—HIFFZ

6. SEGMENT REPORTING (CONTINUED) 6. ZEW|E (&)
(c) Geographical information (Continued) (c) HIFER (E)
The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s TR EAAEEIERBEE ([FBEIER
non-current assets (“Specified non-current assets”): BEE]DN -
As at 31 March
Specified non-current assets BEFRBEE M=A=+—H
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ExT FHIT
Hong Kong &5 5,226 4,186
Macau JEPT = -
5,226 4,186
The non-current asset information above excludes FaiIERESEEBR TR AT EFT AR
financial assets at FVTPL and is based on the physical ENEMEE  ENBRIBEEBEENETRAMA
locations of the respective assets. FBE|H o
(d) Information about major customers (d EBRXTEEFHNEH
Revenues derived from contracting segment from each TEASFERFR(EAEBRINSIZRE B
of the major customers accounted for 10% or more of 10% 3 LA B ) ByAGE D S st p T -
the Group’s total revenue from external customers are
set out below:
2022 2021
—E-C—F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&xT THIT
Customer | Z2E| 77,600 N/A T A
Customer I ZAI 69,910 N/A T3 A
Customer Il BRI N/ATEHR 116,912
Customer IV BRIV N/ATEHR 95,778
Customer V EPV N/ATEH 76,815
Customer V| BEVI N/ATEH 67,247
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—T - —F=HA=1+—HIFE

7. REVENUE AND OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS Wz R HAth (&518) W
Revenue and other (losses)/gains recognised during the year RERNERH W REM (ER) WHZBFE T
comprises the following: £Ig
2022 2021
—E-=F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Revenue W5
Revenue from Contracting K EFEEAWE 403,888 510,958
Revenue from Building Solutions 2k B Building Solutions A9 U5 & 1,690 276
Dividend income from financial assets at BRATFEFANEZNEREE
FVTPL BRR B 1,913 1,902
407,491 513,136
Other (losses)/gains Hib (E518), /=
Net realised and unrealised BRAERT ABRE
(losses)/gains on financial SRMEENSEHELAER
assets at FVTPL (E518), W F 5 (1,613) 43,566
405,878 556,702
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Timing of revenue recognition within BBV REERFE 155
scope of HKFRS 15: & B ) s TSR
Revenue from Contracting — Over time T aEENIkEE — BERR 403,888 510,958
Revenue from Building Solutions R & Building Solutions # &
— Ata point in time — R 1,690 276
405,578 511,234
For timing of revenue recognition, dividend income falls MU EERERETS  REWMATBRE BN
outside the scope of HKFRS 15. WMERERFEASREBEN -
The Group has applied the practical expedient to its sales AEEEHEFARENHEESORAITAEER -
contracts for Contracting and therefore the above information I BRI T BEB B A S EEKIRIEE
does not include information about revenue that the Group FHAE—FHIUTHEARZEGVEBTITNRBRENE
will be entitled to when it satisfies the remaining performance ER A R W ER ) B K o
obligations under the contracts for Contracting that had an
original expected duration of one year or less.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR EWAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—F-_—F=A=1+—HIFFZ

8.

OTHER INCOME 8. HA
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$ 000
FET FHIT
Bank interest income RITH BHA 11 468
Government grants (Note) R 7 Bh (B 5E) 204 5,435
215 5,903
Note: MoaE
For the year ended 31 March 2022, the amount included in profit or loss HE_Z-_—_F-A=+—HIFE FAEFZNEBLA
was HK$194,000 of government grants obtained relating to support the RPN RENATHASEREETIABBOBUTME
payroll of the Group’s employees from the Macau Government. For the 194,000 - BE_ZT-_—F=A=+—HILFE 5T A
year ended 31 March 2021, the amount included in profit or loss was BRAESEABBEBEN MEFBRARGH EE HFAEEE
HK$5,395,000 of government grants obtained relating to support the BT EBBNBUN#EN5,39500087T « NEBEEAZEBSE
payroll of the Group’s employees from the Hong Kong Government and BERANEBARINIEARAS BARERBARNTEEE
the Macau Government. The Group had to commit to spending the TAERADEERMIEEKRT - RBEHRR - AEBWEFH
assistance from the Hong Kong Government on payroll expenses, and ZEENERAREITEE -
not to reduce employee head count below prescribed levels for a
specified period of time. At the end of the reporting period, the Group
does not have any unfulfilled obligations relating to these programs.
For the year ended 31 March 2022, HK$10,000 (2021: HK$40,000) HEZ_ZT-__F=A=1+—HILFE 1000FT(=F
represented training grants obtained from the Construction Innovation Z—% 40,0008 TT) RREREXEZG THREXERIF K
and Technology Fund (“CITF”) under Construction Industry Council. Under RIEES((ZEZARES ) NEIIME - RIBEEZA
the CITF, the Group should commit to spend the grants on Building BIESHRTE  ANEEEAEGEBEDAREEENER
Information Modeling (“BIM”) training and BIM Software with specific (IBIM1) #Z 3 & BIMER 4 (R A EFEALIERS ) o AN S FF & 81
vendors. The Group does not have other unfulfiled obligations relating to ZETTEEENEM A RBITHEE -
these programs.
FINANCE COSTS 9. REMAK
2022 2021
—E-_F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHR FHT
Interest expenses on lease liabilities HEBENF B 353 316
IBI Group Holdings Limited 157
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—T - —F=HA=1+—HIFE

10. PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX EXPENSE 10. BRETISHBE AR R

Profit before income tax expense is arrived after charging/

BRETS TR S AR R D&Mk (Gt A) TFI%HE

(crediting): 1B
2022 2021
—E-C—F T
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
Auditor’s remuneration % 2R B 55 B 920 860
Depreciation of property, Y - BB REREITE
plant and equipment 620 211
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRBEEENE 2,618 2,558
Staff costs including directors’ emoluments: 8 TN (BIRESHH) -
— Salaries and allowances — FHe KRR 66,943 65,119
— Contributions on defined contribution — FEEEFURREHEIHE
retirement plans 1,520 1,596
68,463 66,715
Short term leases expenses EAHERS 427 411
Covid-19-related rent concessions Covid-19 18RI & R % - (306)
Gain on lease modification HE BRI E (324) -
Foreign exchange loss/(gain), net bE R 518, (M) JF 445 (177)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—F-_—F=A=1+—HIFFZ

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The amount of income tax expense in the consolidated

11. FISFHiRX

ReEalEtEERERMEMEHAXSRE

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income ¥
represents:
2022 2021
—E-_—F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHIT
Current tax — Hong Kong Profits Tax ENEATTE — BBEFIEH
— tax for the year — FAMIE 7,251 1,761
— over provision in respect of prior years ~ — BT EBEEEE (16) (41)
7,235 1,720
Current tax — overseas ENERREIE — Ak
— tax for the year — FAMIE = -
7,235 1,720
Under the Hong Kong two-tiered profits tax rates regime (the REEBFEHMASG ([ZHE])  &EREE

“Regime”), the first HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits of
one subsidiary of the Group, which is a qualifying corporation,
is taxed at 8.25% and the remaining assessable profits at
16.5%. The profits of other group entities not elected for the
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at
16.5%.

For the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, Hong Kong
Profits Tax is calculated in accordance with the Regime.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in Macau and
with the short-term tax incentives granted by the Macau
Government, the Group’s subsidiary in Macau was subject to
complementary tax at the rate of 12% for taxable profits over
the tax threshold of MOP600,000 for the tax year ended 31
December 2021. The Macau Government has not yet
announced the tax threshold for the tax year ending 31
December 2022.

By 2 52 [ P B8 /2 B 9 & 2,000,000 78 T FE sR 15 & A
MK 58.25% » Mk NHIERIR AN 16.5% e
TEBAM ST 0L EEE R BN’
RBIETHE16.5% Rt ©

BHE T FNE-_—F=R=+—HIF
B BENEHIZREZEETE -

BIERFEREE AR U RERNBFABFS T
MEHHREESR  AEERMHBARREZ=
T-—F+_A=Z+—BHUERESEE Ak
HE 2 26 38 P9 45 600,000 7T A B9 ERR R G A 0 %
12% ML REBMFT B TR o SBPIBUT i R E M
HE T F+-A=+—HIBESEENH
U kBl -
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e M AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—T - —F=HA=1+—HIFE

11.

160

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

The income tax for the year can be reconciled to the profit
before income tax expense in the consolidated statements of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

11.

FrE®iMx ()

FARMEHEGS B L EMEERSERPRA
BHRFAANG M A HRRIT -

2022 2021
—E_—F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&T FEIT
Profit before income tax expense b BT 855 5 S A 33,692 55,798
Tax charge calculated at Hong Kong profits 3227 F15 51 5 % 16.5%
tax rate of 16.5% (2021: 16.5%) ZEZ—F :16.5%)
STEABIAR 5,559 9,206
Tax effect of revenue not taxable DA TS 5 2
for tax purposes 477) (8,5095)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible TAIB AT OB &
for tax purposes 571 322
Over provision in respect of prior years BEFE B (16) (41)
Tax reduction in current year REERIBR D (10) -
Effect of the Regime ZHlEm e (165) (165)
Tax effect of tax loss and other temporary — REERTITE ET1E M B A0 BB
differences not recognised EENTBEE 1,773 903
Income tax expense Frig®if 7,235 1,720

As at 31 March 2022, the Group had estimated unused tax
losses of approximately HK$19,694,000 (2021:
HK$8,885,000) available for offsetting against future profits.
The tax losses arising from a subsidiary in Macau of
approximately HK$2,163,000 (2021: HK$430,000) can be
carried forward for 3 years and are subject to the final
assessment by the tax authority in Macau, the remaining
unused tax losses can be carried forward indefinitely. No
deferred tax asset has been recognised in respect of the
estimated unused tax losses due to unpredictability of future
profit streams.

No deferred tax has been provided in the consolidated
financial statements as no other material temporary
differences had risen during the years ended 31 March 2022
and 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e UBRRMNEE

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—F-_—F=A=1+—HIFFZ

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS, HIGHEST

PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(a)

Directors’ emoluments

Directors’ emoluments is disclosed as follows:

Year ended 31 March 2022

12. S5 S FMALIRSREERE

A

(a)

ESHM
EEHMRENT

BE-E_—_=RA=1+—HILEE

Contribution
Salaries, on defined
allowances contribution
and other Discretionary  retirement
Fees benefits bonuses plans Total
e 2HR ERMH
ik HiEA BETA RIGHEHRT st
Notes HK$000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ik ThRL TERL ThRL ThRL ThRL
Executive directors HiTEE
Neil David HOWARD Neil David HOWARD 240 2,508 2,650 18 5,416
Steven Paul SMITHERS Steven Paul SMITHERS 240 2,388 2,550 18 5,196
Independent non-executive directors BV 32 /TEE
Richard Gareth WILLIAMS Richard Gareth WILLIAMS (] 123 - - - 123
Robert Peter ANDREWS Robert Peter ANDREWS 240 - - - 240
David John KENNEDY David John KENNEDY 240 - - - 240
Martin WOODS Martin WOODS (i) 118 - - - 118
Total st 1,201 4,896 5,200 36 11,333
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—T - —F=HA=1+—HIFE

12.

162

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS, HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

(@) Directors’ emoluments (Continued)

Year ended 31 March 2021

12. EEHE
5N (&)

CEBEEFTMALIEREREEE

(a) EBHM(E)

BE-_E_—S=RA=1+—HILEE

Contribution
Salaries, on defined
allowances contribution
and other Discretionary retirement
Fees benefits bonuses plans Total
oo Rk ERHEH
ik Hih7E BEEL BRI @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx T T THL T
Executive directors HITEE
Neil David HOWARD Neil David HOWARD 218 1,997 2,280 18 4,513
Steven Paul SMITHERS Steven Paul SMITHERS 218 1,901 2,080 18 4217
Independent non-executive directors BV TEE
Richard Gareth WILLIAMS Richard Gareth WILLIAMS 218 - - - 218
Robert Peter ANDREWS Robert Peter ANDREWS 218 - - - 218
David John KENNEDY David John KENNEDY 218 - - - 218
Total a5t 1,090 3,898 4,360 36 9,384
Notes: PiE
(i) Richard Gareth WILLIAMS stepped down as independent (i) Richard Gareth WILLIAMS A =& — —F + A

non-executive director of the Company on 4 October 2021.

(ii) Martin WOODS was appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company on 4 October 2021.

(iii) During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the directors as an
inducement to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office. In addition, none of the
directors waived or agreed to waive any emoluments during
the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR EWAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—F-_—F=A=1+—HIFFZ

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS, HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS

(CONTINUED)

(b)

Five highest paid individuals

(&)

(b)

The five highest paid individuals for the year include two
(2021: two) directors. The emoluments of the remaining
three (2021: three) non-director highest paid individuals

TERSHMAL

12. S5 S FMALIRSREERE

FRN A EadMATBEMRA(ZE
T WMB)EF - AHB =R (2T —

FZR)FEEREH

AT RAFEH

for the year are as follows: T -
2022 2021
—E-—F —E——F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHEIT
Salaries, allowances and other benefits #2285 K E g 6,764 5,866
Contributions on defined contribution FREHFGRIRET IR
retirement plans 54 54
6,818 5,920
The number of non-director highest paid individuals HE-Z-_—_FR-_FT-—F=A=+—H
whose emoluments felt within the following bands for IEFE  FHN T T SENEESRSH
the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021 is as follows: AT AT
2022 2021
—E-_F —E-—F
No. of No. of
individuals individuals
A AZ
HK$Nil-HK$1,000,000 =702 1,000,000 57T - -
HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7T & 1,500,000 %5 7T = -
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 & 7T & 2,000,000 /7T 1 2
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 77T £ 2,500,000 /%8 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 7 7T 2 3,000,000 7% 7T o -
HK$3,000,001-HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 /& 7t & 3,500,000 7 7T 1 -
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For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—T - —F=HA=1+—HIFE

12. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS, HIGHEST
PAID INDIVIDUALS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT’S EMOLUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

164

(b)

(c)

Five highest paid individuals (Continued)

The remaining highest paid individuals are directors of
the Company whose emoluments are reflected in the
analysis presented in Note 12(a) above.

During the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to the five highest
paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. In
addition, none of the five highest paid individuals waived
or agreed to waive any emoluments during the years
ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.

Senior management’s emoluments
Emoluments paid or payable to members of senior

management who are not directors were within the
following bands:

12. S5 S FMALIRSREERE

(&)

(b)

(c)

TERSHMAL ()

H#SEeFMALTALRRRES  HFHD
XHEEE12() T2 510 AT H Ak o

HE-Z-_—_FR-_FT-—F=A=+—H
HFE AEEMERNRAEA TS TA LTS
MEAEHH - (EABESIINARE R R 5E
BYSERBERAE - ItIh REE=T ==
ER_EBE-—F=A=t—RAIFEREHR
SE A T E M E R EREE A -

BN S E E R AR TR B N
F IR -

2022 2021

—E-—F —E-—F

No. of No. of

individuals individuals

AE AZ

HK$Nil-HK$1,000,000 =702 1,000,000 87T = 1
HK$1,000,001-HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 & 7T £ 1,500,000 7% 7T 2 1
HK$1,500,001-HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 %8 7t & 2,000,000 7 7T 1 2
HK$2,000,001-HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 77T 2 2,500,000,8 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001-HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 77T 2 3,000,000/8 7T = -
HK$3,000,001-HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7 7T = 3,500,000 /8 7T 1 -

IBI Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021/2022
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For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—F-_—F=A=1+—HIFFZ

13. DIVIDENDS 13. RE
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—fF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interim dividend declared and paid (Note () £ & & & J& {41 29A% 2. (P £E (i) 8,000 8,000
Proposed final dividend (Note (ii)) % % A HAR B (B EE (i) 8,000 32,000
16,000 40,000

Notes: Bz -

14.

(i

The interim dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31
March 2022 of HK1.0 cent (2021: HK1.0 cent) per ordinary share,
amounting to HK$8.0 million (2021: HK$8.0 million) was paid on
28 December 2021.

The final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 March
2022 of HK1.0 cent per ordinary share, amounting to HK$8.0
million, has been proposed by the Directors and is subject to
approval by the shareholders of the Company at the forthcoming
annual general meeting. The final dividend declared subsequent to
31 March 2022 has not been recognised as a liability as at 31
March 2022.

The final dividend in respect of the financial year ended 31 March
2021 of HK4.0 cents per ordinary share, amounting to HK$32.0
million was paid on 15 October 2021. No final dividend was paid in
respect of the year ended 31 March 2020.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended
31 March 2022 is based on the profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately HK$27,010,000
(2021 approximately HK$54,390,000) and on the weighted

average number of 800,000,000 (2021:

800,000,000)

ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Dilutive earnings per share is the same as the basic earnings
per share because the Group has no dilutive potential shares
for the years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021.

0] HE_ZT-—F=-A=+—HIEMBFENTHRE
AEREER1.0BIW(ZTE=—F : 1.08) - B4
HBOBEBEBL(ZZEZ—F :80EEBL)  ENZ
T —F+ A=+ N\BIRS -

(i) EEEFEE TS F A=+ —HULVEREFED
REB B AETRERAIZ1.0BI - AX80EEET
WASAARRERERERERFRS LitER - 7
AEE - RZTE-—F=-A=+—BEERORER
BHMAR-_ZE-_—F=-A=-+—HHRAEEE-

BE_ T —F=A=1+—BLUWBFENRIKS
BRER x402§1ﬂ4(m/\320§%/’§m)€ﬁ"f§
T—FtATHBIRN - BE_ZT-_TF=—HA=+—
HIESFE ISR REIAR S -

14. BRER)

BHE-_Z-—F=-A=1+—HIFERNSRER
BADEREARGHEEABEFERNG ML
27,010,000 70 ( —F = —4F : #54,390,000/% 7T )
N AE 17 % 8 A% b0 # ¥ 19 £0800,000,000 A%
(ZZ=——4% : 800,000,000 %) 5t & -

MR AEENBE - —FR-E-—F=f
=+ B G MRS
B S GREARFIAR -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BE T —F=H=+—HIFE

15.

16.

166

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. 1% - RERRE
Office
equipment
and fittings
WARBERES
HK$’000
FHTT
Cost R
At 1 April 2020 R-ZE-ZTFOA—H 6,220
Additions NE 337
Disposals & (984)
At 31 March 2021 R-EBE-_—F=F=+—H 5,573
Additions NE 1,185
Disposals HE (38)
At 31 March 2022 WZZE-_—_F=A=+—H 6,720
Accumulated depreciation i.?l‘?ﬁ’%
At 1 April 2020 RZE_FTFMH—H 5,987
Charge for the year FRNAZ 211
Disposals & (984)
At 31 March 2021 R-ZE_—=A=+—H 5,214
Charge for the year FARXZ 620
Disposals HE (38)
At 31 March 2022 R-ZZE-_—_§=A=+—H 5,796
Net carrying value REFE
At 31 March 2022 RZEBE-_—_F=F=+—H 924
At 31 March 2021 WZZE-_—F=A=+—H 359
RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 16. ERAEKEE
The underlying net book value of right-of-use assets EERATAEEENHBARDFEHE TS EEHE
recognised relate to the following types of assets: RIER -
Properties leased for own use, carried at BERHAEYE  RIFERANYER
depreciated cost
2022 2021
—=E-——fF T —%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ExT FAT
At 1 April RMWA—H 3,827 5,276
Additions NE - 1,109
Depreciation e (2,618) (2,558)
Effect of lease modification HEEHTE 3,093 -
At 31 March R=A=+—H 4,302 3,827
IBI Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
e — T - —F=H=+—HIFE

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE 17. BAFEFTAEEZENEREE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Listed securities at fair value: BRATEFEN LETES :
Listed in Hong Kong REB L™ - 11,757
Listed outside Hong Kong REBEIN T 16,062 50,068
16,062 61,825
18. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 18. EHNEEREGHNARE
LIABILITIES
The following table sets out details of the contract assets and TEREINNEREHEARGNEERENEEF

contract liabilities as at the end of each reporting period: 15

Costs incurred to date plus recognised 25 B EE RN E 5 A

profits less recognised losses BB ERIEE 960,693 1,167,863
Less: Progress billings to date WS IRRERER (892,506) (1,088,713)
Add: Retention receivables (Note (i) n o EURE OB () 27,880 29,756

96,067 108,906
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—T - —F=HA=1+—HIFE

18.

168

CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

The following table sets out details of the contract assets and
contract liabilities as at the end of each reporting period:

18. ENEERSHER (B)

TREBIRNEREREREVEERGNAGBH

%

2022 2021

—E-F T4

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHBxT T

Contract assets BHEE 100,139 110,130
Contract liabilities AHEE (4,072) (1,224)
96,067 108,906

All contract assets and contract liabilities are arisen from the
provision of renovation services. The changes in the contract
assets and contract liabilities for the year were resulted from
the pace of the progress of particular projects and the timing
of approval for progress billing application for certain projects.

Notes:

(i) As at 31 March 2022, the Group’s retention receivables were not
yet past due, in which approximately HK$1,425,000 (2021:
HK$863,000) were expected to be recovered beyond twelve
months after the end of the reporting period.

Typical payment terms which impact on the amount of
contract assets are as follows:

IBI Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2021/2022
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR EWAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—F-_—F=A=1+—HIFFZ

18. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 18. EHEEREGHNER(E)

LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
Contracting

The Group’s contract assets represent the Group’s right to
consideration for work completed but not yet billed to
customers at the reporting date. The contract assets are
transferred to trade receivables when the rights become
unconditional, that is, when the Group issue progress billings
to customers based on certified amount agreed with
customer. The contracts usually include a term for the
customers to hold up a portion, normally around 10.0%, from
each progress and final payment until a particular percentage
of the total contract sum is reached. Such sum of money
withheld is referred to as retention money. This amount is
included in contract assets until the end of the retention
period as the Group’s entitlement to this final payment is
conditional on the Group’s work satisfactorily passing
inspection.

When the Group receives a deposit before construction
services is rendered, this will give rise to contract liabilities at
the beginning of a contract, until the revenue recognised on
the relevant contract exceeds the amount of the deposit.

P33

AEEHNENEERARERRREAHERT
BRAFFFENTRIRKENERN - EHE
RN A BIGITER > GNEEEREE S5 RIGK
B AAKEERETFHENSEATERAA
TREEHEE AT ERREFASMETLRE
R R RIBE 2 IR (— MK #10.0%)
EEZIBEHSENRE A DL AR -
ERBENFERARES - AASEESUHRER
R AR AR R B T2 Em@ B ROR &5 Al
EE MR AGHEE  BEEREHER
ALk

i A5 SR B PR AR E AR A AT ERIZ & - H B2
BHBERGHRRERKEL  EEREEA
HIPTHER R R BIBIRE SRALLE -

Movement in contract liabilities: X BEEH
2022 2021
—E-=F T —4F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#&x FET
Balance as at 1 April MU A— B 1,224 19,726
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of EERNEREYE AA L BE
recognising revenue during the year that M= EHR ALY EERD
was included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the year (1,224) (19,726)
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of  [EEEEEFEURIBE R
billing in advance of construction activites & £ & &1 1 4,072 1,224
Balance as at 31 March R=ZAZ=Z+—HR&&H 4,072 1,224
IBI Group Holdings Limited 169
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
An a3 R M

For the year ended 31 March 2022
AR T - —F=HA=+—HIFE

18. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 18. ENEERAHNERE (F)
LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)
Contracting (Continued) RE ()
The amount of billings in advance of performance received BUREINTESREERASOE BN ANELTEI
expected to be recognised as income for contract liabilities is FERESREWNT ¢
as follows:

Within one year —FR 4,072 1,224

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 19. EG R HMEWFIE

Trade receivables (Notes (i) and (ii)) B 5 eI (BIFE () K (i) 25,690 55,775
Deposits and other receivables (Note (iii)) e N E b YFRIA (B HE (i) 2,122 60,072
Prepayments TR IR 831 1,070
28,643 116,917
Note: MigE
0] The credit period granted to customers on final and progress () BRYEPRERERIREETNERE KRN T3
billings is generally between 14 and 60 days from the invoice date. E=HHER14E60H
(ii) The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of allowances) at the (i) NEREHK  BHREWEIE(INBERE) IZBER
end of each reporting period based on the invoice date is as HAMEER DTN T ¢
follows:

Within 30 days 30HR 25,667 53,432
31-60 days 31E60H - 657
61-90 days 61Z290H - 1,686
Over 90 days HBiEmo0 H 23 -

25,690 55,775
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR EWAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—F-_—F=A=1+—HIFFZ

19. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

Note: (Continued)

(i)

(i)

(Continued)

The ageing analysis of trade receivables (net of allowances) at the
end of each reporting period that are not individually nor collectively
considered to be impaired is as follows:

19. EZ R HARURIE ()

N REHIRIRE BRI EE R L FIRENE 5L
IR (IR B ) ROBRER AT N T -

2022 2021

—E- — T4

HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT FAT

Neither past due nor impaired BE R 80 2 R (B 25,036 52,870
Less than 1 month past due B 1EA 631 1,219
1 to 3 months past due w1 = 31@A - 1,686
Over 3 months past due EHRS A £ 23 -
654 2,905

25,690 55,775

Trade receivables that were neither past due nor impaired primarily
relate to the Group’s main customers for whom there was no
recent history of default.

Trade receivables that were past due but not impaired relate to a
number of independent customers that have a good track record
with the Group. Based on past experience, management believe
that no impairment allowance is necessary in respect of these
balances as there have not been a significant change in credit
quality and the balances are still considered fully recoverable. The
Group does not hold any collateral over these balances.

Included in the other receivables as at 31 March 2021 were the
proceeds from disposal of listed securities and dividend receivables
of listed securities of approximately HK$58,722,000. The balances
had been fully received in April 2021.

RERZ8 A TR R (B A 8 5 JE M R 0R X B B HA D
MEENAEETEEFER -

EEHEYERENE S B KFRRS R EREEE
BREEARENBYIEFER - ENEERR - &
BERR HNMEEERI|EANNE - BARDK
BRAIEHKE - MBATZSEHRIELRERS -
REE I B 2 B AR A ARG -

RIZ-—4F=ZA=+—8  HEKkZEBELE
FTBFOMERERLTESFNEREELD
58,722,000 L - BN T —F W AFHK
o

IBI Group Holdings Limited
2021/2022 F [Z 4

1mm



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BE T —F=H=+—HIFE

20. PROPERTY UNDER DEVELOPMENT 20. #EPYE
2022 2021
—E-CfF B —F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHER FHET
At beginning of year REF) = -
Additions NE 10,943 -
Exchange realignment B 5, 3 B (693) -
At end of year RER 10,250 -

As at 31 March 2022, leasehold interests in land included in
properties under development amounted to approximately

R-ZE-_—_F=ZA=+—H BEEEEFYE
B3 FE E S 4 510,250,000 L ( —ZF = —

HK$10,250,000 (2021: HK$NIl) is not expected to be FTBL)  BRFEREHRET—EARTE

completed and available for sale after twelve months from the RI  ARHEE -
end of the reporting period.
21. PLEDGED DEPOSITS 21. 2EHFER

2022 2021

—E-—fF T

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET T

Pledged deposits with a bank RIRITH BT IRFH 7,730 4,826

Pledged deposits with an insurer RIREB AR BE IR FR 7,120 9,600

14,850 14,426

Pledged deposits are placed with a bank and an insurer as
securities for the performance bonds issued by the bank and
insurer to certain customers on their projects. The pledged
deposits will be released when the bank or insurer are
satisfied that no claims will arise from the projects under the
performance bonds.

IBI Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR EWAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—F-_—F=A=1+—HIFFZ

22. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

22, B RHEMENTRE

2022 2021

—E-—F —E-—F

HK$000 HK$'000

FH&xT T

Trade payables (Note (i) B2 5 e Z0E (B ) 15,258 14,460
Accruals for costs of contract work AN TEKAETER 83,076 149,730
Retention payables (Note (ii)) FEATHOR & B IE (B 7 (i) 28,950 34,948
Other payables and accruals HMENFIERETER 8,189 10,184
135,473 209,322

Notes:

(i)

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on invoice date, at

HEE -

() NEHREHR  BHEMNFAREZDHNRE DT

the end of each reporting period is as follows: T
2022 2021
—E-—F —T_—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
0-30 days 0% 30H 11,973 13,963
31-60 days 31£60H 2,854 210
61-90 days 61E90H 40 -
Over 90 days im0 H 391 287
15,258 14,460

The credit period granted by suppliers is generally between 14 and
60 days from the invoice date and subcontractors is generally
within 14 days after receipt of payment from customers.

As at 31 March 2022, retention payables of approximately
HK$651,000 (2021: HK$398,000) were expected to be settled
beyond twelve months after the end of the reporting period.

HEFETHERR RN FERAMEN 14260
AEDBEBRETHERI-—RAKZEFPHRIE14
AR

i) WH-T-_-—_F=ZA=+—80 ENREBREYD
651,000/8 70 (ZF = —F : 398,000/ 70 ) TE HA #§ 1
wERRZ BB+ —EABES -
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For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—T - —F=HA=1+—HIFE

23. LEASES LIABILITIES 23. HEAE

The Group has lease contracts for office premises. Leases of REBBEAERATSYENTEESY - WA AE=ME
office premises generally have lease terms for two and half HENHEER —RAMFEEZ=F MEEHR
years to three years and lease payments are fixed over the ZHENRABEE -
lease terms.

HK$’000

FHET

As at 1 April 2020 RZEZFTFMYHA—H 5,579
Additions VN1 1,109
Covid-19-related rent concessions (Note) Covid-19 {8RIM &R % (FisE) (306)
Interest expenses e 316
Lease payments HENR 2,511)
As at 31 March 2021 R-E-_—F=A=+—H 4,187
Interest expenses e 353
Lease payments MERK (2,759)
Effect of lease modification HEBEHHTE 2,769
As at 31 March 2022 RZEZZF=H=+—H 4,550
Note: 3T -
The Group had elected to apply the practical expedient introduced by the NEEDRIZEE B BSRE LR E 165 2 BRI A Y
amendment to HKFRS 16 to all rent concessions that satisfy the criteria. AR EERRASAZEENTESHR - REE—
All of the rent concessions entered into during the year ended 31 March B A+ —RAIEETY AL REEARE
2021 satisfied the criteria to apply the practical expedient. The application FAR{TIEE A ZIEE . ERATEE S A0 EREEAE
of the practical expedient had resulted in the reduction of total lease 4ARE D 47306,000 8T o D Y HET NBREBRRE
liabilities of approximately HK$306,000. The effect of this reduction had 27 B 2 BRI AB AR -

been recorded in profit or loss in the period in which the event or
condition that triggers those payments occurred.

As at 31 March

MR=BA=+—H
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&T FHETT

Classified under: DEER

Current portion BN 2,791 2,992
Non-current portion IEMBNEL 1,759 1,195
4,550 4,187
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
mEMBRRME

For the year ended 31 March 2022
e — T - —F=H=+—HIFE

23. LEASES LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 23. HEAEE)

Future lease payments are due as follow: ARBEERNZZEERAHLT ¢

Not later than one year —F RN 2,994 203 2,791

Later than one year and not later ~ — LA F{BRARER
than two years 1,789 30 1,759
4,783 233 4,550

Not later than one year —F YR 3,169 177 2,992
Later than one year and not later ~ — LA F{BRARER
than two years 885 35 850
Later than two years and not later LA FERAER
than five years 352 7 345
4,406 219 4,187

Short term lease expenses EAHEMRX 427 411
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A ISR M EE

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BE T —F=H=+—HIFE

24. SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital as at 31 March 2022 and 2021 in the
consolidated statement of financial position represented the

24, B

GAMBHRARAIIN - E_—_FRN_T-_—F
ZA=1t—HORFKEARFNDETRAE &

issued share capital of the Company and as follows: RN
Number of ordinary shares Share capital
EEREE (&N
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-C-F T —F —E-CF —E-—fF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TER THET
Ordinary shares of BREMEOIAT
HK$0.01 each oSl
Authorised: ETE 10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000 100,000 100,000
Issued and fully paid: BETRER 800,000,000 800,000,000 8,000 8,000
Note: MfsE -

On 20 September 2016, the Company adopted a share option scheme
(the “Share Option Scheme”). The Board of the Company may, at its
discretion, invite any eligible persons who have made contributions to the
Group to take up share options. The terms of the Share Option Scheme
are in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which options may be
granted under the Share Option Scheme shall not in aggregate exceed
10% of all the shares in issue as at the date of the Listing (i.e. a total of
80,000,000 shares).

Options granted shall be taken up upon payment of HK$1 as
consideration for the grant of option. Options may be exercised at any
time not exceeding a period of 10 years from the date which the share
option is deemed to be granted and accepted. The subscription price is
determined by the board of directors of the Company, and shall not be
less than whichever is the highest of (i) the official closing price of the
Company’s shares as stated in daily quotations sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the offer date; (i) the average of the closing price of the
shares as stated in daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the offer date; and (iii) the
nominal value of a share.

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, no share options had been granted since
the adoption of the Share Option Scheme and there were no outstanding
share options.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

A MR MEE

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—F-_—F=A=1+—HIFFZ

25. RESERVES

The reconciliation between the opening and closing balances
of each component of the Group’s consolidated equity is set
out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Details of the changes in the Company’s individual
components of reserves between the beginning and the end

of the year are set out below:

25, f#fE

AEBERAERIR R &R ERRERN
HERFNF AR B HR - AR EERREEEE
RENEFROEBFBEHIIOT

Share Retained
premium profits Total
B3 %R B RE &R et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FAT FAT FAT

(Note (i)
(B EE )
At 1 April 2020 RZZE-ZFFMA—H 73,613 43,235 116,848
Profit and total comprehensive income FRENREEBABEE
for the year — 26,517 26,517
Dividend declared and paid (Note 13) EEIR RIS (FFEE13) - (8,000) (8,000)
At 31 March 2021 N-_E-_—F=H=+—H 73,613 61,752 135,365
Profit and total comprehensive income FRENREEMABEE
for the year - 47,515 47,515
Dividend declared and paid (Note 13) EEIR RIS (FFFE13) - (40,000) (40,000)
At 31 March 2022 F=A=+—H 73,613 69,267 142,880
Note: B 5E -
(i) Share premium (i) iR 10 E

Share premium represents the excess of the proceeds received
over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued.

P& A7 i B 45 PR IR H AR X R 2 B AT IR E(E Y

55 -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e M AR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022
BE T —F=H=+—HIFE

26. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF

178

FINANCIAL POSITION

26. ERDFMBARREK

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
ih=s FET TFET
Non-current assets kRBEE
Investment in a subsidiary R B A REIRE 1 1
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H i 165 188
Amounts due from subsidiaries TEURBT B A 135,587 104,310
Cash and cash equivalents B &Eﬁﬁﬂ’ﬁ % 38,898 42 586
Total current assets mENEEBE 174,650 147,084
Current liabilities REBAE
Other payables and accruals HibENRENESTER 1,694 3,720
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEIB B A R 508 22,077 -
Total current liabilities mEN B EERE 23,771 3,720
Net current assets RBEERE 150,879 143,364
NET ASSETS EEZFE 150,880 143,365
Capital and reserves BRRHE
Share capital A% A 24 8,000 8,000
Reserves Eie 25 142,880 135,365
TOTAL EQUITY AR 150,880 143,365

On behalf of directors

Neil David HOWARD

Director

EF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
rE MR EWAR M

For the year ended 31 March 2022
HE—F-_—F=A=1+—HIFFZ

27.

28.

BANKING FACILITIES 27. BITHE
As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group’s bank facilities RZE__FRZZF_—F=A=+—H K&
were in the total of HK$95.1 million and HK$42.1 million BRI E BB ABIAEBBETLN421H
respectively. BAT e
As at 31 March 2022, the bank facilities were guaranteed and RIEBE-_—_F=ZA=+—8 " FIEREITHEN
secured by the following: T 5 S IBEHRIR -
(@  acharge on securities listed outside Hong Kong (Note 17); @ BB EmESOIFE (FIE17)
(b) afixed and floating charge on the trade receivables of a (o) —FEEERRESEWFIENETE MZBH
group company; o
(€)  guarantees provided by group companies; © —MEEARREMHER:
(d)  pledged bank deposits; and o) BIEPRITER
()  corporate guarantees issued by the Company. € AREIHEMDERER-
As at 31 March 2021, the bank facilities were guaranteed and RZEBEZ—F=A=+—"8 " FiERBETHEN
secured by the following: THIEIEEER
(@ a fixed and floating charge on trade receivables of a @ —MEEERRESEWFIENETEMEBH
group company; 0
(b)  guarantees issued by a group company; ) —MEEARLEMER:
() pledged bank deposits; and ) BEMRITHER
(d)  corporate guarantees issued by the Company. @ AREHEADEER-
As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group had unutilised RZEZ—FR-_FT-_—F=ZA=1+—H0 ' &%
banking facilities of HK$69.3 million and HK$26.0 million E ey REFRITELE 5 5/569.3 8 & BT & 26.0
respectively. BEBIT -
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 28. BEARS
(a) Compensation of key management personnel (a) FEEEASHMH
The remuneration of key management personnel, who HE - —F#Rp T —F=A=+—H
are the executive directors of the Company, for the IFFE > TEEBEAE (IR QARIHITES)
years ended 31 March 2022 and 2021 were as follows: EEBAN R -
2022 2021
—E-CF T
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAT
Compensation of key management FTEEEABHM
personnel 10,612 8,730
IBI Group Holdings Limited 179
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29. NOTES SUPPORTING CONSOLIDATED 29. RERERBRZBRENE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities: MEEFHELZBEYHE
Lease liabilities
(Note 23)
HEEE
(M¥z£23)
HK$'000
FAT
At 1 April 2020 RZE-ZFFMA—H 5,579
Changes from cash flows: REMEE)
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHERE (2,611)
Total changes from financing cash flows MER S RHEE 5 (2,511)
Other changes: EmEs) -
Additions of lease liabilities HE&BEEM 1,109
Covid-19-related rent concessions Covid-19 HE#E 2R 2 (306)
Interest expense on lease liabilities HEBGEMNEFREZ 316
Total other changes HEmEB)Es 1,119
At 31 March 2021 WZE-_—F=A=+—H 4,187
Changes from cash flows: Renes
Repayment of lease liabilities BEHEAR (2,759
Total changes from financing cash flows RMERS RN FEERE (2,759
Other changes: Hfth &
Interest expense on lease liabilities MEAEMNE Eﬁ 53 353
Effect of lease modification HEEMTE 2,769
Total other changes Hih BB EE 3,122
At 31 March 2022 WZEB-__F=A=+—H 4,550
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30. GUARANTEES

31.

The Group provided guarantees in respect of the
performance bonds issued by a bank and an insurer in favour
of the customers of certain construction contracts. Details of
these guarantees as of the end of reporting periods were as
follows:

30.

=R

AEER—ERITE—HRBARRE TEES
HMEPBEEMBOREREER - ZFERE
EREHROFBWT

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Aggregate value of the performance bonds & E 2 M B4R B BE
issued in favour of customers 40,915 36,815

The directors are of the opinion that it is not probable that the
bank or insurer will claim against the Group for losses under
the guarantees as it is unlikely that the Group will be unable
to fulfil the performance requirements of the relevant
contracts. The performance bonds are secured by the
pledged deposits of the Group and certain performance
bonds are also secured by corporate guarantees of certain
group companies. Accordingly, no provision for the Group’s
obligations under the guarantees has been made as at 31
March 2022 and 2021.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

As at 31 March 2022 and 2021, the Group did not have any
capital commitments.

31.

EZRR RTIRB AR AT S EREE
AAREERRE  RESKEE N KA EEEET
HEAHNENRTE AHBENRENLTEEN
SEMERERR  METEORETAETE
BARMEREREER - A RZF=Z
R—ZZ-—F=ZA=+—H HMERLKENE
RIA T B EEREAEE -

BARESE

R —FN-_FT-_—F=A=+—H K&
(8] I AT (o] B A RIE o
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32.

182

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objective of managing capital is to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other
stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to
reduce cost of capital.

The Group monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is total
debts to equity. Total debts include lease liabilities. Equity
represents total equity of the Group.

The directors of the Company actively and regularly review
and manage the Group’s capital structure, taking into
consideration the future capital requirements of the Group, to
ensure optimal shareholders’ returns. The Group manages
the capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of
changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics
of the underlying assets. In order to maintain or adjust the
capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of
dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders,
issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debts.

The gearing ratios as at the end of reporting period were as
follows:

32. EXERE

AEEEARERBBRIREASENFELZE
1 - PATRI B BRAR (o] ¥ e A5 HL Ath ) 5 40 B 2 e 4R
M R REENEE  WRPERKAE

AEBERAEERBL R (FRBEBHR AERD)
EREA - REBERHEAE EaEAKE
RIS AR -

ARAEFHEEGTE R NEEARENEAR
B TEBARENRKERNTKABRRED
PRERE R - AEBEERE RNRBEL R BREBEMRN
HY B2 B N2 A0 RE B A YRR R R B AN SR VR A
B RERNABEARER  AREAEFHBIK
NFERROKREEE  MBRREER - BITH
s EEERE °

RERRNEERBLENT ¢

2022 2021

—E-—F T4

HK$’000 HK$’000

F@T T

Lease liabilities HeEaE 4,550 4,187
Total debts 1RIETS 4,550 4,187
Total equity AR 167,671 181,214
Gearing ratio BEBELE 3% 2%
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT B 5 R b B BB

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
in the normal course of the Group’s business are credit risk,
interest rate risk, equity price risk, liquidity risk and currency
risk. The Group’s overall risk management focuses on the
unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance. Risk management is carried out by the key
management under the policies approved by the board of
directors. The Group does not have written risk management
policies. However, the directors meet regularly to identify and
evaluate risks and to formulate strategies to manage financial
risks.

Generally, the Group introduces conservative strategies on its
risk management. The Group has not used any derivatives
and other instruments for hedging purposes nor does it hold
or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes.

(@) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primary attributable to bank
balances, pledged deposits and trade and other
receivables. The Group’s bank balances and pledged
deposits are placed with reputable banks and financial
institutions. Given its high credit standing, the directors
do not expect any credit risk exposure for the Group’s
bank balances and pledged deposits.

For trade and other receivables. The amounts included
in trade and other receivables in the consolidated
statements of financial position are net of provisions for
doubtful receivables if any. The quantitative disclosures
in respect of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising
from trade and other receivables are set out in Note 19.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables and contract assets at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs, which is calculated using a provision
matrix. As the Group’s historical credit loss experience
does not indicate significantly different loss patterns for
different customer segments, the loss allowance based
on past due status is not further distinguished between
the Group’s different customer bases.

EAEBOABEBBREY  AEEXRAEHT
EMFERRBRAEERR - FILER - BAER
Rk REBEeRBREEEREE - NEBANEE
B E IR 2 AT RIS /TS 3 /%/\EE
BRAEUAEEMERRERNEETFTE -

AEEIEM@FET§$AMﬁWﬁ%LH°
$%l1ﬁiﬁﬂ@ﬁﬁﬁ o SR - EERTEH
ST LA 35 B K 5T A R B 3 ) E SRR DA B B S R

e o
N

—RME - AN E L EE R E R EREUR ST RS o
RSB A EROTAE TE MHEM T AEL T
R TEFERBETITLESRITAERSAE -

(@) FERR

AEENEERRIZRANRITER B
EMEFEFTARE SR EAMEKGRIR - A&
MRITRESBR KD BIRERERNBER 4F
MRIT R SR - INMEEMR R - &
ETRMAKBEMRTTESR M EEAFR
AZEFAEERR -

RESHREMBWRIBMS @ REFBERKR
KRB 5 & EMEWEIAD R RERE UL
FBEREWE) FRASEEHESRE
thEWFIBELSEERBNTERZEHR
BIEE19 ©

AEBZBENFRABEREESESEM
BHRYGARENEETEBERE - M
FRABMEESRAUERBRBERBTHE
HRAREBENEEBERERY ERTF
BEEOMBREABEEN - ERESRR
AHENERRETERARETREPEZ
Rl — & o
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

184

(a)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (Continued)

ECLs rates are based on actual loss experience over
the past 3 years. These rates are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the
year over which the historic data has been collected,
current conditions and the Group’s view of economic
conditions over the expected lives of the receivables.
No impairment for trade receivables and contract
assets is provided as the loss allowance measured
under the ECLs model is insignificant.

The deposits and other receivables are measured at
amortised costs and are considered to have low credit
risk because they are considered are in good credit
quality and no historical default noted. They are also
subject to the ECLs model and the loss allowances
limited to 12 months ECLs. After applying the expected
credit loss model, the Group concluded that impact of
ECLs for these financial instruments are insignificant.

Interest rate risk

As the Group has no significant interest-bearing assets
and liabilities, the Group’s income and operating cash
flows are substantially independent of changes in
market interest rate.

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through its
listed securities investments. The management
manages this exposure by maintaining a portfolio of
investment with different risk profiles. The Group’s
equity price risk is concentrated on listed securities in
London.

The sensitivity analyses below have been determined
based on the exposure to the equity price risk at the
end of each reporting date. If the prices of the listed
securities investments classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss had been 5% higher/
lower, the profit before income tax expense for the year
would increase/decrease by approximately
HK$803,000 (2021: HK$3,091,000) as a result of the
changes in fair value of the listed securities.

IBI Group Holdings Limited
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33. BiIKEREE (&)

(a)

(b)

(c)

FERR (&)

BHEEBEEXRATE = FERBBRLR:T
B RFHLRCFERE  URBRATREBE
BB H)FE ARG © BRI K
REBEH MR FRALERRNE
RzEHMER - ARREEHEEBERER
AENEBEBERELTER B ELEFE
WA & & H B ERHRRE R -

Wa M EAM YNGR EHR A E - B
BERAFREEERR  RERZENIEAN
ERERRIFABETEBOLE - ZFK
BENAXEREEEREARER12EA
BHEERENEBERBRERR - NERRE
HEEEREAR  FAEERSZFTRT
AMEREEERENTEL TEKX -

NZER

AR B E A S A A B - HOR
EE A RELES R BRAREE R
Gl IET TR

RSB R

REEEBH RS RARERA IS
5 - BEEEBEBTRERMHBRERAL R
FRAR - AEE Y RAERERERRE
B ETHES -

T X2 BURE D ER & HE B EKRAE
HRABRRBRMETE - WOEABARF
B ABENEREEN EMESRENE
LR 5% - BIARFERTBRAL
Al 4 1) 4% 18 00 > #9808,000 L (=&
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3. iHEREE (&)

(CONTINUED)
(d) Liquidity risk (d #RBHEESERR
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and RE B W EUR E E BT IR K TR BRI R &)
expected liquidity requirements to ensure that it BeEk HMREEZENESHE  UE
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity e ERRBESENK -
requirements in the short and longer term.
The following tables show the remaining contractual TREFIRBEARBIRIR S ME RAEE A
maturities at the end of each of the reporting period of ERMNPFHNEE 2NN ANEFBIETES
the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities, based on BEERSREHARNFSBREDIHBER -
undiscounted cash flows and the earliest date the
Group can be required to pay.
Total More than More than
contractual Within 1 year but 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than less than
amount cash flow on demand 2 years 5 years
BHRER 1R BB1E BA2F
REAE BeRBRE FRER BOR2%F BHREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEL FHEL THT THAT THL
At 31 March 2022 R-B--¥=A=+-H
Trade payables EUT NS 15,258 15,258 15,258 - -
Accruals for costs of AHNTENAETER
contract works 83,076 83,076 83,076 - -
Retention payables TERHREZIE 28,950 28,950 28,299 651 -
Other payables and accruals i fEf TAIE&J?E.#EW 8,189 8,189 8,189 - -
Lease liabilities %ﬁgﬁf 4,550 4,783 2,994 1,789 -
140,023 140,256 137,816 2,440 -
Financial guarantees issued 2 % 0BT IS (R
Maximum amount guaranteed  FrERHISES2E - 40,915 40,915 - -
At 31 March 2021 RZB--¥=HA=+-H
Trade payables B SRR 14,460 14,460 14,460 - -
Accruals for costs of ANTEMAEHER
contract works 149,730 149,730 149,730 - -
Retention payables ERE TR 34,948 34,948 34,550 398 -
Other payables and accruals ~ E b fER I8 K EAT & 10,184 10,184 10,184 - -
Lease liabilities %HEE & 4,187 4,406 3,169 885 352
213,509 213,728 212,093 1,283 352
Financial guarantees issued 2 8B &R
Maximum amount guaranteed ~ FTERKIZES S - 36,815 36,815 - -
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

186

33. BiIKEREE (&)

(CONTINUED)
(e) Currency risk (e) EME
Foreign currency risk arises when recognised assets ERREENRBENTIIERRARENB R
and liabilities are denominated in a currency that is not AN e E N BT EREEINERR o
the functional currency of the Company and its
subsidiaries.
Most of the Group’s monetary assets and transactions AREBKRBLEEEENT S ETBINETT
are principally denominated in Hong Kong dollars ([T ]) BB ([DRP9ES |) A AL - JBPY
(“HKD”) and Macau Patacas (“MOP”). The MOP is in MOEETHEME M Ll 2 EREZRER
turn pegged to HKD and the exchange rate between EHFRFBYEIET - At - XEEFEHR
these currencies has remained relative stable over the FISHIR ST e EEREATE - B
past several years. Accordingly, the Group does not EXEREZREFEUARTT(TBIT]) 8
expect fluctuations in MOP to have material impact on (R REes([HeE DIEZRS IR
the operations. Exposures to currency exchange rates CEEYREAFEFABENESREE -
mainly arise from cash and cash equivalents and
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss which
are primarily denominated in Euro (“EUR”), Australian
Dollar (*AUD”) and British Pound (“GBP”).
The Group has not entered into any derivative AREE I EI]EMHTA T B LA R INE &,
instruments to hedge the foreign currency risk o SR BIEEBeELRINE RSO - I
exposures. However, the management monitors the B AR EREEE hE AR O -
foreign currency risk exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency risk exposure
should the need arise.
The carrying amounts of monetary assets denominated g EB AN BB ENEEEENR
in currency other than the functional currency are as HENT
follows:
2022 2021
—E-CE —E-—F
AUD GBP EUR AUD GBP EUR
BT RE B R 2 BT
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$'000
TEx TEx TR THL THL TET
Cash and cash equivalents BeRBESEEY - 34,838 1,036 384 -
Other receivables H iU HIE 374 422 - 281 227 -
Financial asset at fair value BAFEAER
through profit or loss HeREE 16,062 - 6,251 43,816 -
Overall net exposure BRERAREE 374 16,484 34,838 7,568 44,427 -
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33. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

33. BiIKERERE (&)

(CONTINUED)
(e) Currency risk (Continued) (e) E¥REM(E)

The following table indicates the approximate change in TRERAERREHRAAEE@E EKE

the Group’s profit before income tax and retained % 1) NE FE R A TR Al s B B e AN EE EIRR PR 1S

profits in response to reasonably possible changes in TRADEF RARE A B &8 o N XFTR

the foreign exchange rates to which the Group has FEMERTBTHBAEEERR  &HHE

significant exposure at end of the reporting period. A FTighn o 8T H B EKEE  BEF =

positive number below indicates an increase in profit REREERRTE - BTIREAKREER -
where the HKD strengthens against the relevant
currency. For a weakening of the HKD against the
relevant currency, there would be an equal and
opposite impact on the profit, and the balances below

would be negative.
2022 2021
—E_—F —E-—4F

Effect on Effect on

Increase in profit for the Increase in profit for the

foreign year and foreign year and

exchange retained exchange retained

rates profits rates profits

B F REF HF R A

RREEF NARE & F

SRR FFH Mg IMNEEX LT 0%

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHERT FAT

AUD SBIT 5% 19 5% 378

GBP g 5% 824 5% 2,221

EUR BRT 5% 1,742 5% -

2,585 2,599

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming
that the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred
at the end of reporting period; exposure to currency risk
for financial instruments in existence at that date, and
that all other variables, in particular interest rates,
remain constant.

The stated changes represent management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rates over the period until the end of next
annual reporting period. Results of the analysis as
presented in the above table represent the Group’s
exposure to foreign currency risk.

BURE T BRSNS TE S 355 IR T
BIALHK AP E LRI ANINEAR - T
HABFTA B8 R BIRFIR) RETE -

R BB T — RS AR
ZHR  NEEE TR Y ABE BN
i« FRFZIIMHTREEREALEEE
BN -
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34.

188

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 34. REHETNERHEERSHEEHE

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The following table shows the carrying amounts of financial
assets and liabilities:

TRIREMEERABENREE :

2022 2021
—E-CF —E_—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT THEIT
Financial assets SREE
Financial assets at fair value through HNFEAFA B EE
profit or loss 16,062 61,825
Financial assets measured at amortised cost 1% #4 #5528 3| BE (9 2 mb 2 =
Trade and other receivables B 5 N E M WA 27,812 115,847
Pledged deposits [REEEEE 14,850 14,426
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEEY 141,647 87,142
Financial liabilities cEas
Financial liabilities at amortised costs R IERC ARSI BR B 2 B
Trade and other payables B 5 NEMEN IR 135,121 209,050
Lease liabilities HeEaE 4,550 4,187

The following table provides an analysis of financial
instruments carried at fair value by level of fair value hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level
1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from
prices); and

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on
observable market data (unobservable inputs).

IBI Group Holdings Limited
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34. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 34. RERE TN EHEENRSHEEBEHNE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (48)
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 March 2022
R-ZE-_—_H=A=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£ -t 11} E=R et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET FET FHET

Financial assets at fair value #AFETAEZR

through profit or loss HemEE

— Listed securities — FW#ESH 16,062 - - 16,062
16,062 - - 16,062

As at 31 March 2021
RZE——F=H=+—H

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
2 E=1 2= szt
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T
Financial assets at fair value # A F &t A 8%
through profit or loss HemEE
— Listed securities — FHES 61,825 - - 61,825
61,825 - - 61,825
There were no transfers between levels during the year ended Hr - —FRK-_T-—F=F=+—HIF
31 March 2022 and 2021. B BEKEEEE-
(@) Financial instruments not measured at fair (a) YHEZEAFEFTENEMIE
value
Financial instruments not measured at fair value include WIHEAFEFENERITABEESRE
trade and other receivables, pledged deposits, cash fpESIE BEHEFER - RepReEE
and cash equivalents, trade and other payables and B REMEMNTELEERE -
lease liabilities.
Due to their short term nature, the carrying values of AREIE H 8 - B 5 M E b e FE
trade and other receivables, pledged deposits, cash EEETR HEeEkRSFEY BFHRE
and cash equivalents, trade and other payables and EMFELAEEEZREEHEQFER
lease liabilities approximate to their fair values. o
(b) Financial instruments measured at fair value (b) BRAFEHEWNERIA
The fair value of financial assets and liabilities with A EE AR IR ERRBEMESE
standard terms and conditions and traded on active HNeRMEENBEAFER2EMEREET -

liquid markets are determined with reference to quoted
market prices.
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35. SUBSIDIARIES 35. HEA T

RZZE-_—"HF=ZA=+—H AQAATEHREL
B EHHABBRAR)MFBNT

As at 31 March 2022, the particulars of the Company’s
principal subsidiaries, all of which are companies with limited
liability, are as follows:

190

Place and date of Issued Attributable equity
incorporation and Place of and fully interest held
Name of subsidiary type of legal entity operations paid-up capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
ERAIAERAS ik ER
WEARER R EEERER fed=$iuk BRTRBRRA B ME FEER
IBI Corporate Holdings BVI BVI US$100 100% - Investment holding
Limited 14 April 2016
Limited liability company
IBI Corporate Holdings RERAHS EBEUHES 1003ET AR
Limited “E-RERATHEA
BRAT
IBI Group Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Investment holding
9 May 2011
Limited liability company
IBI Group Limited 0 N 100/87T RAZK
—Z——57ANA
BRAT
IBI Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100%  Provision of renovation
14 April 1997 contracting services for
Limited liability company property projects
IBI Limited BE B 1,000,000/ 7 REMETER O
—AMEERA+TEA EBRH
ARRR
[BI Projects Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$2 - 100%  Provision of renovation
1 April 2005 contracting services for
Limited liability company property projects
IBI Projects Limited B Bk 287 REMEIEE MBI
“ZTHRFNA-H EBRRTE
BRRF
|BI Macau Limited Macau Special Administrative  Macau Special MOP25,000 - 100%  Provision of renovation
Region Administrative contracting services for
11 April 2005 Region property projects
Limited liability company
IBI Macau Limited BERITHE BEIRRITHE 25,0008 P98 RAEMEIR R O
“ZTRFENAT—H EBR%

BRERF
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35. SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Place and date of

35. B~ TF (&)

Issued Attributable equity

incorporation and Place of and fully interest held
Name of subsidiary type of legal entity operations paid-up capital Directly Indirectly Principal activities
EMAIER A e
KEARER R EEERER KEwe BRTRAZRA HH BE TEXR
IBI Holdings Limited Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Provision of management
9 May 2011 services within the Group
Limited liability company
IBI Holdings Limited BE 0 10078 7T REAEENBERRY
“Z——%HANA
BRDA
IBI Company Storage BVI BVI USs$100 - 100%  Investment holding
Limited 14 April 2016
Limited liability company
IBI Company Storage ERRLES B 100%7T REERR
Limited “E-RFMATEH
BRDA
Building Solutions Limited  Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 80%  Provision of products and
9 April 2020 services with a focus on
Limited liability company air quality and modern
sustainable building
materials
Building Solutions Limited ~ &8 B 10,000 7T REZEINEREER
“ZRCRFRANR RRAFEEREN R
BRAA (2 i SRS
IBI Investment Holdings Hong Kong Hong Kong HK$100 - 100%  Strategic investments
Limited 28 July 2020
Limited liability company
IBl Investment Holdings &% E 10078 7T HRRE

Limited —E-TFLA-F\H
BRAA
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36.

37.

192

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 18 May 2022, the Company, through its wholly-owned
subsidiary as the purchaser, entered into a sale and purchase
agreement with the vendor to acquire a property located at
Dublin, Ireland at a consideration of EUR13,500,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$113,000,000). Further
details of the acquisition were disclosed in the Company’s
announcement dated 18 May 2022 and the circular dated 29
June 2022. The transaction was completed on 26 May 2022.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 30 June
2022.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and equity of ANEE@EFRAEMBHFEENEEUNEE  BEBENMER
the Group for the last five financial years is as follows: BET :

Revenue and other Was R E A

gains/(losses) Weas,/ (E518) 405,878 556,702 591,129 593,448 580,964
Gross profits EH 67,952 79,434 51,871 51,731 53,181
Profit before income tax expense [ AT 15 %4 B8 2 A& A1) 33,692 55,798 25,294 24,753 22,564
Profit attributable to the FiNNEIE ¥ =N

owners of the Company JEAG F A F

for the year 27,010 54,390 21,627 20,852 18,175

Assets BE

Non-current assets IEmEEE 21,288 66,011 18,065 419 1,316
Current assets MEEE 296,411 330,206 381,241 356,479 294,281
Total assets BEME 317,699 396,217 399,306 356,898 295,597
Liabilities =t

Current liabilities TENAE 148,269 213,808 261,060 223,391 154,942
Non-current liabilities SEmEatE 1,759 1,195 3,112 - -
Total liabilities BiEE5 150,028 215,003 264,172 223,391 154,942
Total equity R 167,671 181,214 135,134 133,507 140,655
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DEFINITIONS
Bx

“2022 AGM”
R FERBAFAE]

CAGA”
[ARA]

“Articles”
[4RE =2 40A]

“Audit Committee”

[EZEZEE

“Board”

-0

“BVI”
[REBELEHS ]

“China” or “PRC”
[

“CG Code”

[ 7Rl

“Code Provision(s)”
[ <8R

“Company” or “our Company”
(RN

“Companies Ordinance”
NS

“Controlling Shareholder(s)”

[ 2R AR

“Covid-19"
[Covid-19]
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the 2022 annual general meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, 9
September 2022
RRABBR_Z__FNANB(EHR) BTN S __FRFBAFAE

alteration and addition

B¢ INQilifed

the memorandum and articles of association of our Company as amended from
time to time

RN A B ERZAM M AR (ETRER])

the audit committee of the Company
ARAIERELZE®

the board of Directors

Bxg

the British Virgin Islands
RERLES

the People’s Republic of China, excluding, for the purpose of this report, Hong
Kong, Macau and Taiwan
hEARKNE  piARENS - TREEE  RFIRGE

the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules,
as amended from time to time

LR AP SR 14 PR (R EA ST RD (B AEFERT)

the code provisions set out in the CG Code
& < RIPTE <P RIERSC

IBI Group Holdings Limited
IBI Group Holdings Limited

Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws of Hong Kong) which took
effect from 3 March 2014, as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified
from time to time

NZT—MFE= A =B ERNEBEDE 622 B RMED) (ETRHERT - #
REBITIER)

Mr. Neil David Howard and Brilliant Blue Sky Limited, being the controlling
shareholders of our Company, and shall have the meanings in the Listing Rules
ZRR B HIHE A% A% R Neil David Howard 7t 4 & Brilliant Blue Sky Limited » K #5 &
B LR BIERE

the coronavirus outbreak
Wik ERE



DEFINITIONS
eSS

“Deed”
[ 5295 |
“Directors”
(%]

“ESG Report”
[ESG #i45

“ESG Reporting Guide”
[ESG & 55!

»

“Group”, “our Group”, “we”, “our
or “us”

[ E ] 3 [P

“Hong Kong”
(&% ]

“Listing Date”
[ HE
“Listing Rules”

[ 8]

“Macau”

[P ]

“Main Board”

[E1R]

“Model Code”

[R2Esy Al

the deed of non-competition undertaking dated 20 September 2016 entered into
by the Controlling Shareholders in favour of the Company
ERBERAR DB RZ A LBBRA S —REFENAZ T BT HEF A

i

the director(s) of our Company

ARRIER

the Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company
AARNESE - L EREARE

the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide as contained in
Appendix 27 to the Listing Rules, as amended from time to time
ERBIKE 27 FRE GRIR - 8 REIR|ERE )G TRIER])

our Company and its subsidiaries (or our Company and any one or more of its
subsidiaries, as the content may require) or, where the context so requires, in
respect of the period before our Company became the holding company of its
present subsidiaries, the present subsidiaries of our Company and the
businesses carried on by such subsidiaries or (as the case may be) their
respective predecessors
RARIREMBAR (AR REERN—RKXZXWEAR]  RIRNETFE
MiE)  HIANEMTE - RAREIK R EIRA M E R B ZER A B2 A EARE -
BEARRINRAENBE AR RZENBRRIMRENEBH R BERAME)
®EZBHATH QA

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
REEBRFRTH R

14 October 2016, the date on which dealings in the Shares, on the Main Board
first commence

“E-XRFTATEA - AR EXRBEIREENEH

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Main Board, as amended,
supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
THRCEH EHRADEETRAER] ~ R SAEM T U EZ)

the Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC
H DR PR RITTIR

the stock exchange (excluding the option market) operated by the Stock
Exchange which is independent from and operating in parallel with GEM of the
Stock Exchange

MR PTEIFNRE SRS (T RIESEMS) - BB PTGEM I B 2 3
1Ti8E

the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, as amended from time to time
FHRAIMEA0MAE LT BETAERETES R HNRESTRDETEHERT)
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DEFINITIONS
Bx

“Nomination Committee”

[REEEE]

“Prospectus”
[HBRER]
“Remuneration Committee”

(FHEZEE]

“Senior Management”
[SREEE ]

“SFG”

B d

“SFO”
[R5 M HIE 15&H) )

“Share Option Scheme”
[REREET 2

“Share(s)”

[A& 1]
“Shareholder(s)”
[ARE ]

“Stock Exchange”
[ Bk 32 P

“Takeovers Code”

[ i <r A1l

“HK$”, “HKD”, “Hong Kong dollar(s)”
or “cent(s)”
[T g 780

“MOP”
[RPTE |

“US$” or “USD” or “US dollars”
E¥

vy
(%]
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alillEt

the nomination committee of the Company
RAGREBELZES

the prospectus of the Company dated 29 September 2016
AARIEMR-ZE—R"FAAZTNLENBRER

the remuneration committee of the Company
rRRFMEES

the senior management of the Company
rRrlEBRERE

the Securities and Futures Commission of Hong Kong
EEBFLNEEBEREZES

the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong),
as amended and supplemented from time to time

BREDIF 571 B EFRAEEID (B AEERT KA FE)

the share option scheme adopted by our Company on 20 September 2016
RATRZE—ANFNAZ T AEMNERE S

ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each in the share capital of our Company
RAFRAF EREEOC.01 BT E B

the holder(s) of the Shares
SSESZ=DN

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EEMAaRIMBERATA

the Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Buy-backs issued by the SFC,
as amended, supplemented or otherwise modified from time to time
BEGRMN(ARIWE - &0t RRMEIETA (EAREE] - MR A A
7 MER)

Hong Kong dollar(s) and cent(s), respectively, the lawful currency of Hong Kong
7T KA

BEEEEHR

Macau pataca, the lawful currency of Macau

BPVEE BRI

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States

XEDEEEBET

per cent
Bk
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